T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Major Applications

Planning

Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 18
NOVEMBER 2015

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Curling

Jazz Dhillon

Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)
Carol Melvin

John Morgan

Brian Stead

David Yarrow

Published: Tuesday, 10 November 2015

Contact: Jon Pitt
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking V/

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a S umé\\

short walk away. Limited parking is available at Pavilions &, gypube and b

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shapping -} G S
Centra

how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services. Please enter from the
Council’'s main reception where you will be car gk
directed to the Committee Room. e mm.m.

Muziaming

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in writing
to the Council in advance of the meeting. Where
there is a petition opposing a planning application
there is also the right for the applicant or their
agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with by
the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the
beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek

clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3
4

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered inpublic
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications without a Petition

70701/APP/2015/3026

development with a lower ground
floor and accommodation within
the roof space. The development
comprises of 6 x 1 bed flats and 6
X 2 bed flats.

Recommendation: Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
5 | Former Royal British Heathrow | The redevelopment of the site to 1-40
Legion Club, Sipson Villages accommodate a 7 storey 91 room
Road, West Drayton hotel, including a basement level | 196 - 212
and associated parking and
829/APP/2014/4252 landscaping.
Recommendation: Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement
6 | 211-213 Swakeleys Ickenham | Demolition of the existing 2no. 41 - 64
Road detached dwellings and erection
of a two storey residential 213 - 228




Imperial House,
Victoria Road, Ruislip

5039/APP/2014/3715

South
Ruislip

Construction of an A1 discount
food store with associated car
parking and landscaping on the
site of the former Imperial House.
External refurbishment of Units 1
and 2.

Recommendation: Approval

65-110

229 - 238

Grassy Meadow Day
Centre, Grange Road,
Hayes

48110/APP/2015/3436

Townfield

1. Demolition of existing Day
Centre.

2. Erection of a single part 3 and
part 4 storey building
comprising: 2a. 88 number of 1
bed Extra-Care units (C2 Use
Class) 2b. 700 sqm dementia
resource centre with communal
lounge and associated service
facilities (D1 Use Class).

3. Associated soft and hard
landscaping (including ancillary
structures such as bin stores &
storage shed).

4. Provision of car parking.

Recommendation: Approval

111 -150

239 - 267

West London
Industrial Park, Iver
Lane, Cowley

751/APP/2015/335

Uxbridge
South

Continued use of the site for B8
purposes with new storage and
ancillary workshop and office
buildings, car parking, external
storage area and new access to
Wallingford Road.

Recommendation: Refusal

151 - 164

268 - 279

10

Park View Day
Centre, Farrier Close,
Hillingdon

60469/APP/2015/3368

Yiewsley

Erection of a 3 storey building
(including a lower ground level)
comprising 60 Extra-Case Units
(C2 Use Class), associated
communical facilities, parking and
landscaping (involving demolition
of existing building at the site.

Recommendation: Approval

165 - 194

280 - 298

Part | - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

195 - 298




This page is intentionally left blank



Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos:

Drawing Nos:

Agenda ltem 5

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

FORMER ROYAL BRITISH LEGION CLUB SIPSON ROAD WEST
DRAYTON

The redevelopment of the site to accommodate a 7 storey 91 room hotel,
including a basement level and associated parking and landscaping.

829/APP/2014/4252

2014-2108-AT-101

2014-2108-AT-102

2014-2108-AT-103

2014-2108-AT-104

Design Statement

Proposed Drawings for 560 Sipson Rd

Site Topo and Tree Survey

Site plan

Waste Management Recycling and Refuse Statement
R02-AH-Travel Plan (141112’
RO1-DP-Transport Statement (141111)
Planning Statement November 2014

Ground contamination report_Parts 1, 2 & 3
Ecological Appraisal-A

Drainage Strategy

Bird Hazardous Management Plan
Sustainability and Energy Strategy Repor

408 - A101 Rev B Proposed Ground Floor Plar
408 - A102 Rev B Proposed First Floor Plan
408 - A103 Rev A Proposed Second, Third and Fourth Typical Plar
408 - A106 Rev B Proposed Fifth Floor Plar
408 - A107 Rev B Proposed Sixth Floor Plar
408 - A109 Rev B Proposed Roof Plan

408 - A110 Rev B Proposed North Elevatior
408 - A111 Rev B Proposed South Elevatior
408 - A112 Rev B Proposed West Elevation
408 - A113 Rev B Proposed Section 1

408 - A114 Rev B Proposed 3D Views

408 - A100 Rev A Proposed Basement Plan
Accurate Visual Representation and Methodology dated July 201:
2014-2108-AT-302

2014-2108-AT-30%

2014-2108-AT-30¢€

2014-2108-AT-307

2014-2108-AT-30¢€

2014-2108-AT-301

Date Plans Received: 02/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/07/2015
Date Application Valid: 26/01/2015 02/12/2014
27/10/2015
31/07/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 7 storey, 91 bedroom hotel building
with a basement car park on the vacant Royal British Legion Club site, involving the
demolition of the existing club building).

The principle a hotel use on this site has been established by virtue of the recently
approvesd scheme for a 4 storey 54 room hotel (application ref:829/APP/2013/1618).
There is no objection in planning policy terms to the change of use that would involve the
loss of a vacant private members club (D1 Use Class) to use of the site as a hotel (C1
Use Class).

The site is located on the west side of Sipson Road, with the site surrounded on three
sides by the Park Inn Hotel complex (a substantially larger building than the proposal), with
the other site boundary being Sipson Road. Given this site context the scheme raises no
adverse amenity issues to residential neighbours nor does the new building's massing
and outlook prejudice the existing hotel developments on the adjacent site.

The proposed hotel building would rise to 7 storeys. However, the upper two floors would
be stepped back from the front and side elevations of the lower floors, to reduce the
perceived massing of the building. It is not considered the scheme would have a negative
impact on the visual amenities of the Green Belt, on the opposite side of Sipson Road,
while the height of the development is consistent with the surrounding Park Hotel
development. In visual appearance terms, the treatment of the elevations is considered
appropriate, whilst the proposed landscaping to the street is acceptable.

The car parking provision and highway access arrangements are considered consistent
with planning policy and acceptable, including the arrangements for service delivery and
guest drop off / collection.

The scheme is considered to comply with relevant London Plan and Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 1 and Part 2 policies and, accordingly, approval is recommended subject to
appropriate conditions and planning obligations.

2. RECOMMENDATION

1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to:

A) To the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure:

1. To secure all necessary highway works

2. The provision of a Travel Plan, including a bond, which shall incorporate
Sustainable Transport Measures such as a hopper bus service, a Construction
Management Plan, a Construction Logistics Plan and a Service and Delivery Plan.
2. Construction Training: either a financial contribution, or an in-kind scheme
delivered during the construction phase of the development, should be secured
(in either event the 'obligation’ should be delivered equal to the formula of £2,500
for every £1 million build cost plus £9600 Coordinator Costs).

3. Hospitality Training contributions or an in-kind scheme

4. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the site is located in an air quality
management area then a contribution in the sum of £12,500.

5. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions towards the management and monitoring of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



resulting agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised by th30/11/2015 or any other
date that may be agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement, that dlegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse planning
permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to agree to provide a Travel Plan, or undertake all
necessary highway works, or to provide contributions towards the improvement of
air quality and construction and employment training. The proposal therefore
conflicts with Policy EM8 of the Local Plan Part 1 and Policy R17 of the adopted
Local Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD.’

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning and Enforcement prior to
issuing the decision:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers
408 - A101 Rev B Proposed Ground Floor Plan

408 - A102 Rev B Proposed First Floor Plan

408 - A103 Rev A Proposed Second, Third and Fourth Typical Plan
408 - A106 Rev B Proposed Fifth Floor Plan

408 - A107 Rev B Proposed Sixth Floor Plan

408 - A109 Rev B Proposed Roof Plan

408 - A110 Rev B Proposed North Elevation

408 - A111 Rev B Proposed South Elevation

408 - A112 Rev B Proposed West Elevation

408 - A113 Rev B Proposed Section 1

408 - A114 Rev B Proposed 3D Views

408 - A100 Rev A Proposed Basement Plan

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following have been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Drainage Strategy Ref: 408
Bird Hazardous Management Plan Ref: 408
Waste Management, Refuse And Recycling Statement

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it (follows the strategy set out in Suds
Statement,produced by RDP Architects dated June 2013, and) incorporates sustainable
urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan
and will:

i. Provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required
tocontrol surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

c. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

d. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

ii. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues.

iii.Provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the
management and maintenance plan.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

iv. povide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2015) Policy 5.12.

5 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be -carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

6 COM®6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 COM9 Landscaping

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 6 of the parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points - 4 active and 2 passive).

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Provision of CCTV and secure entrance arrangements to the basement car parking.

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and in pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning
functions; to promote the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers
under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000, to ensure the development provides a
safe and secure environment in accordance and with policies BE13, BE38 and AM14 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies
5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan and 7.1 and 7.3
of the London Plan.

9 NONSC Air Quality

Prior to first occupation of the development an air quality action plan shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The action plan shall set out the
measures to be undertaken to promote, encourage and install measures to reduce
impacts on air quality. The development must be operated in accordance with the
approved plan.

REASON
To reduce the impacts on air quality in accordance with Policy EM8 of the Local Plan Part
1.

10 NONSC Detailed energy assessment

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted showing how the development will reduce carbon emissions by 25% from a
2010 Building Regulations compliant development in accordance with the outline Energy
Assessment (Richard Child, 13/2112 ene rev A, May 2013). The detailed assessment
shall clearly set out the baseline energy demand (kWhr) and associated emissions
(KgCO2); the measures to reduce the emissions through energy efficiency including how
they impact on the baseline; the size, specifications, input and outputs and location of any
proposed CHP and how it impacts on the baseline; and finally full details, specifications
and performance of any renewable energy with corresponding plans where necessary.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure appropriate carbon savings are delivered in accordance with London Plan
Policy 5.2.

1 NONSC Living walls/roofs

Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs
and screens shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the
locations. The development should proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



REASON
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with
Policy 5.11 of the London Plan.

12 NONSC Ingress of polluted air

Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed
accommodation from external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA.
Any works which form part of such a scheme shall be completed before any part of the
development is first occupied or used and measures put in place to ensure it is
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON:
To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

13 NONSC Contaminated land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority
(LPA). The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses
with any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(@) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate
all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation
scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to
the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON:

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14 NONSC Details of clean energy provision

Before the development is commenced, details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include pollutant emission rates with or without mitigation

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



technologies. Where a scheme to mitigate emissions is required, this shall be submitted
to the LPA for approval. The said scheme should be implemented, and maintained for the
life of the development.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

15 COM29 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority
other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to protect
the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3 of Part 1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan.

16 COM31 Secured by Design

The building shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

17 Ccom7 Materials & Fenestration Detailing

No development shall take place until details of all materials (including physical samples
where apropriate) are provided of external surfaces and 1:20 drawings of the angled
window bays above ground floor and of the external fins and louvres have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

18 DIS2 Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Development shall not commence until further detail are submitted to and approved in
writing by Local Planning Authority of:

(i) The access to the building entrances including the provision of non-slip surface and
adequate lighting and use of clearly defined texture and visual contrasts;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



(i) Further details of internal doors across circulation routes to incorporate a suitable zone
of visibility.

(iii) Details of the lift to facilitate the evacuation of disabled people in the event of a fire
emergency.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and the accessibility features shall thereafter be retained in perpetuity.

REASON

To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development and to
ensure that older and disabled people, and others who may be unable to evacuate by
stairs, can leave the building independently during a fire emergency in an efficient,
controlled and dignified manner in accordance with Policy R16 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan Policies 3.1, 3.8
and 7.2.

19 NONSC People with Disabilities

The development hereby approved shall ensure the quantity of accessible bedrooms as a
percentage of the total number of bedrooms (as detailed in BS 8300:2009) is no less than:
i. 5% without a fixed tracked-hoist system;

ii. 5% with a fixed tracked-hoist system, or, similar system giving the same degree of
convenience and safety;

iii. 5% capable of being adapted in the future to accessibility standards (i.e. with more
space to allow the use of a mobile hoist, wider doors, provision for services and with
enclosing walls capable of supporting adaptations, e.g. handrails);

iv. 50% of en-suite bathrooms within the required accessible bedrooms to have a level
access shower.

REASON

To ensure that London's visitor infrastructure is accessible and welcoming to all sections
of the population, including older and disabled people in accordance with policy AM13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policies
3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2015).

20 NONSC Car parking use only for duration of guests staying at hotel

The car parking facilities provided at the hotel shall be used by hotel staff and guests only
and strictly for the duration of their stay at the hotel. Prior to occupation of the hotel, a car
parking management strategy shall be submitted to demonstrate how this will be
managed and to ensure the efficient operation of the car park, especially at peak demand
periods. The approved strategy shall be implemented as soon as the hotel is brought into
use and the strategy shall remain in place thereafter. Any changes to the strategy shall be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

The use of the site for long or short stay parking for Heathrow Airport passengers is
directly related to the operation of Heathrow Airport but is located outside the airport
boundary, contrary to Policy A4 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007. Furthermore, this would provide airport related car parking in addition to
the 42,000 car parking spaces that have been 'capped' at Heathrow Airport as a condition
of the Terminal 5 approval and is contrary to Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan
(2015).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



21 COM20 Air extraction system noise and odour

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

22 NONSC Archaeology

A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors in
title) has secured the implementationof a programme of archaeological investigation in
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by the
applicant and approved by

the local planning authority in writing.

B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance with the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A).

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed inaccordance with the programme set out in the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A), and the provision made for analysis,
publication and dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured.

REASON

Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on the site. The
planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate archaeological
investigation, including the publication of results, in accordance with policy BE3 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 128 Food Hygiene

The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the
premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

2 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

3 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

4 123B Heavy Duty Vehicle Crossover

Prior to work commencing, you are advised to submit an application for a Heavy Duty
Vehicle Crossover to Highways Maintenance, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW to
prevent damage to the highway from construction vehicles entering and leaving the site.

5 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

6 143 Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

7

The onus is on the service provider to ensure the safety and evacuation of disabled
people. It is not the responsibility of the fire service to enable routine evacuation of
disabled people.

8 160 Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is
explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

9 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

10 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

T2 Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

T4 Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location,
amenity and parking requirements

LPP 2.6 (2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

LPP 2.7 (2011) Outer London: economy

LPP 2.8 (2011) Outer London: Transport

LPP 4.1 (2011) Developing London's economy

LPP 4.5 (2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure

LPP 5.1 (2011) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.10 (2011) Urban Greening

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.21 (2011) Contaminated land

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.4 (2011) Retrofitting

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 6.1 (2011) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.10 (2011) Walking

LPP 6.11 (2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and

reducing traffic

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 6.5 (2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure
LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling
LPP 7.1 (2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
LPP 7.13 (2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency
LPP 7.14 (2011) Improving air quality
LPP 7.15 (2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
11

The proposed facility would be the subject of the Equality Act 2010 The applicant is
advised to take the following into considerattion with regard to conditions 18 and 19 of this
permission:

1. The accessible car-parking bays should be a minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and
signed in accordance with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

2. A suitable access route to the building should be provided from the car parking areas.
Paths forming access routes should be a minimum of 1.2m clear wide, no steeper than
1:20 (unless designed as a suitable ramp), non-slip, well lit and clearly defined using
texture and visual contrasts. Paths should include suitably dropped kerbs at key crossing
points.

3. Level access and adequate front door width are assumed. If this is not the case, level
access should be provided and a minimum door width of 1000m for a single door or
1800mm for a double door.

4. The principal entrance door should be provided with a glazed panel giving a zone of
visibility, in accordance with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

5. Part of the reception/concierge desk should be provided at a height of 750-800mm. An
assisted listening device, i.e. infra-red or induction loop system, should be fitted to serve
all reception areas.

6. Seating of varying heights should be provided and sited close to reception.

7. All signage for directions, services or facilities should be provided in a colour
contrasting with the background. Signage and lighting levels should be consistent
throughout the building and care taken to avoid sudden changes in levels.

8. Toilets should be designed in accordance with the guidance given in Approved
Document M to the Buildings Regulations 2004 (2013 edition). A combination of both left
and right hand transfer spaces should be provided, as more than one unisex provision is
likely to be required within the communal areas of the Hotel.

9. The accessible toilet proposed on the ground floor should be signed either "Accessible
WC" or "Unisex". Alternatively, the use of a "wheelchair" symbol with the words "Ladies"

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



and "Gentlemen" or "Unisex" would be acceptable.

10. Corridors should be a minimum of 1500mm wide and internal doors across circulation
routes should incorporate a suitable zone of visibility.

11. The accessible bedrooms should be designed to BS 8300:2009. In addition to the
10% provision of accessible rooms,

12. 50% of the ensuite bathrooms within the required accessible bedrooms should have
level access showering facilities.

13. Plans should detail room dimensions, particularly for the en suite bathrooms and
confirm within the Design and Access Statement, that bath and shower rooms will accord
with the design guidance in BS 8300:2009+A1:2010. As the maijority of wheelchair users
prefer showers, a larger proportion of the 10 accessible rooms should feature shower
rooms. The Design and Access Statement should confirm the proportion of accessible
shower and bath rooms with the detailed specification shown on plan.

14. Signs indicating the location of an accessible lift should be provided in a location that is
clearly visible from the building entrance.

15. Lifts should accord with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

16. Internal doors, across circulation routes, should be held open using fire alarm
activated magnetic closers.

17. Details of where Hearing Enhancement Systems (e.g. induction loops) should form
part of the scheme. Consideration should also be given to the type of system(s) that will
be suitable for different areas of the hotel.

18. Alarm system should be designed to allow deaf people to be aware of its activation.
(Such provisions could include visual fire alarm activation devices, and/or a vibrating
pager system. A technical audit should be considered at this stage to ensure that mobile
phone and emergency paging system signals can transmit throughout the building.)

19. Advice from an appropriate fire safety officer or agency should be sought at an early
stage to ensure that adequate and appropriate refuge areas are incorporated into the
scheme as a whole. Refuge areas provided should be sized and arranged to facilitate
manoeuvrability by wheelchair users (Refer to BS 9999: 2008). Refuge areas must be
adequately signed and accessible communication points should also be provided in the
refuge area. Such detail should be fully documented in the Design & Access Statement
and submitted.

12

The written scheme of investigation required by condition 223 will need to be prepared and
implemented by a suitably qualified archaeological practice in accordance with English
Heritage Greater London Archaeology guidelines. It must be approved by the planning
authority before any on-site development related activity occurs. It is recommended that
the archaeological fieldwork should comprise of the following:

Excavation
That part of the site which lies outside the existing building should be stripped under

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



archaeological supervision to reveal the significant archaeological horizon and features
then planned and sampled in accordance with the strategy adopted at Sipson Quarry.
Ideally the results would be published alongside those from the quarry.

Archaeological excavation is a structured investigation with defined research objectives
which normally takes place as a condition of planning permission. It will involve the
investigation and recording of an area of archaeological interest including the recovery of
artefacts and environmental evidence. Once on-site works have been completed a 'post-
excavation assessment' will be prepared followed by an appropriate level of further
analysis, publication and archiving.

13

Please be advised that as from 1 April 2012, all planning approvals for schemes with a net
additional internal floor area of 100m2 or more will be liable for the Mayoral Community
Infrastructure Levy (Mayoral CIL), as legislated by the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 and The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations
2011. The liability payable will be equal to £35 per square metre. The London Borough of
Hillingdon is a collecting authority for the Mayor of London and this liability shall be paid to
LBH in the first instance.

In addition the development represents Chargeable Development under the Hillingdon
Community Infrastructure Levy, which came into effect on 1st August 2014. The liability
payable will be £40 per square metre. Should you require further information please refer
to the Council's Website

www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738

It is important to note that this CIL liability will be in addition to the planning obligations
(s106) that the Council may seek from your scheme.Should you require further

information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738.
14

In accordance with the provisions of the NPPF, the Local Planning Authority has actively
engaged with the applicant both at the pre application and application stage of the planning
process, in order to achieve an acceptable outcome. The Local Planning Authority has
worked proactively with the applicants to secure a development that improves the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. In assessing and determining
the development proposal, the Local Planning Authority has applied the presumption in
favour of sustainable development Accordingly, the planning application

has been recommended for approval.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located to the north of Heathrow Airport on the western side of Sipson Road, a
classified A road (A408). The site is located to the east of the M4 and north of the A4 (Bath
Road), the latter forming the northern boundary to Heathrow Airport.

The site forms part of a larger 'island' block that is ringed by heavily trafficked transport
infrastructure. Within the 'island' there is a large hotel complex, with associated health and
fitness and restaurant facilities with significant levels of surface car parking. These

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



buildings are generally between 4 - 6 storeys high.

To the north east of the site and Sipson Road is Sipson Farm, designated Green Belt land,
which has consent for sand and gravel extraction, whilst to the east of the site, locacted
over 100 metres away, on the opposite side of Sipson Road is a children's nursery
accommodated within two buildings known as Sipson Court and Sipson House. Sipson
House is Grade Il listed.

The nearest residential dwellings to the site are located over 110 metres to the south of the
site and on the opposite side of Sipson Road.

The site itself comprises a 1 -2 storey building, formerly used as a club house for the Royal
British Legion. It has a steeply pitched roof to the two storey element, with a flat roof to the
single storey side and rear 'wings'. It is not considered to be of particular architectural
merit, having been substantially altered over the years and appears in a poor state of
repair.

The existing building is set well back from the road, but is close in part to the southern and
eastern site boundaries. The eastern boundary comprises a timber boarded fence, with
dense trees and shrub planting within the neighbouring site, hard up to the site's boundary.
Beyond this boundary lies an expanse of surface parking. The boundary to western edge is
also timber boarded fencing and at its northern most part lies within close proximity of the
eastern flank of the adjacent hotel complex.

Existing vehicle access is off Sipson Road, with an expanse of hard surface that previously
accommodated the parking and servicing space for the Club, although there is no
indication of the number of such parking spaces.

The site has a PTAL rating of 3. The land is potentially contaminated. The site is currently
vacant and has been for approximately three years.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed scheme involves the demolition of the former Royal British Legion club
house and the erection of a 7 storey 91 bedroom hotel development, with a basement car
park accommodating 20 parking spaces including 3 disabled spaces, set beneath the
hotel. The proposed hotel is targeted at the budget end of the hotel market and would
primarily serve guests using Heathrow Airport. 13 of the guest bedrooms are designed to
accommodate wheelchair users.

The structure would be in total is 7 storeys high, with the 6th and 7th storeys set back from
the front and sides. The building will have 4 sides to it, each of different lengths and would
take a loosely triangular form on plan, with a much narrower rear elevation, that mirrors the
narrowing of the plot towards its southern boundary. The ground and first floor would be set
in at the front to allow for adequate manoeuvring space for coaches and service vehicles,
with the upper floors cantelevered forward above. The building would be centred around a
triangular atrium located in the core of the building.

The ground floor would have a reception area, a hotel lobby, a luggage room, an office,
sets of toilets, 2 public lifts, a stair core, an under-croft service yard, bin stores and 4 hotel
rooms.

The basement would be accessed by a vehicle ramp of a maximum gradient of 1:12 set

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



immediately to the east of the new building. The basement would provide 20 car parking
spaces including 3 blue badge bays, secure bike stands (that would be protected by
CCTV) for 12 bicycles.

The second, third and fourth floors would typically accommodate 21 rooms each, whilst the
6th floor would accommodate a restaurant and bar.

The building would rise to a maximum height of 21 metres, finished with a flat roof.

The treatment of the elevations and general massing is of a simple contemporary design.
The first to fifth floor contain the majority of the guest bedrooms. The east, west and
northern boundaries of the site from first floor to fifth floor have simple rectangular shaped
coloured infill glazing panels, broken up into individual bays around a white rendered frame.
The south facade is simply finished in K Render, from the ground floor to the fourth floor.

21 car parking spaces in total are provided, which equates to a car park ratio of 4.33 rooms
per space, which is line with the other hotel developments in the area.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

829/APP/2013/1618 Former Royal British Legion Club Sipson Road Sipson
The redevelopment of the existing vacant club/pub site at 560 Sipson Road to accommodate a
new 4 storey 54 room hotel with associated parking and landscaping.

Decision: 01-11-2013  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission (ref: 829/APP/2013/1618) was granted on 01-11-13 for a 4 storey 54
bedroom hotel on the site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

HQ,{’j |;B|FCB§§ignation and London Plan
ARprllowing Ulpipi Boficies, shtyapisiie df ipvamt & s aRRliSAl derly people and people witt

disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
Part 1 Policies:jy pjal-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes
PT1.BE1 mtﬁirawm&ﬂvmmmgrgpaces

PT1.E1 ?\%/d% n gfg fﬁg% twap){y o?IJ:S g{)% r?tdlc_eg% dan and street furniture schemes
AM14 ew evelopment and car parking standards.

RMZE?’ B&J&béﬁﬁ%ﬁgyré%fo'é'g@h%’é’&é%&ﬂ?éﬂf%ﬁéfﬁ@ generation, impact on congestion
PT1.E7 sl Py Risidiagspariavailability and capacity

AM7 Con5|derat|on of traffic generated by pro osed developments
PT1.EM1 &012 ) Climate Change Adaptation and dg
AMS8 riority consideration to pedestrians in the eS|gn and implementation of road

PT1.EM11 (2062 uStistearabteaffiastaMayagenteachemes
BfF1 .?EM6 %wgqyﬁlggrﬁmg mgﬁgagméqﬁise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildin s
PT1.EM7 2012) Biodiversity and Geolog{mal onservali
BE18 e3|gn considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



BE20
BE21
BE24

BEAEMO

PT1.T4
OE1

OE11
OES8

T2
T4

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.5
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.11
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.5
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3

Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Qgté%}iléﬁno ’tg\f)%tgrraéﬁlicaarll%r’?lao |3%dscape features and provision of new planting

@M@ﬁﬂmﬂa@ iAiqsmfplopment proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location, amenity and
parking requirements

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Outer London: economy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Developing London's economy

(2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Contaminated land

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Retrofitting

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Walking

(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and reducing traffic
(2011) Parking

(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
(2011) Cycling

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2011) Improving air quality

)
)
(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
(2011) An inclusive environment

)

(2011) Designing out crime

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 5th March 2015

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

A site notice was displayed and the application was advertised in the local newspaper. Adjacent
site owner has been consulted.

NATS Safeguarding

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

However, please be aware that this response applies specifically to the above consultation and only
reflects the position of NATS (that is responsible for the management of en route air traffic) based on
the information supplied at the time of this application. This letter does not provide any indication of
the position of any other party, whether they be an airport, airspace user or otherwise. It remains
your responsibility to ensure that all the appropriate consultees are properly consulted.

If any changes are proposed to the information supplied to NATS in regard to this application which
become the basis of a revised, amended or further application for approval, then as a statutory
consultee NERL requires that it be further consulted on any such changes prior to any planning
permission or any consent being granted.

HEATHROW AIRPORT LTD.
No safeguarding objections, subject to a bird hazard management plan and informative on cranes.
HARMONDSWORTH AND SIPSON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

I would like to reiterate the objections made for the first application 829/APP/2013/1618. The
proposed development of yet another hotel in the village will be of no or little value to the local
community as it is not offering a service to the village but adding to the frustration of the traffic flow in
an often congested and dangerous road. | am aware the speed limit is 30 mph at this point but many
drivers do not adhere to this or pay heed to the speed humps in the locality.

A fatality (young car driver) has occurred on this bend due to speeding. Sipson Road is used by
through traffic to avoid tailbacks on the M4 Spur road and bottlenecking regularly occurs because of
the parked vehicles on the bridge which will only allow single lane traffic when a bus, lorry or coach
is crossing the bridge. Problems also arise when large coaches turning into the Park Inn Hotel are
required to manoeuvre back and forth repeatedly to accommodate the acute turning angle; thus
blocking Sipson Road. It is anticipated that by positioning a 7 storey, 101 roomed hotel on the
proposed site it will compound all these problems. The previous premises provided a social meeting

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



place for the village and neighbouring communities which was accessible via public transport - 222
bus route and all buses (operating 24 hours) along the Bath Road.

It would be more appropriate if this land could again provide a service to the local community in
terms of facilities which could be used by them. This village already has 3 very large International
hotels (2 Holiday Inns and a Park Inn) but it does not have a newsagent, GP surgery, bakers,
greengrocers, chemist (we cannot access the chemist in Harlington due to the parking restrictions
and parked minicabs), library to name but a few of the amenities that other villages have and enjoy
but are denied to Sipson because priority is given to the airport's needs and not that of the local
residents.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) provides archaeological advice to
boroughs in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and GLAAS Charter.

The above planning application either affects a heritage asset of archaeological interest or lies in an
area where such assets are expected.The National Planning Policy Framework (Section 12)and the
London Plan (2011 Policy 7.8) emphasise that the conservation of archaeological interest is a
material consideration in the planning process. Paragraph 128 of the NPPF says that applicants
should submit desk-based assessments, and where appropriate undertake field evaluation, to
describe the significance of heritage assets and how they would be affected by the proposed
development. This information should be supplied to inform the planning decision. If planning
consent is granted paragraph

The application lies within the Heathrow Archaeological Priority Zone defined in the Hillingdon Local
Plan because of the extensive prehistoric and Roman landscapes found across the area. Recent
archaeological investigations at Sipson quarry (carried out in 2013 and reported in January 2014)
immediately to the north of this site have recorded numerous such remains and there can be little
doubt that these would have extended south into the application site.

| note that in relation to a previous application (829/APP/2013/1618) submitted in 2013 | advised that
there was likely to be little impact as that proposal was largely on the footprint of the existing building.
Since then new archaeological information has become available (see above and the new proposal
affects most of the site where the hard standing will have caused some damage but is unlikely to
have completely removed the pits, ditches and wells typical of this archaeological

landscape.

Although the application is not supported by a desk-based assessment or field evaluation it seems
unlikely to me that such studies would fundamentally alter our understanding of the site's potential
based as it is on good evidence immediately to the north. Nor is it likely that the site will contain
remains of such importance as to necessitate preservation in-situ.

Appraisal of this application using the Greater London Historic Environment Record and information
submitted with the application indicates that the development would not cause sufficient harm to
justify refusal of planning permission provided that a condition is applied to require an investigation to
be undertaken to advance understanding. The archaeological interest should be conserved by
attaching a condition as follows:

Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on the site. The planning authority
wishes to secure the provision of appropriate archaeological investigation, including the publication
of results.

A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors in title) has

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



secured the implementationof a programme of archaeological investigation in accordance with a
Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the
local planning authority in writing.

B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance with the Written Scheme
of Investigation approved under Part (A).

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation
assessment has been completed inaccordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme
of Investigation approved under Part (A), and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured.

Informative: The written scheme of investigation will need to beprepared and implemented by a
suitably qualified archaeological practice in accordance with English Heritage Greater London
Archaeology guidelines. It must be approved by the planning authority before any on-site
development related activity occurs.

It is recommended that the archaeological fieldwork should comprise of the following:

Excavation

That part of the site which lies outside the existing building should be stripped under archaeological
supervision to reveal the significant archaeological horizon and features then planned and sampled
in accordance with the strategy adopted at Sipson Quarry. Ideally the results would be published
alongside those from the quarry. Archaeological excavation is a structured investigation with defined
research objectives which normally takes place as a condition of planning permission. It will involve
the investigation and recording of an area of archaeological interest including the recovery of
artefacts and environmental evidence. Once on-site works have been completed a 'post-excavation
assessment' will be prepared followed by an appropriate level of further analysis, publication and
archiving.

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY ENGINEER

Initial comments:
a. Drop off / pick up facilities for Taxis should be provided.

b Some of the basement car park bays adjacent to the western wall are too constrained for vehicles
to enter / leave.

c. The access ramp to the car park should not be used as maneuvering space required for cars to
exit from parking bays. Theb access ramp arrangement at the basement level is not safe because
of the inadquate visibility and the multiple maneurves required for vehicles to negotiate the tight bend.
Further consideration is required to manage the conflicts between vehiles entering and leaving the
car park.

d. The proposed provision of 17 car park spaces for a 101 bed hotel is considered to be low, given
the London Plan bench mark of 1 space / bedroom. The applicant should be asked to provide
evidence from comparable sites to demonstrate adequacy of parking provision rather than relying on
pre-booking system.

e. The vehicular swept paths for midi-bus and coach shows vehicles entering from the west and
leaving via the eastern access. It entry will be allowed from the eastern access, then additional
swepth paths should also illustrate:

i. entry from east and exit via western access.

ii. Vehicles leaving in the direction of arrival - ie 'u turning' at both the eastern and western accesses.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



It is important that the access to the basement car park is not obstructed by coaches / midi-buses
and taxis. The applicant will be responsible for cost of highway works at the access.

f, Please consult Sophie Wilmot regarding the Travel Plan.

g. Cycle parking should be provided at 1 space per 20 bedrooms and 1 space per 3 staff.

Additional comments: (25/9/15)

a. Drawing number 2014-2108-AT-307 Rev A illustrates that cars entering and exiting from the car
park would leave insufficient space for pedestrians to safely wait in the refuge at the crossing across
the accessway. This arrangement should be modified to maintain a width of 1.2m and include tactile
paving.

b. A service and delivery plan will be required to include details of arrangements to manage conflicts
between use of coach bay and service vehicles / buses.

c. Highway works will require a s106/s278 agreement.

d. A Construction and Logistics Plan will be required.

e. A Travel Plan will be required - to promote sustainable modes of travel for staff and customers.
There are no highway objections subject to resolutions of the above.

Officer Note: Amended plans have been received addressing outstanding issues. A service and
delivery plan, construction and logistics plan and travel plan are to be secured by the S106
Agreement).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

The site appears to have been orchards in the past before the current building for the British Legion
was built. The site does not have a specific contaminative use however it does look in poor condition
from the site photographs. Mention of a nearby tank is made and the planning application mentions
suspected contamination for part of the site. Land science recommend an intrusive investigation
indicating there are potential pollutant pathways on the site. Made ground is probably the main
concern and any old heating equipment with tanks and such like.

The desk study is adequate for the planning application. The standard condition COM30 is
recommended, should the site be given a permission. (i) (a) has been completed. You could also
add a landscaping condition to make sure we receive the testing of the imported soils which will
probably be needed looking at the hard standing on the development site.

COM30- Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence untii a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme
shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such requirement
specifically and in writing:

(@) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant to
the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(i) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive

verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from landscaped areas

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for landscaping purposes
shall be clean and free of contamination.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when using this
condition.

REASON
To ensure that the users of the development are not subject to any risks from soil contamination in

accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

ACCESS OFFICER

Permission is sought for the redevelopment of the existing site to accommodate a 101 room hotel
over 7 floors. The hotel would also provide 17 car parking spaces, three of which would be
accessible. A restaurant and a bar is also proposed. The Design & Access Statement and plans
confirm that the upper floors would be accessible by lift. An accessible toilet designed to meet Part
M of the Building Regulations is proposed on the ground floor.

The proposed facility would be the subject of the equality act 2010 because it would provide a
service to the public. It should be noted that reasonable adjustments to practices, policies and
procedures, auxiliary aids, and physical features should be fully considered and specified as part of
the design brief to ensure that disabled people receive the same level of service.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



Whilst the Design & Access Statement makes reference to 'Lifetime Home' principles, and further
states that 10% of the rooms would be easily adaptable for wheelchair users, It does not refer to the
British Standard 8300:2009 and London plan policy 4.5 which are both pertinent to this type of
development.

In view of the above observations the following comments are provided:

1. A minimum of 10 accessible car-parking bays should be sited within 50m of the entrance. They
should be a minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and signed in accordance with
BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

2. A suitable access route to the building should be provided from the car parking area. Paths
forming access routes should be a minimum of 1.2m clear wide, no steeper than 1:20 (unless
designed as a suitable ramp), non-slip, well lit and clearly defined using texture and visual contrasts.
Paths should include suitably dropped kerbs at key crossing points.

3. Level access and adequate front door width are assumed. If this is not the case, level access
should be provided and a minimum door width of 1000m for a single door or 1800mm for a double
door.

4. The principal entrance door should be provided with a glazed panel giving a zone of visibility, in
accordance with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

5. Part of the reception/concierge desk should be provided at a height of 750-800mm. An assisted
listening device, i.e. infra-red or induction loop system, should be fitted to serve all reception areas.

6. Seating of varying heights should be provided and sited close to reception.

7. All signage for directions, services or facilities should be provided in a colour contrasting with the
background. Signage and lighting levels should be consistent throughout the building and care taken
to avoid sudden changes in levels.

8. Toilets should be designed in accordance with the guidance given in Approved Document M to the
Buildings Regulations 2004 (2013 edition). A combination of both left and right hand transfer spaces
should be provided, as more than one unisex provision is likely to be required within the communal
areas of the Hotel.

9. The accessible toilet proposed on the ground floor should be signed either "Accessible WC" or
"Unisex". Alternatively, the use of a "wheelchair" symbol with the words "Ladies" and "Gentlemen" or
"Unisex" would be acceptable.

10. Corridors should be a minimum of 1500mm wide and internal doors across circulation routes
should incorporate a suitable zone of visibility.

11. Whilst the submitted drawings indicate that the accessible bedrooms have most likely been
designed to an appropriate standard, clarification should be sought to ensure that they would be
designed to BS 8300:2009. In addition to the 10% provision of accessible rooms, a further 5%
should be capable of adaptation as stated in the following excerpt from the British Standard:

i. 5% without a fixed tracked-hoist system;
ii. 5% with a fixed tracked-hoist system, or, similar system giving the same degree of convenience

and safety;

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



iii. 5% capable of being adapted in the future to accessibility standards (i.e. with more space to allow
the use of a mobile hoist, wider doors, provision for services and with enclosing walls capable of
supporting adaptations, e.g. handrails);

12. 50% of the ensuite bathrooms within the required accessible bedrooms should have level
access showering facilities.

13. Plans should detail room dimensions, particularly for the en suite bathrooms and confirm within
the Design and Access Statement, that bath and shower rooms will accord with the design
guidance in BS 8300:2009+A1:2010. As the majority of wheelchair users prefer showers, a larger
proportion of the 10 accessible rooms should feature shower rooms. The Design and Access
Statement should confirm the proportion of accessible shower and bath rooms with the detailed
specification shown on plan.

14. Signs indicating the location of an accessible lift should be provided in a location that is clearly
visible from the building entrance.

15. Lifts should accord with BS 8300:2009+A1:2010.

16. Internal doors, across circulation routes, should be held open using fire alarm activated magnetic
closers.

17. Details of where Hearing Enhancement Systems (e.g. induction loops) will be provided should
form part of the scheme. Consideration should also be given, at this stage, to the type of system(s)
that will be suitable for different areas of the hotel. (It is important to consider such detail now, as the
design of a building and the material from which it is constructed, contribute to good acoustic travel
and stability. A technical audit should form part of the Design & Access Statement, as the reliability
of systems in proximity to other electrical equipment or materials can be adversely affected, e.g.
fluorescent lighting and steelwork.)

18. Alarm system should be designed to allow deaf people to be aware of its activation. (Such
provisions could include visual fire alarm activation devices, and/or a vibrating pager system. A
technical audit should be considered at this stage to ensure that mobile phone and emergency
paging system signals can transmit throughout the building.)

19. Advice from an appropriate fire safety officer or agency should be sought at an early stage to
ensure that adequate and appropriate refuge areas are incorporated into the scheme as a whole.
Refuge areas provided should be sized and arranged to facilitate manoeuvrability by wheelchair
users (Refer to BS 9999: 2008). Refuge areas must be adequately signed and accessible
communication points should also be provided in the refuge area. Such detail should be fully
documented in the Design & Access Statement and submitted.

Conclusion:

Whilst the design of this development application demonstrates some commitment to the principles
of access and inclusion, more detail is needed. The detail provided should be relative to the scale
and significance of the development, and as such, | consider that the Design & Access Statement
and accompanying plans lack the necessary detail.

(Officer Note: relevant details can be secured by condition)

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER / CONTEXT:
Site description:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



- The site is occupied by a vacant plot, formerly a club building surrounded by concrete hard-
standing.

- The site comprises a truncated triangle of land, situated on the edge of a larger land parcel
occupied by the Heathrow Inn Hotel.

- The Heathrow Inn Hotel lies to the south-east, south-west and north-west of the site, with the north-
east boundary fronting onto Sipson Road.

- The site is close to the junction with Bath Road, to the south of which lies Heathrow Airport.

- There is a strip of soft landscape along the east boundary but there are no trees or landscape
features of merit within the site, which might constrain development. Off-site trees and shrubby
vegetation line the boundaries with the neighbouring hotel.

Landscape planning designations:

- There are no Tree Preservation Orders or Conservation Area designations affecting the trees in
this area.

- Land to the north-east of Sipson Road is designated Green Belt.

PROPOSAL:

The proposal is to redevelop the site to accommodate a 7-storey, 101 room hotel, including a
basement level and associated parking and landscaping.

(An application ref. 2013/1618 was previously lodged for a 4-storey, 54 room hotel)

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Saved policy OL1 and 2, and the National Planning Policy Framework seek to restrict inappropriate
development and retain the openness, character and appearance of the Green Belt.

- The Design & Access Statement makes no specific reference to the landscape context or
landscape design objectives for the site.

- However, the submission does include a tree survey of off-site trees which are close to the site
boundaries and provide a 'borrowed' landscape setting for the proposed development. The trees
surveyed are situated to the south, east and west of the development site.

- An Arboricultural Report for Development, document ref. 0885D/CJO/2710, dated 27 October 2014
has been prepared by OMC Associates.

- The report contains essential tree data, and sections explaining the Site Constraints, Arboricultural
Implications Assessment and an Arboricultural Method Statement, supported by plans.

- The report assesses the implications of the proposal on the nearby trees - and the affect of nearby
trees on the proposed development.

- The report assesses the condition and value of 18No. individual trees and 1No. group, only one of
which is within the site boundary, a Sycamore (T12 on the schedule). All other trees are on the
neighbouring site but may influence, or be influenced by, the proposed development.

- At 4.2 the report confirms the anticipated affects of the development on existing trees. In addition
to the removal of one self-set sycamore (T12), trimming back of the hornbeams and the Portugal
laurel hedge will be required prior to development and in the future.

- The proposed excavation along the eastern boundary will necessitate suitable specified tree
protection during the construction phase.

- At 5.3 a specification for root pruning is described and liaison with the arboriculturalist is
recommended at all times.

- In the circumstances it would be safer to assume that the arboriculturalist has a monitoring role on
the site prior to commencement of work and as necessary / at critical stages of the contract, where
trees may be vulnerable.

- A Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted which refers to BAA's Safeguarding of
Aerodromes BAA Advice Note 8. Reference is made to the management of grassland and swales,
which is not understood to be applicable to this scheme.

- While this advice may influence the design and detailing of hard and soft landscape features, the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



perceived constraints should not diminish the expectation of, or objectives for, a high quality
landscape design for this site.

- GA & A's drawing No. A115-A1, Proposed Landscape Plan, provides a basic site plan with three
areas reserved for soft landscaping along the front boundary and the rear boundary. A palette of
illustrative / indicative plants is suggested, together with a couple of paving types. Further details of
all hard and soft landscaping can be conditioned.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection subject to the above observations and conditions COM®,
COM7, COMS (with an additional clause specifying on site monitoring by the arboriculturalist), COM9
(parts 1,2,4,5 and 6) COM10.

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

There are no objections to the proposed development of this site in principle, as the existing building
is fairly modern and of little interest.

Whilst the possible impact of the development on the archaeology of the site has not been covered
in the application documents, the site lies within the proposed Heathrow APZ, this been addressed
by GLAAS in their consultation response.

The grade Il listed Sipson House, lies approximately 123m to the east of the site, with an intervening
area of soft landscaping including trees.

The building is at least 2 floors taller than the adjacent buildings, however there are no objections to
the design approach adopted and the submitted Accurate Visual Representations (AVR) indicate
that the proposed building would maintain an appropriate appearance within the street scene.

The AVR also demonstrates how the building will appear within longer views from the Green Belt
and the planning officer should assess this matter against relevant Green Belt Policy.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle a hotel use on this site has been established by virtue of the recently
approvesd scheme for a 4 storey 54 room hotel (application ref:829/APP/2013/1618). The
current scheme is for a larger devlopment for a 91 room hotel.

Policy 3.6 of the London Plan deals with the protection and enhancement of social
infrastructure and states:

"Proposals which would result in a loss of social infrastructure in areas of defined need for
that type of social infrastructure without realist proposals for re-provision should be
resisted. The suitability of redundant social infrastructure premises for other forms of social
infrastructure for which there is a defined need in the locality should be assess before
alternative developments are considered."

The existing premises on site has been vacant for approximately three years, with
evidence provided in support of the previous application that the site has been actively
marketed for over 12months. The details provided of marketing show there had been
significant interest in the site but with very limited expressions of interest in retaining the
existing building or any D1 Use on the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



Based on the combination of both the marketing evidence provided; the distance of the site
from a main residential catchments area; and given the poor state of repair of the building,
it is not considered on balance there is robust sustainable development reasons to resist
the change of use (from D1 use to C1) as assessed against Policy 3.6 of the London Plan.

Policy T4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation will be acceptable in
principle provided:

(i) The development is located within a mixed use area; and

(i) The development is located near or on a primary or secondary road or rail or
underground station; and

(iii) The development does not result in the loss of amenity to neighbours through noise and
other disturbances; and

(iv) Parking to standards adopted by the local planning authority can be met within the
curtilage of the site.

(v) Any on street parking that may be generated can be accommodated without detriment
to the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway safety.

In light of the site's location and the adequate car parking provision (refer to section 7.10
of the report), it is considered the scheme is acceptable in principle, assessed against
Policy T4.

The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that there should be a presumption in
favour of sustainable economic development and that the key priority is the delivery of new
jobs. The application proposals would deliver on these objectives, bringing an estimated 20
full time equivalent jobs on site (plus additional job creation in off site hotel servicing role)
and secure the regeneration of a site that presently is unused and does not presently
positively contribute to the street scene with little prospect that the existing building being
brought back to active life.

According there is no objection to the principle of change of use in planning policy terms
from D1 Use to C1 use.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The application seeks to construct a hotel, therefore residential density is not pertinent to
the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site does not lie within an area of special character or a conservation area. The site
does however lie within the forthcoming Heathrow Archaeological Priority Zone.

Historic England Archaeology Unit (GLAAS) advise that although the application is not
supported by a desk-based assessment or field evaluation, it seems unlikely to me that
such studies would fundamentally alter the understanding of the site's potential, based as it
is on good evidence immediately to the north. Nor is it likely that the site will contain
remains of such importance as to necessitate preservation in-situ. GLASS therefore
considers that the site's archaeological interest can be secured by a suitably worded
condition.

The nearest listed building is the Grade Il Listed Sipson House, which currently houses
Littlebrook Day Nursery), this building is located approximately 123m to the east of the site.
There is also a generous area of soft landscaping and a tree belt located between the
building and the application site. It is considered that the landscaping and separation are
sufficient that the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building would not be adversely affected.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



7.04 Airport safeguarding

The proposal would not conflict with aircraft safeguarding criteria, subject to a bird
hazardous management plan.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The site does not lie in Green Belt. However the land to the north of the site on the opposite
side of Sipson Road is in designated Green Belt.

The National Planning Policy Framework is quite clear that the policies contained within it
relate only to land located within the designated Green Belt and contains no requirements
for the assessment of development which are visible from, but not within, the Green Belt.
This circumstance is the same within the London Plan. The assessment required at
national and regional levels therefore does not equate to the impact on the Green Belt, but
on the normal assessments which would be undertaken for all developments in respect of
character and appearance.

Similary, as the site is not located within the Green Belt Policies OL1, OL2 and OL4 are not
relevant to the assessment of the application.

Policy OL5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states Hillingdon "will normally only permit proposals for development adjacent to or
conspicuous from the Green Belt if it would not injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt
by reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or activities generated."

This policy is in effect similar to the national policy as it does not introduce any
presumptions against development which is visible from the Green Belt, something which
is very common, but requires the authority to take into account the presence of the Green
Belt land as part of the context/character of the area in assessing applications.

In order to enable a thorough assessment of this matter the application has been
accompanied by an Accurate Visual Representations document. This documents sets out
a number of view points from around the site and within the neighbouring Green Belt, from
which before and after images have been provided having regard to an appropriately robust
methodology.

While, the proposed hotel building would rise to 7 storeys, the upper two floors have been
stepped back from the front and side elevations of the lower floors to reduce the perceived
massing of the building. The site is separated from the Green Belt land to the north east by
Sipson Road, a classified A road, and the submitted documentations clearly demonstrates
that the proposal would be viewed in the context of the existing hotel development of a far
greater footprint, which rises up to 5/6 storeys,and surrounds the site to the west, east and
south.

The proposed hotel would constitute new development and would be visible from the Green
Belt, but having regard to the information provided it is not considered that the proposal
would have any detrimental impact on the feeling of openness within the neighbouring
Green Belt, nor would have a negative impact on the visual amenities of the Green Belt.
Accordingly the scheme is considered to comply with Policy OL5 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.06 Environmental Impact

A Geo Environmental Desk Top Study has been submitted in support of the application.
The report highlights where contamination might be present. Although the proposed use is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



not residential, the Council's Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) advise adding a
condition to ensure that some site investigation is carried out. In addition, the site may
require imported top soil for landscaping purposes and a condition is recommended to
ensure the imported soils are independently tested, to ensure they are suitable for use.

Subject to compliance with these conditions, it is considered that the proposed
development accords with the ground condition and contamination policies set out in the
NPPF, London Plan and the Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1 and 2.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to ensure that new development will complement and improve the character and
amenity of the area.

The building would be flanked by existing hotel development of 4 to 6 storey height. The
proposed height of the building at 7 storeys is considered in street scene terms acceptable
given the set back of the upper floors of the proposed building, the street context and the
height of the neighbouring properties.

The scheme seeks to provide enhanced visual interest to the main elevations visible from
the street through the introduction of rectangular shaped infill glazing panels. These infill
patterns are broken up into individual bays around a white rendered frame which would
reduce any risk of the development having a plain monolithic character. Also this elevation
feature provides a welcome opportunity for shadow lines. In addition, the front elevation
would feature a distinctive canelevered front canopy finished with the hotel signage, that
provides further interest to the front elevation.

It is considered that the proposed development would not detract from the character and
amenity of the area, in compliance with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new developments do not have a detrimental
impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers through loss of light,
dominance or loss of privacy.

Given there is no residential development within 100 metres of the site and the nearest
residential dwellings lie on the other side of Sipson Road, it is not considered the scheme
will give rise to any detrimental impact to residential neighbours from loss of light,
overdominance or loss of privacy.

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties. Given the neighboring properties are
hotel developments and the proposed hotel development does not have large internal floor
area allocated for conference or banqueting purposes, it is not considered the scheme will
give cause to noise annoyance to surrounding properties.

There are no adopted planning standards in respect to potential loss of privacy/overlooking
between hotel guest bedrooms.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

As a benchmark, this scheme would comply with the Council's minimum distance to avoid

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



unacceptable overlooking/loss of privacy with no hotel bedrooms from the new
development located within a 45 degree radius, being within 21 metres of hotel bedroom
windows on the neighbouring Park Inn Hotel complex. As such the scheme is considered
acceptable in this respect.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Paragraph 35
of NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should be located and
designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements; create safe
and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians.

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) are concerned with traffic generation, and access to public transport.
Policies AM14 and AM15 are concerned with on-site parking.

TfL is the highway authority for A4 Bath Road, while Hillingdon is responsible for the rest of
the road network in this area. TfL buses operate on Bath Road.

The site is surrounded by the large Park Inn Hotel, which has two vehicle accesses from
Sipson Road, with one of these entrances approximately 50 metres to the north west of the
application site and the other main entrance to the south, approximately 250 metres along
the street. Immediately opposite the site are green fields that are seperated from Sipson
Road by mature hedging. Approximately 60 metres to the south of the proposed new
vehicle entrance to the site is the vehicle entrance to Sipson Court and Sipson House on
the opposite side of Sipson Road, which currently used as a children's day nursery.

Sipson Road is a 30 mph single carriageway 'A' classified highway with double yellow line
waiting restrictions on both sides of the road. The Council's Highway Engineer concurs
with the applicant that Sipson Road is one of the more lightly trafficked sections of Greater
London's 'A'-class road network, being closely paralleled by the M4 Heathrow Spur
Motorway, although it does provide an important local link to Sipson village further to the
north.

The existing single vehicle access point would be replaced by a two vehicle crossovers
from Sipson Road plus a short roadway within the site itself, leading from from one
highway access point

to the other. The 91 bedrooms would be served by 23 on-site car parking spaces, including
3 disabled car parking bays. 20 of the car parking spaces would be located in the
basement which would be served by a pedestrian lift for guests and a vehicle ramp with a
maximum gradient of 1:12. The basement would house 12 secure bicycle spaces.

A Transport Assessment has been submitted in support of this application, which
considers the impact of the proposed development of the site on the local highway and
concludes that sufficient capacity exists to support the proposals. The accompanying Draft
Travel Plan identifies the various measures proposed as part of the application to
encourage sustainable patterns of movement.

The Transport Assessment is supported by tracking diagrams which show that both
guests cars, large refuse vehicles and coaches can access the site from Sipson Road.
The Council's Highway Engineer has no issue with the tracking information provided and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



accepts this is adequate for servicing arrangements.

With regard to the level of car parking provision, the ratio of 1:4.4 spaces per guest room is
compatable with other hotel developments approved by the London Borough of Hillingdon in
the

last 4 years, located nearby and serving Heathrow Airport. Furthermore, the parking
provision is consistent with the Council's adopted maximum parking standards. Therefore
the scheme is considered to comply with Policies AM14 and AM15 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The Council's Highway Officer has been consulted on the application and has carefully
considered the issue of traffic generation, vehicular accesses, the drop off /collection of
guests and the overall layout and raises no objection to the scheme in terms of impact on
the existing highway in accordance with the aims of Policies AM2 and AM7 Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

URBAN DESIGN:
Addressed in Section 7.07 of the report.

ACCESS:
Addressed in Section 7.12 of the report.

SECURITY:
The Metropolitan Police Officer Crime Prevention officer has reviewed the scheme and has
no objection subjection to the attachment of the Secure by Design condition.

7.12 Disabled access

Policies R16 and AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that developments of this type incorporate inclusive
design, as do Policies 7.1 and 7.2 of the London Plan. Further detailed guidance is
provided within the Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

The hotel would be consistent with the London Plan and HDAS Accessibility policy
standards including meeting the minimum provision of accessible bedrooms as a
percentage of the total number of bedrooms. Other features include disabled toilets on
ground floor, lifts from the car park basement to the rest of the hotel and 60 minute fire
refuges on each upper floor.

Subject to an appropriate condition it is considered that the proposal would provide an
inclusive environment for future users in accordance with Policies R16 and AM13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)and Policies 7.1 and
7.2 of the London Plan.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal seeks permission for a hotel, accordingly considerations relating to affordable
or special needs housing are not relevant to the application.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

TREES AND LANDSCAPING
Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and the
provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



The site as it stands is largely devoid of vegetation, albeit there are some trees off-site that
lie close to the south eastern boundary of the site. An accurate site survey has been
submitted with the application which plots trees on and close to the site, the tree species,
and their quality and spread. None of the trees in the vicinity are protected by a Tree
Preservation Order or by Conservation Area designations. The only on-site tree is a
Sycamore that is of 'C' grade and would be lost as a result of the development.

The Council's Landscape Officer considers the sycamore of little merit and with its 'C'
grade has no objection to its removal. With regard to the off site trees the Landscape
Officer is satisfied that with the appropriate tree protection measures in place these trees
can be protected (and neighbouring shrubs) with only marginal encroachment into the root
protection required. Future pruning of the neighbouring hornbeams maybe required to
safeguard natural light to hotel bedrooms and this is considered a feasible approach by the
Landscape Officer.

With regard to the ground floor site layout the scheme provides an improvement over the
existing expanse of hard standing and palisade fencing with details provided of indicative
hard and soft

landscaping. Subject to the relevant planning conditions in respect of landscape
maintenance, tree protection and revisions/further detail on the planting plan, the scheme is
considered to provide a satisfactory landscape arrangement that complies with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

ECOLOGY:

The site is currently almost entirely given over to hardstanding. In view of this and the
safeguarding measures detailing within the application documents in respect to trees and
shrubs on neighbouring sites it is not considered the scheme will have an adverse impact
on the areas ecology.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

London Plan policies 5.16 and 5.17 requires adequate provision of refuse and recycling
facilities for new development and for their location to be appropriate in terms of enabling
ease of collection from the site.

The application is accompanied by a Waste Management, Refuse and Recycling
Statement and plans provides details of a dedicated space within the ground floor of the
building allocated to store the bins for recycling and household & kitchen rubbish generated
by the hotel and the tracking plan provides details for the large refuse vehicles to collect the
waste.

The scheme provides space for 30 euro bins that accords with the Council's capacity
standards for 2/3 star hotels. The bin area is an enclosed area in the ground floor with
access from inside for the member of staff and access from Sipson Road for the refuse
collectors. The store room will have continuous mechanical ventilation. A drop kerb will be
provided for easy movement of the wheelie bins to the refuse vehicles. The owner/occupier
will have a contract with Biffa in place prior to the occupation of the premises. This
statement details a weekly collection early in the

morning.

The level of waste and recycling store provision, its location and means of collection by
refuse vehicles is considered to comply with the requirements of the Council's Waste
Development Team and the Council's Highway Engineer. As such the scheme is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



considered satisfactory and complies with the standards set out in London Plan policies
5.16 and 5.17

Notwithstanding the above it should be noted the hotel ultimately has considerable
discretion over which waste management methods are used on site.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2015), at Policy 5.2. This policy
requires major applications to include a detailed energy assessment. The 2015 London
Plan requires major developments to demonstrate a 35% reduction from a 2013 Building
Regulations compliant development.

The application has been supported by an Energy Statement that is considered
satisfactory to determine the application favourably albeit more information will needed to
be provided by the applicant. This extra information can be handled by planning condition.

Subiject to conditions to secure the installation of measures in accordance with the London
Plan requirements the scheme complies with London Plan Policies 5.3, 5.4 and 5.7.
717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone and no issues relating to flooding have been
identified. London Plan Policies 5.12 and 5.13 require that development proposals should
use

sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless there are good reasons for not doing
so. Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(November 2012) requires that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding.

The scheme would undertake rainwater harvesting including the provision of a ground
storage tank and permeable paving to replace the existing large expanse of non permeable
hard standing. Subject to conditions, the proposal is considered to comply with the
intentions of the Hillingdon Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One and Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) in respect to water management and London Plan policies 5.12
and 5.13.

The Council's Flood Risk/Drainage Officer raises no objection to the scheme, subject to
the application of the relevant SUDS and sustainable water management planning
condition.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit has been consulted on the application and
raises no objection regarding noise or air quality.

With respect of air quality and air quality monitoring, it is recommended that similar
conditions and planning obligations as those secured on the recently approved 54 bedroom
hotel scheme, be imposed, in the event that the current proposal is approved.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

With regard to the points raised by Harmondsworth and Sipson Residents Association:

1) The proposed land use (as a hotel) is considered to comply with relevant planning policy
including Policy T4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012). Furthermore it is noted the site's location set some distance from the centre of any
local residential community means the site does not readily lend itself to a future
community use (D1) accessed either by foot or by public transport, especially as the site is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



not well served by neighbourhood buses.

2) Regarding the concern over flow of traffic on Sipson Road this is dealt with section 7.10
of the report and by the scheme's legal agreement with provision of a Travel Plan.
Sightlines outside the site on Sipson Road are adequate in both directions, there is no
opportunity for permanent car parking on the street (double yellow lines are in place along
Sipson Road) and the road is relatively lightly trafficed, with no great pressure on the road
at peak hours. These views are shared by the Council's Highway Engineer.

7.20 Planning obligations

Should the application be approved, a range of planning obligations would be sought to
mitigate the impact of the development, in line with saved policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The obligations sought are as
follows:

1. Highways: to secure all necessary works

2. The provision of a Travel Plan, including a bond, which shall incorporate Sustainable
Transport Measures such as:

. a hopper bus service

. a Construction Management Plan,

. a Construction Logistics Plan and

. a Service and Delivery Plan.

3. Construction Training: either a financial contribution, or an in-kind scheme delivered
during the construction phase of the development, should be secured (in either event the
'obligation' should be delivered equal to the formula of £2,500 for every £1 million
buildcost)

4. Hospitality Training contributions or in kind scheme to provide apprenticeships and
onthe-job training for young people interested in pursuing a career in the hospitality industn
5. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the site is located in an air quality
management area then a contribution in the sum of £12,500.

6. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal to 5% of the total
cash contributions towards the management and monitoring of the resulting agreement.

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charge would be applicable on the new
floorspace created at a rate of £40 per square metre.

In addition to the Council's S106 contributions and CIL requirements, the Mayor of London's
CIL has introduced a charging system within Hillingdon of £35 per square metre of gross
internal floor area to be paid to the GLA to go towards the funding of Crossrail.

This application is liable for CIL with respect to new floorspace being created.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



There is no objection to the principle of the development involving the change of use of the
site to a hotel.

The general size, height and massing of the proposed building is considered acceptable,
compatable with the height and scale found on the surrounding Park Inn Hotel complex. It is
not considered that the development would have any detrimental impact on the street
scene, upon residential amenity, or upon the setting of the Green Belt land lying opposite.

The budget hotel would primarily serve Heathrow Airport, where most guests will arrive by
public transport or taxi. Consideration has been given to the principal issue of traffic
generation, vehicles servicing the hotel, and guest collection and drop off. These matters
taken together are not considered to have any significant detrimental impact on the existing
highway network or on highway safety, given the sightlines outside the site, the waiting
restrictions on the adjacent highway and the limited number of vehicular movements
anticipated.

The scheme is considered to be visually acceptable and is considered to comply with
relevant London Plan and Hillingdon Local Plan policies accordingly, approval is
recommended subject to appropriate conditions and planning obligations.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

London Borough of Hillingdon's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning
Document (May 2013)

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2008)

London Plan

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



... Cooling Tower
Y v B e
.l

LONDON BOROUGH

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Former Royal British Legion Club
Sipson Road
West Drayton

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Major

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
829/APP/2014/4252 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: .
Page 39 |November 2015 THILLINGDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 211-213 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of the existing 2no. detached dwellings and erection of a two
storey residential development with a lower ground floor and accommodation
within the roof space. The development comprises of 6 x 1 bed flats and 6 x 2
bed flats.

LBH Ref Nos: 70701/APP/2015/3026

Drawing Nos: Viability Assessment
C21 Rev A
C22 Rev A
Arboricultural and Planning Integration Report GHA/DS/1660:1
C12Rev A
C13RevB
C14 Rev A
C15Rev A
C16 Rev A
1027-108_2D
1027-108
Herts and Essex Site Investigation Report Reference 15-17777 Issue 1
Tree Protection Plan
Design and Access Statement
S01
S11
S12
S13

Date Plans Received: 11/08/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/08/2015
Date Application Valid: 27/08/2015
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the two existing dwellings
on these plots and the erection of a two storey building with habitable roofspace and
basement accommodation to create 6 x 2-bedroom flats and 6 x 1-bedroom flats, with
associated parking and amenity space.

The overall design, size, scale, massing, proportions and form of the proposed building
are considered acceptable in the context of the site and the surrounding area. In terms of
the impact of the proposed building on the surrounding occupants, the overall scale and
siting of the building is such that it is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
amenities of the surrounding occupants. The scheme is also considered acceptable in
terms of its impact on the surrounding highway network.

Overall, the application is considered to comply with the councils adopted policies and
guidance and approval is recommended subject to the completion of a S106 agreement
as set out within the recommendation section of the report.

2. RECOMMENDATION
1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



grant planning permission, subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a Section 106 Agreement or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

i) An affordable housing review mechanism

ii) Air Quality Management contribution £12,500;

iii) Construction Training;Training Costs equal to £2500 per £1m build cost plus
£9600 Coordinator costs or the delivery of an in-kind scheme by the developer.
iv)Project Management and Monitoring Sum: a financial contribution equal to 5%
of the total cash contribution.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Councils reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised before the 8th January 2016, or any
other period deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of
Planning and Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of
services and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed
development (in respect of employment, construction training, air quality
management, affordable housing review). The proposals therefore conflicts with
Policy AM2, AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the Councils Planning
Obligations SPG.’

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers C16 Rev A; C15 Rev
A; C14 Rev A; C13 Rev B; C12 Rev A; C22 Rev A; C21 Rev A and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 NONSC Balcony screening

Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, details of the balcony balustrade and privacy
screen between balconies shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

REASON

To protect the privacy of the future occupiers of the development and to ensure that the
balconies have an appropriate appearance in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE24 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(2015).

8 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The windows in the side elevations of the building facing No.215 Swakeleys Road shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

9 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (March 2015) Policy 5.12.

10 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

11 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (March 2015).

12 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations 2010 (2015 Edition). Further 10% of the units
hereby approved shall be designed and constructed in accordance with Part M4(3) of the
Building Regulations 2010 (2015 Edition).

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 and the
Mayor of London's Housing Standards Policy transition Statement May 2015
(Implementation: October 2015).

13 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management

schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people

and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where

appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street

furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.1 (2015) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

4

With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground water courses or a suitable sewer. in respect of
surface water, it is recommended that the application should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage.
When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not
permitted for the removal of groundwater. Where a developer proposes to discharge to a
public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required.
They can be contacted on 0800 009 3921. Reason - to ensure that the surface water
discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the existing sewerage system.

5

Legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of Private Sewers)
Regulations 2011 mean that the sections of pipes you share with your neighbours, or are
situated outside of your property boundary which connect to a public sewer are likely to
have transferred to Thames Water's ownership. Should your proposed building work fall
within 3 metres of these pipes, we recommend you contact Thames Water to discuss
their status in more detail and to determine if a building over/near to agreement is
required. You can contact Thames Water on 0800 009 3921 or for more information
please visit our website www.thameswater.co.uk

6 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

9 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 14 Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours and
do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays or
Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that the
Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information
and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW (Tel. 01895 250190).

1 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central

Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



The application relates to an 1385 square metre, plot of land located on the southern side
of Swakeleys Road. The site is situated approximately 70 metres to the southwest of the
roundabout junction between Swakeleys Road and Harvil Road. To the northeast of the site
is the ingress to a slip road which contains 8 residential properties, Nos. 197 - 207a
Swakeleys Road.

The site relates to Nos. 211 and 213 Swakeleys Road which at present contain two
detached dwellinghouses. Within both plots, the dwellinghouses are set approximately 15-
17 metres back from the front boundary line at their closest point. The ground levels within
the site are sloped running down hill from front to rear, with an overall drop of around 5
metres between the front and rear of the site.

At present, the areas to the front of each house are covered in hardstanding and used for
parking by the current occupants. To the rear of each building is a garden area which
provides the private amenity space for the occupiers of the property.

To the southwest of the application is No.215 Swakeleys Road, a two storey detached
dwelling. The dwellings to the southwest of the application site have a stepped building line,
with each property being set forward of the dwelling to the east. To the northeast of the
application site is a two storey, detached dwelling, No.209 Swakeleys Road, whose front
building line is behind that of the application property.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the two existing dwellings
on these plots and the erection of a two storey building with habitable roofspace and
basement accommodation to create 6 x 2-bedroom flats and 6 x 1-bedroom flats, with
associated parking and amenity space.

The proposed building has been designed to replicate the appearance of two dwellings
within the plot, although they are joined by a glazed link, set back from the front elevations
of the buildings.

The proposal would provide 2 x 1 bedroom flats at lower ground floor level, 3 x 1 bedroom
and 2 x 2 bedroom flats at ground floor level, 1 x 1 bedroom and 3 x 2 bed flats at first floor
level (one of the two bed flats is a duplex unit with the bedrooms on the second floor) and 1
x 2 bedroom flats second floor level. A total of 12 parking spaces, including 1 disabled
space, would be provided on the land in front of the principal elevation, with additional
landscaping also being provided. To the rear of the site would be a terrace for each of the
lower ground, ground and first floor flats with a rear aspect and a shared amenity space.
The amenity space would be set below the ground floor level.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

No.211 Swakeleys Road:
Consent 29591/A/95/1414 in October 1995 for the extension of existing vehicular
crossover by 1.5 metres

No.213 Swakeleys Road:

Consent 24954/B/83/0608 in November 1983 for the residential extension
Consent 24954/A/81/0023 in March 1981 for a garage extension

Consent 24954/78/0496 in June 1978 for a residential extension

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



4. Planning Policies and Standards

HDP4J EBF.Resignation and London Plan
ARgfollowing UK folifies aprcrrissitered LelamBhid MrarPYea?iion, impact on congestion

Part 1 Policies:
AM7

AVBBE1
RipH

AM13

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21

BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

OE1

OE7
H3
HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.3

and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Exierity BomsEiaipEamihpedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

ﬁ%@@&%ﬁ H‘ﬁl@"%‘%@s, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures
Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments
(2015) Climate Change Mitigation

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Parking

(2015) Cycling

(2015) Designing out crime

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 22nd September 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

16 properties were notified of the application and 6 letters (4 in support and 2 objecting) were
received in response, which made the following comments:

Support:

1. Having previously been apprehensive of the flats being erected in Swakeleys Road, consider that
they give a great entrance into the village and improve the run down buildings.

2. Still maintain the appearance of a large detached property and help in regenerating the road

3. Will provide more housing and enhance the area;

4. Support scheme as good standard of accommaodation.

Objection:
1.The windows on the side between Nos. 213 and 215 on the first floor and above will invade the
privacy of rear bedroom, lounge, patio and dining area.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

Here is yet another application for converting two residential houses into apartments next to no. 209
Swakeleys Road (already built). We are worried about this development trend along this main
residential road in Ickenham and refer to M. Meghji Hirani's e-mail of 12.02.15 in connection with p/a
61646/APP/2014/4363 277 Swakeleys Road giving us some guidelines concerning flat
redevelopments, i.e. "The redevelopment of more than 10% of properties on a residential street is
unlikely to be acceptable, including the houses which have been converted into flats or other forms
of housing. On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should be taken
as a midpoint of a 1km length of road to be assessed."

In our opinion it is a MASSIVE undesirable, inappropriate ribbon development of a succession of flats
in an otherwise previously residential road of large detached houses, compounding the undesirable
effect that Flats at No 209 have already had on the street scene in both Swakeleys Road and Roker
Park Avenue.

We should also stress the importance of firm building Control aspects over the proposed basement
developments for the safety and security of adjoining properties.

So far along this stretch of the street we have to our knowledge the following new apartments
209 Swakeleys Road 38490/APP/2013/3223 already built

226 Swakeleys Road 21277/APP/2014/889 already built

228 Swakeleys Road 11246/APP/2015/827 already built

227 Swakeleys Road 61646/APP/2015/1347 Various applications - all refused so far.

With regard to the proposed design of the new development, we are concerned about the large
expanse of crown roof, which would not be a feature of the area nor an original roof, and also in
general the design, scale and appearance of the proposed building(s).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



We object to the proposal and are completely in the hands of your Planning Team with their greater
expertise and facilities, and trust they will take our points into consideration to arrive at the correct
decision.

THAMES WATER

Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of a
developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground water courses or a suitable sewer. in
respect of surface water, it is recommended that the application should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is
proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal
of groundwater. Where a developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from
Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0800 009 3921.
Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the
existing sewerage system.

Legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations
2011 mean that the sections of pipes you share with your neighbours, or are situated outside of your
property boundary which connect to a public sewer are likely to have transferred to Thames Water's
ownership. Should your proposed building work fall within 3 metres of these pipes, we recommend
you contact Thames Water to discuss their status in more detail and to determine if a building
over/near to agreement is required. You can contact Thames Water on 0800 009 3921 or for more
information please visit our website www.thameswater.co.uk

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure capacity, we would not
have any objection to the above planning application.

Water comments:

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water Company. For
your information the address to write to is - Affinity Water Company The Hub, Tamblin Way, Hatfield,
Herts, AL10 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

Internal Consultees

TREES
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) / Conservation Area: NA

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38: There are several mature
trees within the vicinity of the proposals; the submitted tree report outlines an adequate level of
protection however, further information is required to clarify how the change in levels between the
no-dig construction and the surrounding land will be addressed.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES8
(implementation) and RES9 (1 and 2).

Note: This report is based on a desktop appraisal.

HIGHWAYS
a. The site has very poor public transport accessibility (PTAL=1b).

b. 12 car parking spaces are proposed for the 12 units proposed comprising of 6 x 1bed and 6 x 2
bed dwellings. This level of car parking provision is acceptable.

c. Parking bay numbered 6 would conflict with the kerb build out at the entrance to the adjoining new
building. It is recommended that parking bays 6-10 be re-sited away from the building to address this

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



matter.

d. The existing crossovers at No 211 and 213 should be reinstated as footway and the developer will
be responsible for the cost of these works including the formation of a new centrally located
vehicular crossover.

There are no highway objections to the proposals.

OFFICER COMMENTS: The plans have been amended to relocate parking spaces 6-10 further to
the north west, so as to ensure that space 6 is not obstructed by the kerb around the building.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT
From our planning GIS browser | can see the development sits in Flood Zone 1.

From the submitted plans | can see the developers intend to use semi permeable hard standing to
the front of the property, gravel paths, soft landscaping and plan to use an Aco channel to control
surface water run off from site which is all really great.

| see from document: "Akaal Associates Ltd, 7th August 2015.010/JC Design and access statement
Planning application" in Section 12.7 information on dual flush WC's, rainwater discharge for WC's,
garden irrigation/external cleaning & info on Suds will be provided at the technical design stage,
subject to a forthcoming planning consent."

For me to make an informed decision | would need to see that information or put on our Suds
Condition 2

CONSERVATION

Whilst theses two houses do not lie within a particularly sensitive location in terms of designated
historic assets, there are a few design points that should be considered with regard to this proposal:
- lack of soft landscape and particularly tree planting within the proposed frontage parking area

- the western block needs to be set back behind the building line of no 215 to maintain the existing
"stepped" building line of the street frontage

- the windows should have some sort of division, this seems to show on the CGI images but not on
the drawings

- ideally, the 2 linked blocks should have some architectural differences in their street elevations, to
create a level of design variety that reflects the existing character of the street and to make this look
more like two buildings as opposed to one large structure, for example, a different porch design

OFFICER COMMENTS - The revised plans received do incorporate additional soft landscaping
within the front of the site, and issues relating to this and the siting and design of the building will be
addressed within the relevant sections of the report.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that one of the core
principles of the document is the "effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed (brownfield land)."

Policy H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan states that the loss of residential accommodation will
only be permitted if it is replaced within the boundary of the site. An increase in residential
accommodation will be sought.

The development proposes the demolition of the existing family dwellings and the erection

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

of a building containing 12 flats. The development is considered an acceptable reuse of a
brownfield site and would represent an increase in residential accommodation, in
accordance with the NPPF and Policy H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
Therefore, the development is considered acceptable in principle.

Of relevance to the consideration of the principle of redevelopment of the site is paragraph
3.3 of the HDAS 'Residential Layouts', which states that:

"The redevelopment of large numbers of sites in close proximity to each other is unlikely to
be acceptable, including large numbers of redevelopments on any one street. The
redevelopment of more than 10% of properties on a residential street is unlikely to be
acceptable, including the houses which have been converted into flats or other forms of
housing. On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should
be taken as the midpoint of a 1km length of road to be assessed."

Having regard to Swakeleys Road, the Council has assessed the number of houses that
have been converted, over a 1km length (using the site as the mid point for analysis). The
Council identified 3 properties (5 including the application site), where consent has been
granted/implemented for the conversion of the buildings. There are 92 properties within
500m each way of the application site, and therefore, the redevelopment of this site, would
not exceed the 10% threshold sought by the policy.

Density of the proposed development

The proposed development would have density scores of 87 units per hectare and 297
habitable rooms per hectares. Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (March 2015) requires
developments in suburban areas with a PTAL score of 1 to have density scores of between
40 - 65 units per hectare and 150 - 200 habitable rooms per hectare. The proposed
development is above the requirement for units per hectare and threshold for habitable
rooms. However, density is only one indicator for the acceptance of the scheme and other
considerations such as impact to the character of the area, internal floor areas and
external amenity space would carry far more weight.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
archaeological priority area and the building is not Listed or Locally Listed.
Airport safeguarding

There would be no airport safeguarding concerns relating to the proposed development.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves
the amenity and character of the area.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

In terms of the layout and siting of the development, whilst the development essentially
consists of one building, the architect has retained the character of the built form in this
area through the design, with two distinct buildings attached by a glazed link being
proposed. The siting, design and form of the proposed building is such that the stepped
front building line is maintained. The comments of the Conservation Officer in respect of
the set back of the building adjacent to No. 215 are noted. However as the proposed
building aligns with No. 215, the substantial setback of the development from the highway
and stepped appearance of the remainder of the proposed building, it is considered in this
instance that the siting of the building within the site is acceptable and would not have a
detrimental impact on the pattern of development in the wider area.

The proposed building consists of an s-shaped building, which has allowed for traditional
roof forms to be used over the building, and resulted in the removal of any crown roof
section. The stepped building line has also reduced the overall bulk of the building.

The building has maintained a separation distance of 1.5 metres to the side boundary lines
of the site to meet the requirements of Policy BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

Whilst the width of the building has increased significantly compared to the existing
dwellings on the site, the overall width of the building would be in keeping with other
dwellings within Swakeleys Road and not appear so wide so as to dominate its setting to
an unacceptable degree.

The depth of the building has been reduced from the initial submission so as to reflect the
proportions and scale of the adjacent and existing buildings on the plot. Similarly, the
proposed height and form of the roof would be comparable to those properties adjacent. It
is considered that the overall scale and massing of the proposed building, although
significantly larger than the existing buildings within the site, would not appear so large as
to dominate or appear out of character with the scale and form of other buildings within the
road.

In terms of the design approach towards these buildings, the scheme has been designed
so that the buildings retain the appearance of two dwellinghouses within the site.
Development within this road is very varied in its design, and the materials and finish
proposed are not considered to appear out of keeping with general design approach within
the road. The Conservation Officer has requested that the buildings retain some type of
architectural differences. This has been considered in relation to the site, however as this
is a redevelopment of the site to erect one building, and the materials and design, in
keeping with development within the surrounding area, no objection is raised to this
approach.

Overall the proposed development is considered to have an acceptable impact on the
surrounding area and would comply with Part 1 Policy BE1 and Part 2 Policies BE13,
BE15, BE19 & BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. Generally,
15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum
of 21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied to
new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant loss
of residential amenity.

To the southwest of the application site is No.215 Swakeleys Road, a two storey detached
dwelling which is set forward of the location of the proposed building. The proposed two
storey elements of the building and terraces would not breach the 45 degree guideline
when taken from this neighbouring occupier. The neighbour has raised concern with
regards to overlooking to the rear windows and garden of this dwelling. Whilst there are
windows proposed in the side elevation of the proposed building, these are either
secondary windows to habitable rooms or serve non habitable rooms. The Council would
therefore recommend that a condition be added to any consent to ensure that these were
obscurely glazed so as avoid undue levels of overlooking to this occupant.

The existing ground level does not drop significantly until after the rear elevation of the
proposed building. Therefore, the single storey element would not be built on higher ground
than the neighbouring dwelling. Whilst the single storey element would extend past the rear
elevation of the neighbouring occupier, the proposed development would be sufficiently
distance to ensure no significant harm would occur to this neighbouring occupier. It is also
noted that the existing dwelling on the site at No. 213 has an existing single storey and first
floor extension on the boundary with this neighbour that extends 2 metres at first floor level
and a further 4 metres at ground floor level, beyond the rear elevation of No. 215. The
proposed development is set 2 metres away from the party boundary and although extends
marginally beyond what is existing at the site, the increased distance of the proposed
building from the party boundary would reduce the bulk and massing of the building when
viewed from No. 215. It should also be noted that the proposed development would be due
north of No0.215 Swakeleys Road, ensuring it would never block the daylight received into
this neighbouring dwelling.

In terms of the impact of the development on No. 209 Swakeleys road, the proposed
development would not extend past the rear elevation of the single storey rear extension on
No.209. At first/second floor level, the proposed scheme does extend approximately 2.5
metres beyond the rear elevation of No. 209, however, the proposals would not breach the
45 degree guideline from this neighbouring occupier. The overall scale and massing of the
building adjacent to this occupier has been reduced significantly from the original
submissions and is not considered to appear unduly overbearing or visually intrusive when
viewed from the flats within No. 209. Therefore, no significant loss of residential amenity

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



would occur to the occupiers of this neighbouring dwelling through loss of light or loss of
outlook and the proposed development would comply with Policy BE20 & BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Terrace areas are proposed at first floor level to serve a number of the flats. The siting and
size of these has been reduced significantly from the original submissions so as to ensure
that no undue overlooking occurs to the adjacent occupiers. Subject to conditions to
secure appropriate privacy screening to these balconies, the siting of these terraces is
considered acceptable and to not result in an unacceptable level of overlooking to the
adjacent occupiers.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

INTERNAL FLOOR AREAS AND QUALITY OF ACCOMMODATION

The London Plan (March 2015) in Policy 3.5 sets out the minimum floor areas required for
proposed residential units in order to ensure that they provide an adequate standard of
living for future occupants. This scheme provides a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed units, of varying
sizes. The London Plan standards for the accommodation proposed is as follows:

1-bed 2-person 50m2

2-bed 3-person 61m2

2-bed 4-person 70m2

The floor areas of all of the flats have been checked and exceed the standards as set out
above. The proposal would thereby be provided with sufficient internal floor area and would
provide an acceptable living condition for future occupiers.

In terms of the quality of the accommodation proposed, the Council have sought a number
of alterations to the internal layout so as to ensure that the flats have adequate outlook and
privacy. The ground floor units have been reconfigured in such a way so as to ensure that
the bedroom areas are not immediately adjacent to the main entrance to the flats and car
parking spaces where possible. Defensive planting is also proposed so as to provide
additional screening for these occupants, and further details of this will be sought by
condition.

The ground floor windows to the rear would have private terraces and be set at a higher
ground level than the ground floor amenity space, ensuring no loss of privacy would occur
and the windows in the side elevation would be obscure glazed. The first floor terrace
areas to the rear have been reduced in size and screening is proposed around parts
adjacent to habitable room windows. The main outlook for these terraces is to the rear
garden and therefore the relationship of these spaces with habitable rooms within the flats,
is considered acceptable.

In terms of light and outlook from each of the flats, the revision of the scale and layouts of
the flats has sought to improve and address Officers previous concerns. It is considered
that the proposed development would have an adequate outlook and source of natural light,
therefore complying with Policy BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and
Policy 3.5 the London Plan (2015).

EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE

The HDAS Residential Layouts requires a 1 bedroom flat and 2 bedroom flat to be provided
with 20 and 25 square metres of communal amenity space, respectively. A communal
garden area of 285 square metres would be provided with a further 98 square metres
provided in the form of private terraces. Therefore, more than the required 270 square
metres of external amenity space would be provided, in accordance with Policy BE23 of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

London Plan policy 6.1 seeks to ensure that the need for car use is reduced and Table 6.2
sets out the parking requirements for developments.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The proposed development would provide 12 parking spaces for the 12 flats, which would
comply with the Council's adopted car parking standards. One crossover and access has
been retained and will be realigned to ensure that sufficient space is provided for cars to
exit and enter the site at the same time, to avoid traffic waiting on the highway. The
increase in the number of units would not materially harm the traffic flows in the
surrounding area. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to comply with
Policies AM2, AM7 & AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

The proposed development would provide a cycle store with space for 12 cycles in the rear
garden of the site in accordance with the Council's standards and Policy AM9 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

See sections 7.07 and 7.09.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The London Plan sets the policy framework for affordable housing delivery in London.
Policies 3.10-3.13 requires that Boroughs should seek the maximum reasonable amount of
affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mixed-use
schemes, having regard to their affordable housing targets.

The application exceeds the threshold of 10 units and above, and therefore on site
provision of affordable housing would be expected on such a scheme. The applicants have
not provided any on site affordable housing and a Financial Viability Report has been
submitted with the application.

In order to establish the level of planning contributions and affordable housing that can be
supported by the proposed development the Council will take into account the economic
viability of a scheme and the most effective use of public subsidy, as well as any particular
costs associated with the development of the site. In such cases, the Council will
request that the developer provides a financial appraisal of the scheme so that a fair
contribution can be agreed.

In this case, it is stated by the applicant that the provision of 35% affordable housing and
Hillingdon and Mayoral CIL compared with the construction costs, would render the
development 'unviable'. Overall, there is little doubt that this Financial Viability Appraisal
presents a reasoned case for no affordable housing currently.

It is however recommended that a review mechanism is secured for the site. Firstly before
the construction starts, if that does not occur within two years of consent, and secondly on
occupation of 85% of the proposed units, at which time actual costs and values will be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

available. Should value increases and/or cost savings arise, after a 20% profit margin is
achieved, then additional financial contributions towards the shortfall in affordable housing
would be required.

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

There are several mature trees within the vicinity of the proposals and the scheme has
been accompanied by a tree report and tree protection plan. The submitted information has
been reviewed by the Councils Tree Officer, who is satisfied that the submitted tree report
outlines an adequate level of protection. However, further information is required to clarify
how the change in levels between the no-dig construction and the surrounding land will be
addressed.

There are also concerns with regards to the amount of hardstanding proposed within the
front parking area. Whilst the plans have been amended to try and address these
concerns, a landscaping condition is recommended for any consent to ensure that a
suitable landscaping scheme is proposed for the site.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The application has been accompanied by a detailed Sustainability Assessment which
includes an Energy Statement. This outlines that the scheme will investigate the possibility
of energy saving measures such as PV panels. The report also concludes that the scheme
will comply with the London Plan policies in terms of the Carbon Dioxide emission
reduction.

Overall, it is considered that the scheme will meet with the requirements and no objection
is raised on sustainability grounds.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The scheme incorporates the use of semi-permeable hard standing to the front of the
property, gravel paths, soft landscaping, and plans to use an Aco channel to control
surface water run off from site. No objection is raised to the scheme from a flooding or
drainage perspective and a condition is recommended to secure further information on
SUDs proposed.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

No noise or air quality issues for consideration.
Comments on Public Consultations

Ickenham Residents Association have raised concerns with regards to the addition of a
basement within the development. Given the nature of the topography of the site, it
naturally slopes from the front to the rear, and there is a difference of approximately 5
metres depth between the front and rear elevations. The lower ground floor of the property
is therefore not akin to a standard basement development and involves marginal
excavations to the site at the rear to utilise the natural drop in ground levels.

In terms of the safety and construction of the development, this would be overseen by an
Approved Building Control Inspector and would therefore be covered under separate
legislation.

Planning obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



As of 1st August 2014, the Council's CIL would become effective which replaces a number
of S106 requirements. Planning Obligations are still relevant for securing the provision of
Affordable Housing, Air Quality Improvements, Employment training provision and open
space and recreation.

Given the size of the development proposed, the scheme would be expected to provide
35% of the housing proposed as affordable housing. This provision is sought on site,
except in exceptional circumstances.

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
requires that where developments generate the need for additional facilities, financial
contributions will be sought.

The proposed development is generates requirements for planning obligations in respect
of:

* Construction Training: Training Costs equal to £2500 per £1m build cost plus £9600
Coordinator costs or the delivery of an in-kind scheme by the developer.
* Affordable Housing review mechanism
* Air Quality Monitoring: £12,500
* Project Management & Monitoring Fee: 5% of total cash contributions.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration with this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The overall design, size, scale, massing, proportions and form of the proposed building are
considered acceptable in the context of the site and the surrounding area. In terms of the
impact of the proposed building on the surrounding occupants, the overall scale and siting
of the building is such that it is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
amenities of the surrounding occupants. The scheme is also considered acceptable in
terms of its impact on the surrounding highway network.

The scheme is thereby considered to comply with the Councils adopted policies and
guidance.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2015

The Mayor's London Housing Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

SPD 'Planning Obligations' July 2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

211-213 Swakeleys Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
70701/APP/2015/3026

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Major

Page 64

Date:
November 2015

™ILLINGDON

LONODN




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address IMPERIAL HOUSE VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Construction of an A1 discount food store with associated car parking and
landscaping on the site of the former Imperial House. External refurbishment
of Units 1 and 2.

LBH Ref Nos: 5039/APP/2014/3715

Drawing Nos: 12998/T/01-02
12998/T/02-02
3096 302
3096 305 Rev. F
3096 306 Rev. E
3096 307 Rev. E
3096 308 Rev. D
Draft Design and Access Statement
Application Covering Lettel
Car Park Initial/spill Light Levels Plar
Flood Risk Sequential Test, November 2014
3096 301B
Tree Constraints Plan
Tree Survey to BS5837 - Unit 1, Victoria Roac
3096 304 Rev. Q
3096 304 Rev. Q (with autotrack)
Technical Note, October 2015, dated 14/10/1&
Technical Note No. 4, October 2015, dated 28/10/1¢
Response to London Borough of Hillingdon Highway Officer Comments,
April 2015
13/0917/TK19 Rev. B
13/0917/TK18 Rev. B
13/0917/TK17 Rev. B
Highway Consultant's email dated 29/5/1£
Car Park Lighting Proposal Report, dated 16/10/14
Flood Risk Assessment, October 2014
Foul Drainage Assessment, October
Transport Assessment, October 2014
LIDL 18941-11¢
Draft Travel Plan, October 2014
Phase 1 Preliminary Geoenvironmental Risk Assessment
Planning and Retail Statement, October 2014
Lidl letter dated 14/1/1¢
Air Quality Assessment
Arbtech AIA 0
Energy Statement, Rev. 2 dated 26/9/14
Technical Note 2: Response to Highway Officer Comments (23rd April
2015), May 2015

Date Plans Received: 17/10/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 08/05/2015
Date Application Valid: 17/10/2014 10/11/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



28/10/2015
17/04/2015
29/05/2015
17/10/2014
14/01/2015

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permission to demolish the vacant single storey Imperial House,
last used as a car showroom within the Stonefield Way IBA and erect a single storey
2,046sgm. gross external area discount Class A1 retail foodstore for use by Lidl and the
external refurbishment of 2 adjoining retail units, together with associated car parking,
access alterations and landscaping.

This application is a re-submission of a similar scheme (App. No.5039/APP/2014/143
refers) which was refused permission on 11/4/14.

No objections are raised to the loss of the building, which has little architectural or
historical merit and is in a poor state of repair or to the loss of employment land within the
IBA given that the site was (i) not previously used to provide traditional industrial
employment, being a sui generis use, (ii) has been marketed since 2006 but no interest
has been forthcoming and (iii) the discount retailer is expected to provide approximately 30
jobs.

The site is in an out-of-centre location, but the proposal has been supported by a
sequential assessment which now adequately demonstrates that there are no sequentially
preferable sites, either within or on the edge of surrounding centres.

Furthermore, the revised proposal would not adversely impact upon surrounding
residential occupiers, would be resilient to flood risk and would not increase the risk of
flooding elsewhere. The proposal's impact upon trees and the proposed landscaping
scheme are also acceptable.

The Council's Highway Engineer has been involved in protracted discussions with the
developer in terms of resolving the traffic generation, parking and servicing and delivery
arrangements at the site. Following review of the traffic information by the Highway
Engineer, a number of further technical notes have been submitted, including additional
junction modelling, together with a revised layout plan which re-sites some of the blue/
brown badge and parent/child parking spaces away from the service delivery route
through the car park. The Highway Engineer raises no further objections to the scheme,
subject to a S106/S278 Agreement to deal with the highway works, a Green Travel Plan
and conditions.

The S106 Agreement would also include a commensurate package of planning benefits to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



offset the adverse impacts of the scheme.

As such, it is considered that this revised scheme has overcome the reasons for refusal
of the previous scheme and is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to the following:

A) The Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

1. Highways: S278/S38 for highways works to include the reconfiguration of the
Stonefield Way/ Victoria Road (east) junction, the stopping up of the existing
service road and the new vehicular access onto Victoria Road, in accordance with
the details first to be submitted and agreed in writing by the LPA,

2. Green Travel Plan in accordance with TfL guidance to include a £20,000 bond,

3. Service Management Plan

4. Tree planting on public highway, to include a licence agreement (to plant and
maintain the landscape on highway land)

5. £6,348 carbon tax contribution

6. £12,500 air quality mitigation/monitoring,

7. Construction training

- Training Cost: £2500 per £1m build cost +

- Coordintaor costs: 3256/7500 x £71,675 = £31,116.50,

8. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: equal to 5% of total cash contributions

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the S106 Agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised before the 18th December 2015, or
any other period deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse the application for the following
reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide a commensurate package of planning benefits
to maximise the transport, environmental and social benefits, namely highway
improvements, tree planting, construction training and project management of the
scheme to the community. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



F) That should the application be approved, the applicant pay the required levy on
the additional floorspace actually created.

G) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COmM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 3096 304 Rev. Q,
3096 305 Rev. F, 3096 306 Rev. E, 3096 307 Rev. E, 3096 308 Rev. D and LIDL 18941-
11g and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2015).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Reduction in energy use and renewable technology installation [Energy Statement]
Flood resilience measures, including flood evacuation plan [Flood Risk Assessment]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies 5.2 and 5.12 of
the London Plan (March 2015).

4 COm7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Covered and secure parking for 11 long stay and 23 short stay bicycles, together with
provision for 5 motorcycle spaces

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including details that demonstrate that 10% active and 10%
passive provision of all parking spaces are served by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (March 2015).

7 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

8 NONSC Food Sales Floor Area

The net sales are of the proposed Lidl store shall not exceed 1,286sqm unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local planning Authority.

REASON

In order to conform with the terms of the application, to ensure that the viability and vitality
of local shopping centres is not prejudiced and to ensure there highway safety is not
prejudiced, in accordance with the NPPF (March 2012), Policy 4.7 of the London Plan
(March 2015), Policy E5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012) and Policies AM7(i) and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



9 COM12 Use Within Same Use Class

The two existing retail units on site shall be used solely for the sale of the following non-
food goods: DIY articles, garden materials and goods, building and decorating equipment
and related goods, pet sales and associated goods, furniture, furnishings, flooring and
carpets, vehicle maintenance products and related accessories and electrical goods and
for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class A1 of the Schedule to the Town
and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987).

REASON

In order to conform with the terms of the application and to ensure that the viability and
vitality of local shopping centres is not prejudiced, in accordance with the NPPF (March
2012), Policy 4.7 of the London Plan (March 2015), and Policy E5 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

10 COM14 No additional internal floorspace

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(or any others revoking and re-enacting this provision with or without modification), no
additional internal floorspace shall be created in excess of that area expressly authorised
by this permission.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and to ensure that adequate parking and loading facilities can be provided on the site, in
accordance with Policy AM7(ii) and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

1 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and London Plan (March 2015) Policy 5.12.

12 NONSC Piling Method Statement

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and
type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried
out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface
sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any piling must be undertaken in
accordance with the terms of the approved piling method statement.

Reason:

In order to safeguard the underground sewerage utility infrastructure which would be in
close proximty to the proposed works from the potential impacts of piling in accordance
with Policy 5.14 of the London Plan (March 2015).

13 NONSC Noise level from plant/ machinery

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be
at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise
affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP policies (November 2012).

14 COM22 Operating Hours
The premises shall not be used except between:-

07:00 to 23:00 hours Monday to Saturdays and 10:00 to 18:00 hours on Sundays and
Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

15 NONSC Delivery Hours

There shall be no deliveries or collections at the site between the hours of of 17:00 to
19:00 hours on Mondays to Fridays.

REASON

To minimise vehicular and pedestrian conflict and to safeguard the free flow of traffic on
the adjoinig highway during the evening peak period in the interests of highway safety, in
accordance with Policy AM7(i) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

16 Com27 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently
retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may
share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015)

17 COM29 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012); and

To protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3.

18 COM30 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate
all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any
such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

19 NONSC Soil Testing

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall
be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall
be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for
gardens and/ or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when
using this condition.

Reason

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

20 Oom7 Refuse and Open-Air Storage

Details of on-site refuse and recycling storage (including any open-air storage facilities) for
waste material awaiting disposal, including details of any screening, shall be indicated on
plans to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Such facilities shall
be provided prior to occupation of the development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that visual amenities are not prejudiced, in accordance with policy OE3 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

21 NONSC External Storage

No display, placing or storage of goods, materials, plant or equipment shall take place
other than within the buildings unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON

In the interests of amenity and to ensure that external areas are retained for the purposes
indicated on the approved plans in accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

22 NONSC Trolley Trap Details

Prior to the commencement of use of the new food store, a trolley trap(s) to prevent
shopping trolleys leaving the site shall be implemented and thereafter retained for so long
as the development remains in existance.

REASON

To prevent the abandonment of shopping trolleys in the surrounding area and associated
anti-social behaviour, to the detriment of Health and Safety and the character and
appearance of the area in accordance with Policies BE13 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF2 NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

LPP 2.17 (2015) Strategic Industrial Locations

LPP 4.7 (2015) Retail and town centre development

LPP 4.8 (2015) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and
related facilities and services

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.10 (2015) Urban Greening

LPP 5.11 (2015) Green roofs and development site environs

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 6.10 (2015) Walking

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 6.14 (2015) Freight

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



BE25
BE38

OE1
OE3
OES8
R17

LE2
LE4

AM1

AM2
AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
LDF-AH

SPD-NO
SPD-PO

SPG-AQ
SPG-CS

3

neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking
distance based catchment area - public transport accessibility and
capacity considerations

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002
Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance,
adopted July 2004

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

4

Thames Water recommend that petrol/oil interceptors be fitted in all car
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol/oil
interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses.

5

As regards condition 12, the applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer
Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the details of the piling method statement.

6

Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws 1981,
the prior written consent of the Environment Agency is required for any proposed works or
structures in, under, over or within 8 metres of the culverted main river.

7

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with
a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead and take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

8

Induction loops should be specified to comply a term contract planned for their
maintenance.

9

Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops
in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

10

Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to
ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with

epilepsy.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms a 1.01ha, roughly 'L'-shaped site located within an industrial/
commercial area on the southern side of Victoria Road. The site forms the western corner
of Victoria Road's eastern junction with Stonefield Way, a road which forms a one-way
route around three sides of a block within the industrial estate, with vehicles entering
Stonefield Way from its eastern junction before re-emerging onto Victoria Road at its
western junction, some 120m to the west of the application site. The commercial units on
this side of Victoria Road are mainly in use for retail purposes, with residential properties
opposite.

The eastern part of the site comprises two retail units within a detached single storey
building, one of the units is occupied by Bensons for Beds, with the other unit being vacant,
although it was last occupied by Comets (referred to as Units 1 and 2). There is a large
customer car park at the front of this building which serves both units and is accessed
from Stonefield Way. Fronting this part of the site is a wide grass verge. The western part
of the site comprises Imperial House, a vacant and somewhat dilapidated building which is
now boarded up and was last used as a car showroom. This part of the site is fronted by a
service road from which the former car showroom's customer car park at the front of the
building is accessed.

Traffic on Victoria Road is segregated by central island road markings and there is a zebra
crossing immediately in front of the eastern part of the site.

The application site forms part of the Stonefield Way IBA and has a PTAL score of 1b. It is
also located within Flood Zone 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing Imperial Garage building and erection of a
single storey Class A1 discount Lidl food store with associated car parking, access
arrangements and landscaping on the site, together with the external refurbishment of
Units 1 and 2.

The proposed new building would have a similar siting to the existing Imperial House, with a
gross internal floor area (GIA) of 1,970 sq.m (2,046 sq.m gross external area (GEA)) and
sales area of 1,286 sq.m. The design of the building would incorporate a mono-pitch roof,
which would have a maximum height of 7.75m along its eastern flank, reducing to 4.75m
on its western side elevation. Customer and delivery/service access to the building would
be from the front, with the customer entrance to the store being on the eastern side of the
building and the servicing/warehouse area would be on the western side. The store would
include a bakery in a flat roofed single storey addition/extension on the east side of the
building. The building would have a full height glazed shopfront with white painted render on
the lower side and rear walls with metallic cladding above and an aluminium panelled roof.
The existing retail units would retain their lower brick walls but be re-clad above to match
the new store.

The proposed building and its siting is identical to the previously refused scheme, with the
only exception being very minor changes to the internal layout of the staff/warehousing
area. The main change would be to the external layout, with a new two way direct access
being provided from Victoria Road on the site's western boundary in addition to the existing
but widened access from Stonefield Way. All the car parking space on the front would still
be combined into a single car park, but the overall number of spaces would now total 104
spaces as opposed to the previously proposed 108 spaces, although this overall provision

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



would now include 9 dual use blue/brown badge holders spaces compared to the
previously proposed 7 spaces (4 parent/child spaces remain). The pedestrian route across
the car park from Victoria Road has been moved to the east and would now be directly
outside the store entrance. Following officer advice, a revised plan has also been
submitted, which re-sites 4 blue/brown badge spaces and the 4 parent/child spaces, sited
close to the manoeuvring space for delivery vehicles further to the east, on the opposite
side of the pedestrian access route. 10 cycle storage spaces would be provided beneath
the store's front canopy with 3 motorcycle spaces within the car park. Additional
landscaping, including tree planting has been provided along the site's road frontages and
within the car parking area. The service road in front of the western part of the site would
be removed and the highway verge extended. The proposals incorporate the previously
permitted alteration to Stonefield Way, converting a section of Stonefield Way back to a
two-way operation between the site access and Victoria Road (as originally granted by
planning ref 41266/APP/2012/2939) with various alterations to the kerb alignment. Details
of a lighting scheme for the car park are also included.

The opening hours of the store would be from 07:00 to 23:00 hours Monday to Saturdays
and 10:00 to 18:00 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

The application is supported by the following documents:-

Design and Access Statement:

This provides the background to the application, describes the site and its surroundings
and the development proposals. The statement advises that the proposals will enhance the
food retail offer in the South Ruislip area and will provide valuable local employment. The
building would also be of an appropriate scale and design and the proposed alterations to
the access / egress will transform the economic viability of the application site, re-generate
a site which has a decidedly run-down appearance and the economic activity generated
will assist in efforts to secure a new operator for the currently empty unit formerly occupied
by Comet. Also, the detailed design of the building will employ sustainable methods and the
proposals involve an inclusive approach being taken to accessibility.

Planning and Retail Statement:

This provides an introduction to the proposals and describes the site, its planning history
and the development proposals and includes a comparison between the existing and
proposed floor space. The planning policy framework is then described and the report goes
on to consider the appropriateness of the release of the site from employment use,
including the prospect of industrial/warehousing use of Imperial Garage in the future (noting
the lack of interest shown to marketing activity and various reports/studies that indicate a
surplus supply of industrial land in Hillingdon) as compared to the economic benefits of the
proposed scheme. The report goes on to consider the retail impact of the scheme,
following NPPF guidance and describes the assessment methodology. Results are
described, with a health check assessment of surrounding local and town centres. The
report then goes on to consider the sequential test and evaluates a number of in centre,
edge of centre and then out of centre sites in and around the surrounding centres and the
report concludes that there are no suitable, available and viable sites which are sequentially
preferable. The report goes on to outline other planning considerations raised by this
application and the various reports that have been submitted to assess them. The public
consultation undertaken on the proposals are described and conclusions reached.

Transport Assessment:
This provides the background to the report, describes relevant planning history, including
the refusal of a similar proposal, noting that the current proposal now includes direct

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



access from Victoria Road and summarises the advice given in relation to a subsequent
pre-application enquiry. Relevant national, regional and local planning policy as it relates to
transportation issues are then assessed and the site and surrounding highway network
conditions are described. Baseline transport data and accident data are assessed, as is
the accessibility of the site by non-car modes. The proposed development is then
described, together with the proposed access arrangements. Car and cycle parking
standards are discussed and delivery arrangements are considered. Development trip
generation is then analysised, comparing the permitted use of the site with that of the
proposed development during peak hours and distributed between the two proposed
access points. The development impacts upon junction capacity are then assessed. The
report concludes by stating that the development would not give rise to any adverse
transport impacts and is consistent with relevant planning policy.

Technical Note - Response to LBH Highway Officer Comments, April 2015, issued 15/4/15:
This 15 page document provides a detailed response to the initial response on this scheme
from the Highway Engineer. This seeks to clarify the floorspace figures in terms of the 'fall
back' position, provides a response to the concern raised as regards delivery vehicle
movements within the customer car parking area, makes a comparison with other Lidl
stores and provides parking survey results to address the Highway Officer's concern as
regards the overall number of parking spaces to serve the development and the
accumulated impact of longer duration parking as customers visit multiple retail stores. It
also provides further justification in response to the Highway Engineer's concerns as
regards the traffic modelling assessment undertaken in the Transport Assessment, namely
the use of Lidl traffic surveys as opposed to generic data from other supermarket
operators, assumptions made as regards linked and pass-by trips which could reduce the
predicted traffic generation and the lack of assessment of the wider traffic impacts on the
highway network or the cumulative impacts of committed developments.

Technical Note 2: Response to Highway Officer Comments (23rd April 2015), May 2015,
issued 8/5/15:

This 199 page document (26 pages of text) provides a detailed response to the Highway
Engineer's further comments. In response to the Highway Engineer's remaining concerns
regarding servicing arrangements, it advises that the existing non-food retail units will
continue to be serviced at the rear and only the proposed Lidl store would be serviced
through a dedicated service bay through the car park where the overwhelming majority of
spaces would be used by Lidl customers. This arrangement is comparable to those
approved by the Council at Cowley Road and Botwell Lane. By using the Victoria Road
access, the number of parking bays affected would be kept to a minimum and vehicle
tracking demonstrates that service vehicles would not be close to any parking space and
servicing would be subject to the Servicing Management Plan. Further justification,
additional assessment and further review is also provided in terms of trip attraction
following the Highway Engineer's on-going querying of the methodology and some of the
assumptions used in the trip generation assessment and the previous technical note
indicating that the committed developments of the ARLA site and Sainsbury's would not
have a material impact on Victoria Road. The technical note also attaches a Stage 1 Road
Safety Audit that was undertaken on the proposed Victoria Road/ Site Access as requested
by the Highway Engineer. The note then goes on to dispute the need for further modelling
of the two-way Stonefield Way/ Victoria Road access arrangement, as requested by the
Highway Engineer, as this has previously been approved and with a second access point
to the site onto Victoria Road, would suggest that vehicle flows are likely to reduce. Further
modelling of other junctions along Victoria Road with committed development has also
been undertaken following concerns raised.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



Technical Note, October 2015, issued 14/10/15:

This 173 page document (20 pages of text) provides further assessment of the proposals,
following a meeting with Council officers on 8/10/15 and it notes that it has only been
produced at the request of highway officers, as it is not considered by the highway
consultants to represent a true picture of the development's traffic impacts. The further
assessment involves an 'open A1' use operating from the site and compares the current
traffic conditions (ie. disregarding committed developments) with future conditions (ie. with
committed developments (the Arla dairy site (66810/APP/2013 and 2014/1600 and the Aldi
and B & M stores at the Victoria Road Retail Park (64445/APP/2014/2467)) and the Lidl
store. It also considers the Stonefield Way (west) junction. The assessment notes that the
TA for the Arla site showed that there would be a reduction in traffic flows along this stretch
of Victoria Road. The assessment then goes on to present its results and concludes that
all the junctions along the Victoria Road corridor would operate within capacity during all the
time periods and scenarios assessed and the impacts of the proposed development are
shown to be minimal and no capacity improvement works are required.

Technical Note No. 4, October 2015, issued 28/10/15:

This 246 page document (16 pages of text) provides further supplementary traffic
modelling in response to the Highway Engineer's comments on the previous Technical
Note, dated 14/10/15. Again, the developer's highway consultants make the point that they
consider that its results do not represent a true picture of the development's traffic impacts
and it has only been produced at the request of Highway Engineers. The note then seeks to
provide further justification/clarification as regards the floor space areas used, advises that
a further traffic count will be undertaken at the Stonefield Way (west) junction and results
presented before the committee meeting and that the data used to assess the committed
development on the Arla site had not been superseded, following further concerns raised
by the Highway Engineer. The note then goes on to provide further modelling, transport
assessments and junction capacity assessments based on generic trip rates and on this
point it concludes that all junctions along the Victoria Road corridor are shown to operate
within capacity during all tijme periods and scenerios assessed and the predicted impacts
are minimal and no capacity improvement works are required. The note then advises in
relation to suggested times to restrict servicing/ deliveries that many stores suceessfully
operate without such restrictions and it is not necessary to restict morning peak hour
deliveries from 7:30 to 9:00 since the car park will be far from fully occupied at that time
and the suggested 11:00 to 15:00 embargo on Saturdays would be unreasonably restrictive
and detrimemntal to the efficient running of the business, although 12:00 to 14:00 would be
acceptable and recommends a condition to cover this and the requirement for a Servicing
Management Plan.

Draft Travel Plan:
This advises of the likely measures that would be put in place to reduce travel demand by
the private car.

Air Quality Assessment:

This begins with an executive summary which advises that the air quality assessment was
previously submitted in support of the original application which was refused planning
permission but not on grounds of air quality. The changes made to the scheme are not
significant in terms of air quality and therefore, no changes have been made to the
assessment. It goes on to introduce the study, noting that the application site is over 500m
from the AQMA. Relevant legislation and national, regional and local planning policy and
guidance is reviewed and an assessment methodology is presented, for both the
construction and operational phases. Baseline air quality conditions are modelled and
construction and operational impacts on air quality are assessed. Mitigation measures are

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



then discussed and the report concludes that impacts during the construction phase, such
as dust generation and plant vehicle emissions would be 'negligible’ to 'slight adverse' for
receptors within 100m of the site, and 'negligible’ beyond 100m, which would reduce to
'negligible’ for all receptors, irrespective of distance with the implementation of mitigation
measures. The atmospheric dispersion modelling predicts that changes in pollutant
concentrations associated with the proposed development would not be significant and
overall, the effects would be 'negligible’. The report concludes that the scheme does not
conflict with relevant policy and there are no constraints to the development as regards air
quality.

Flood Risk Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the study, describes the site and its topography, geology
and drainage features and characteristics. It notes that the nearest Main River is Yeading
Brook, whose East arm enters a culvert approximately 360m to the north east of the site,
which runs to the south west, past the northern site boundary before emerging some 405m
to the west of the site. Relevant legislation and flood management plans are described.
The report advises that the site lies within Flood Zone 2 and a retail use is a 'less
vulnerable' use, suitable within Flood Zone 2. The report goes on to describe a surface
water management strategy for the new store (the two existing retail units would not be
significantly altered by the proposals). It advises that SuDs infiltration techniques would not
be suitable as the site is underlain by impermeable London Clay and that attenuation
storage would be provided to reduce the run-off rate from the Imperial House site to no
more than green field run-off rate. A template Flood Action Plan is then described and
conclusions are drawn, noting that the proposals would not increase the risk of flooding to
the site or elsewhere and the proposals offer betterment in the form of reduced run-off from
the site and are therefore acceptabel in terms of flood risk.

Flood Risk Sequential Test:

This provides an assessment of the availability of alternative sites with a reduced risk of
flooding, have a plot size between 0.32ha and 1.62ha and are designated for employment/
commercial purposes within Hillingdon.

Foul Drainage Assessment:

This assesses the existing foul water drainage infrastructure and examines potential foul
water management options for the proposed development. The study concludes that as
the peak flows between the existing and proposed development is likely to be similar, the
preferred option is to re-use the existing comnnections to the public sewer.

Phase 1 Preliminary Geoenvironmental Risk Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the report, describes the findings of a preliminary risk
assessment desk study, including a summary of the history of use of the site and presents
an outline conceptual model of potential pollution linkages. The report concludes that the
chemical nature of the soil, groundwater and ground gases are unknown and that a limited
site investigation is recommended to determine if there is potential for pollution linkages
from previous uses of the site and to confirm the parameters for foundation design.

Tree Survey to BS5837:
This defines the terms used in the report, describes the methodology and presents the
findings of a tree survey carried out on site to establish the condition of the existing trees.

Energy Statement:
This provides an introduction to the report, describes relevant policy, advises of the
approach and structure of the report and establishes the energy use benchmark. Various

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



energy efficiency measures and technologies are considered against the London Plan
criteria of be lean, be clean and be green and assessment findings are presented and
conclusions reached, including the need for a £6,348 carbon tax to offset the shortfall in
carbon emissions permissible under Policy 5.2E of the London Plan.

Car Park Lighting Report:
This lists the lighting equipment to be used and provides illuminance plots of the site for the
various lighting components.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

5039/APP/2014/143 Imperial House Victoria Road Ruislip

Construction of an A1 discount food store with associated car parking and landscaping on the si
of the former Imperial House. External refurbishment of Units 1 and 2.

Decision: 11-04-2014 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission was granted at Imperial House for the change of use of part of the
building for the sale and servicing of motor cars on 23/9/87 (App. No. 5039D/87/1026
refers).

On the western part of the site now occupied by Bensons for Beds and the vacant unit last
used by Comets, outline planning permission was originally granted for the erection of a
1,579 sq.m (GIA)(1,635sgm GEA) non-food retail warehouse with associated parking,
servicing and access facilities on 30/9/93 (App. No. 41266C/93/476 refers). The
permission was subject to various conditions, including condition 10 which restricted the
sale of goods to non-food goods and condition 14 prevented the subdivision of the unit
without the prior approval of the LPA. Reserved matters (landscaping, design and external
appearance) were approved on 25/2/94 (App. No. 41266F/93/1622 refers).

An application to vary condition 14 of 41266C/93/476 to allow sub-division of the building
into two separate units was subsequently approved on 17/8/94 (App. No. 41266M/94/1012
refers). No restrictive conditions were attached to this permission (just an informative
advising that all other conditions attached to 41266C/93/476, if not already complied with,
remain in force).

A Certificate of Lawfulness was granted on 16/2/12 for the use of the floorspace for any
use within Use Class A1 at the former Comet and Bensons for Beds (App. No.
64229/APP/2011/2759 refers).

Planning permission was granted to install a 280 sq. m mezzanine, together with a new fire
door within the smaller Bensons for Beds unit on 18/2/14 (64229/APP/2013/2501).

An application (App. No. 5039/APP/2013/2832 refers) seeking prior approval for the
demolition of Imperial House, together with the removal of trees was granted on 22/10/13.

An application submitted by Lidl for traffic management alterations to make provision for
two way vehicular traffic along a limited section of Stonefield Way towards the junction with
Victoria Road, including the creation of a pedestrian traffic island and alterations to the
carriageway and footpath width and provision of guardrails was approved on 18/4/13 (App.
No. 41266/APP/2012/2939 refers).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



Application No. 5039/APP/2014/143 for a similar scheme was refused on 11/4/14 for the
following reasons:-

1. The application fails to demonstrate that there are no sequentially preferable sites, nor
that it would not result in unacceptable impacts on the vitality and viability of nearby town
centres. Accordingly the application is considered to be contrary to Policy E5 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies 4.7 and 4.8
of the London Plan (July 2011) and the provisions set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012).

2. In the absence of a robust Transport Assessment, the application fails to demonstrate
that the proposed development would not result in detrimental traffic impacts or increased
congestion on nearby highways. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy 6.3 of the
London Plan (July 2011) and Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3. The proposed delivery and servicing arrangements would result in vehicular conflict with
other users of the site, that would give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway safety. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

4. The application site lies within Flood Zone 2 and the Local Planning Authority consider
insufficient evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that the flood risk sequential test
has been applied to the proposals and that there are no alternative sites with a lower
probability of flooding that could accommodate the proposed development. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning
Practice Guidance (March 2014).

5. The proposal fails to demonstrate that all the flooding risks associated with the site and
the development would be suitably mitigated for the lifetime of the development without
increasing flood risk elsewhere by the use of SUDS techniques that would also assist with
the reduction of the use of potable water on site. The proposal therefore fails to comply with
Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies 5.12, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan (July 2011), National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012) and National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

6. The proposal fails to demonstrate that it would make an appropriate contribution to
energy efficiency and carbon dioxide reductions on site. Accordingly, the proposal would
not represent a sustainable development or appropriately mitigate its impacts with respect
to climate change. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy EM1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies 5.2 and 5.7 of the
London Plan (July 2011).

7. The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvements of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in
respect of off-site highways works, tree planting, travel plan, air quality, construction
training and project management and monitoring). The scheme therefore conflicts with
policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Planning Obligations.

Following the refusal of permission, a pre-application enquiry has been submitted, seeking

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



the advice of officers in terms of how to resolve the reasons for refusal.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

HDP4J bR Resignation and London Plan
Rpspleflowing YRibRolisis arh gt iegyasiimiapapplication:-
NERPH % olicies NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

NPPF4
RPPEZ

NPPESD
B E77

LPP 4.7

8%

PT1.EM1

BT Exle

LPP 5.3
PAA B8
PPR.THO
bR 6111
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.14
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.21
BE13

NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

(20p2) ManagiigtheRreedigsl Employment Land

($oRE)-Teetiaschabangemisimate change flooding costal
(3915} Sategi|nfustrial Locations
(2015 ) Retail and town centre development

f ) gué %P(Vﬁr cessful and Diverse Retail Sector and related facilities

BIsh 291iGRASte Change Adaptation and Mitigation

?8;]3 inimi m arbon Dloxide Emissions
ood anagemen
2015

Sustalnable design and construction

(3613) ket Blee lrgpa Noise
(2018) BesensBriedrogl Destinations

)

(281%) EmremiAR( ARASIRYSIORIERLRifgpnvirons
)
)

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
(2015) Cycling

(2015) Walking

(2015) Parking

(2015) Freight

(2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) Local character

(2015) Architecture

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2015) Trees and woodland
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



BE15
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE25
BE38

OE1

OE3
OE8

R17

LE2
LE4

AM1

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
LDF-AH

SPD-NO
SPD-PO
SPG-AQ
SPG-CS

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking distance based
catchment area - public transport accessibility and capacity considerations

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted July
2004

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1

Advertisement Expiry Date:- 24th November 2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

69 neighbouring properties have been consulted, the application has been advertised in the local
press on 12/11/14 and 2 site notices were displayed on 14/11/14. 124 responses have been
received, 3 objecting to the proposals and 121 in support.

Comments received can be summarised as follows:-
Objecting comments:-

(i) A low cost supermarket is not wanted in Ruislip (1 comment),

(i) There does not appear to be sufficient parking spaces for the whole development, including the
former Comet and Benson for Beds units. The Lidl car park on Cowley Road is often full (1
comment),

(iii) Allocated motorcycle space is needed (1 comment),

(iv) Proposed opening hours of 7 AM to 11 PM (as opposed to opening hours of other stores in
industrial area of 9 AM and 8 PM), particularly the late opening hours will cause great disturbance to
the residential houses opposite (Sainsbury's further along on Victoria Road also has late opening
hours but this store is mainly surrounded by commercial properties) and the associated
congregation of persons late into the evening may promote antisocial behaviour which Will affect the
tranquillity and safety of the surrounding neighbourhood (1 comment),

(v) Stonefield Way is currently a one way road which will be changed to two way. The majority of
traffic that currently uses Stonefield Way are long heavy vehicles (which is not taken into account in
the traffic study) that take up the whole width of the road when entering and interrupt the flow of
traffic on Victoria Road. Converting the entrance of Stonefield Way into a two way street will
increase the congestion and interrupt the smooth flow of traffic on Victoria Road which will increase
the risk of accidents and create hazardous driving conditions as the long heavy vehicles encroach
upon the whole width of Stonefield Way (1 comment),

(vi) One hour free parking seems short (1 comment),

Supporting comments:-

(i) Additional / discount store fully supported in this area which will bring cheaper shopping within
walking distance (including accessible parking facilities for car users) providing much needed and
long overdue healthy competition for Sainsburys and the area (90 comments),

(i) The proposal would regenerate and make use of this site which has been derelict and an eyesore
for too long (36 comments),

(i) Size and location of proposal will be convenient for local residents, businesses and schools in
the area which will result in less traffic on roads as more convenient than having to drive further
afield to find a discount store, such as Cowley, Pinner or Greenford which happens now (20
comments),

(iv) Proposal will create local employment, boost local economy and encourage more investment
(15 comments),

(v) This proposal is taking ages to determine, please hurry and pass this application (7 comments),
(vi) Lidl attracts a different customer and would not impact significantly on Sainsbury's (2
comments),

(vii) Positives on this scheme far outweigh the negatives (if there are any) (1 comment),

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

We have no objections. Please attach the informative below to any planning approval:-

Informative

Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws 1981, the prior
written consent of the Environment Agency is required for any proposed works or structures in,
under, over or within 8 metres of the culverted main river.

GLAAS:

Recommend No Archaeological Requirement.

This is a previously developed site in an area with no significant recorded archaeological interest.
Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary.

MOD SAFEGUARDING - RAF NORTHOLT

The MoD has no safeguarding objections to the proposal.

HEATHROW AIRPORT LTD:

We have now assessed the application against safeguarding criteria and can confirm that we have
no safeguarding objections to the proposed development.

Please be aware that the coordinates submitted on the Hillingdon application (509744, 180057) are
incorrect and do not represent the true location of the site.

The correct coordinates are 512139, 185578.
Officer response:

The co-ordinates have been corrected.
LONDON BOROUGH OF EALING:

No objections

LONDON BROUGH OF HARROW:

The Local Planning Authority does not raise any objection, but would like the following comments to
be noted.

In general the sequential test methodology and conclusions can be supported, with the exception of
the missing Roxeth Library and Clinic site, which is allocated for around 1,000m2 of retail
floorspace, and potentially a replacement library and clinic - LB Harrow Site Allocation R3.

The site is in-centre, and forms part of the primary shopping frontage and could be suitable for a
single large convenience retailer.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



Therefore clarification would be welcomed as to the reason why this site was not included in the
assessment.

Officer response:
This has been dealt with in Section 7.01 (Sequential Test) of the officer's report.
THAMES WATER:

Waste Comments

Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a
developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In
respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is
proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal
of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from
Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.
Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the
existing sewerage system.

There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. In order to protect public sewers
and to ensure that Thames Water can gain access to those sewers for future repair and
maintenance, approval should be sought from Thames Water where the erection of a building or an
extension to a building or underpinning work would be over the line of, or would come within 3
metres of, a public sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the
construction of new buildings, but approval may be granted in some cases for extensions to existing
buildings. The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777
to discuss the options available at this site.

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure capacity, we would not
have any objection to the above planning application.

Condition:

No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and type of piling
to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried out, including measures
to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the
programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the
terms of the approved piling method statement.

Reason:
The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling
has the potential to impact on local underground sewerage utility infrastructure.

The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss
the details of the piling method statement.

Where a developer proposes to discharge groundwater into a public sewer, a groundwater
discharge permit will be required. Groundwater discharges typically result from construction site
dewatering, deep excavations basement infiltration, borehole installation, testing and site
remediation. Groundwater permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk
Management Team by telephoning 020 8507 4890 or by emailing
wwgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be completed on line via

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal
and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991.

Thames Water would recommend that petrol/oil interceptors be fitted in all car
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol/oil interceptors could
result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses.

Water Comments

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water Company. For
your information the address to write to is - Affinity Water Company, The Hub, Tamblin Way,
Hatfield, Herts, AL10 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

Site and Transport Network

The site is located off Victoria Road to the west of the junction with Stonefield Way. Both these
roads are Class C roads. Three units currently occupy the site, a Comet store (vacant), a Benson
for Beds store and Imperial House (vacant) but which was previously used as a car sales
showroom. The area surrounding the site has a mixture of commercial and residential properties
and the site has a PTAL rating of 2 (poor).

The transport assessment is premised on Lidl discount foodstore being able to lawfully occupy the
existing Comet and Benson units (1915sgm) following the confirmation of consent granted by
planning application 64299/APP/2012/2939. However, the current proposal is for construction of a
new Lidl foodstore (1286 sqm. sales area) on the site of Imperial House (2150 sgm. net sales area -
sui generis). It is proposed to transfer 1286sgm of consented open A1 use from the existing Comet
and Benson units to the new Lidl store while Comet and Benson (existing) units would be retained
with the remainder of the A1 open use (629sgm) retail floor space. This will result in an additional
1286sgm of non-food retail floorspace on the site.

Accident Analysis

An analysis of road collisions for the three year period indicates that there was one slight injury
accident at the junction of Stonefield Way and Victoria Road. This would not indicate any inherent
existing road safety problem on the adjacent highway network.

Vehicular Access:

The existing vehicular site access is from Stonefield Way and a recent proposal to permit two way
traffic operations on a short section of Stonefield Way between the site access and the junction with
Victoria Road was approved. The current proposals would incorporate this revised two way access
and an additional vehicular access (priority junction) is also proposed onto Victoria Road at the
western part of the site. This would include a right turning lane on Victoria Road and service both the
shared car park and the new service yard for the Lidl store. A safety audit of the proposals has not
raised any concern. However, although the vehicular swept paths for articulated heavy goods
vehicles turning into the site would cross over into opposing traffic lanes at the site accessway and
conflict with vehicles exiting from the site, given the very small number of large delivery vehicles
expected (one per day), this is considered acceptable.

The existing service road would require stopping up and a s278 agreement to construct a new
vehicular access onto Victoria Road would be required.

Servicing:
The existing servicing arrangement for the Comet and Benson Units will be retained as existing. The
servicing yard is located to the rear of these two units and does not conflict with the customer car

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



park area.

The proposed service yard for the new Lidl store would require large articulated delivery vehicles to
undertake manoeuvres within areas allocated for customer car parking and the new vehicular
access route for customers. While this arrangement is not ideal, it is acknowledged that the
frequency of delivery vehicles to the Lidl site will be low, and the proposed arrangement could be
considered satisfactory, subject to restriction on delivery / servicing periods when conflict with
pedestrian / customers are most likely.

The applicant has proposed restriction on servicing between 17:00 to 19:00 on weekdays and
between 12:00 to 14:00 on Saturday.

It is recommended that a planning condition be attached to restrict delivery / servicing vehicles
entering the site between 7.30am-9.00am and 17:00- 19:00 on weekdays and between 11.00am-
3.00pm on Weekends. The early morning weekday period is considered necessary because this
coincides with children going to schools in the vicinity and the other periods coincide with peak
customer activity at the proposed development.

Transport Assessment:

The initial transport assessment was based on traffic data from other Lidl stores rather than using
generic data that would allow consideration of a range of occupiers (within the use class) that could
potentially operate from the new store. Moreover, the transport assessment utilised average Lidl trip
rates (Two way: Friday 9.94/100sgm and Saturday 12.42/100sqm) together with optimistic
assumptions regarding linked and pass-by trips that rely upon results of research based on larger
mainstream foodstore retail stores. The actual range of two way trip rates derived from the other
Lidl stores were: Friday 8.84-10.80 / 100sgm and Saturday 9.33 - 16.50 /100sgm. - This confirmed
that the use of average trip rates represents a significant risk of under-estimating the traffic
generation, parking accumulation and the traffic impacts of the proposed development.

While the data from other Lidl stores used for assessing the traffic generation were of similar size,
these sites had very good accessibility by public transport (PTALs 5-6b) unlike the PTAL of 2 (poor)
for the proposed development site. From the further analysis of the submission of additional
information regarding provision of car parking at the other Lidl sites used for assessing traffic
generation, it was evident that those sites had lower levels of car parking (ranging from 62 to 75) and
correspondingly lower levels of occupancy on Saturday (ranging from 46 - 60 spaces).

Department for Transport guidance indicates that if sites with comparable accessibility as well as
scale and location cannot be found when using standard database, 85th percentile trip generation
rates should be considered as a starting point. This has not been done within the current transport
assessment supporting this application.

Following requests from Officers, revised transport assessments have been submitted to robustly
reassess the traffic generation using data for generic food retailers across London.

This indicates weekday evening peak two way trip rates of 15.74/ 100sgm and peak Saturday two
way trip rate of 16.391/100sgm. This will correspondingly generate 257 two way vehicular trips in the
weekday pm peak hour and 349 two way vehicles trips during the Saturday peak hour.

Parking

The proposed scheme includes a total of 104 car parking spaces including four parents & child
spaces and nine spaces for blue badge holders. Dual use electric vehicle parking spaces would
include 10% active and 10% passive provision, meeting the London Plan parking standards.

It should also be noted that while the existing Comet and Benson for Beds stores shared the
provision of 85 existing car park spaces, the proposals with a Lidl foodstore would provide an

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



additional 19 car park spaces. The corresponding generic assessment of combined (foodstore and
non-food) peak car park demand on site is 102 for Friday and 116 spaces for Saturday. While the
peak parking demand is marginally greater than the capacity of the car park and consequently may
occasionally give rise to a small increase in demand for on-street parking in the vicinity, the
proposed on-site parking provision is considered acceptable. It is recommended that no additional
food retail floorspace be permitted on this site in order to prevent extra demand for car parking
causing congestion and parking stress on the adjacent road network.

Cycle parking provision for ten cycles and three spaces of powered two-wheelers is proposed. This
is an improvement on existing provision on site and is considered acceptable.

Traffic Impacts:

Traffic assessments have been undertaken for the weekday morning and evening peaks and for the
Saturday afternoon peak period. Traffic modelling has been undertaken for the network between
junctions of Long Drive / Victoria Road and the eastern site access at Victoria Road / Stonefield
Way. These assessments have considered 2015 existing, with committed and the committed plus
proposed development scenarios.

The modelling results indicate that the traffic generation from the proposed development can be
accommodated on the highway network during the weekday morning and evening peak periods.
However, the transport assessment does indicate that during the Saturday peak period, the junction
of Long Drive / Victoria Road, (including junction improvements - proposed for the ARLA
development), will remain congested.

Travel Plan

The applicant acknowledges the importance of encouraging sustainable travel behaviour and a draft
travel plan has been submitted. The Council's travel plan officer should be consulted to comment on
the travel plan. A full travel plan to take account of any necessary adjustments can be secured and
maintained through a planning condition and/or s106 agreement as appropriate.

Recommendations:
The proposed development is acceptable on highway grounds subject to appropriate conditions:-

1. Restrict delivery / servicing vehicles entering the site between 7.30 - 9.00 and 17:00- 19:00 on
weekdays and between 11.00 - 15.00 on Weekends.

2. Servicing and delivery management plan.

3. Site Travel Plan,

4. A limit on food retail floorspace permitted on site to the proposed Lidl store only at 1286 sqm RFA

TRAVEL PLAN CO-ORDINATOR:
The following comments are provided on the Draft Travel Plan:-

- The document refers to Travel Plan guidance by TfL in 2011 - this has been superseded by 2013
guidance which can be found on the TfL website.

- It would be good to have a contact who will be responsible fro the Travel Plan until such time that a
Travel Plan Co-ordinator is appointed.

TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

Site History
This application follows the refusal of a previous scheme ref. 2014/143.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



Landscape Considerations
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- The red line of the site has been extended in the north-west corner of the site to include part of the
service road and Victoria Road.

- The Tree Survey, by Arbtech has been re-submitted. It is noted that this survey was undertaken in
December 2012, the findings of which must shortly be considered out of date. In this case, the 17
No. trees / groups surveyed are not considered to have changed much from their 'C' (poor condition
and value) ratings.

- The Landscape Proposals, presented on ACD's drawing No. LIDL18941-11g reflect the outcome of
pre-application discussions to secure additional off-site tree planting within the highway verge. This
planting includes the provision of a root barrier(s) to protect the underground concrete-lined culvert in
the northern section of the grass verge.

- The tree planting within the car park includes the provision of tree cells (within the tree pits),
intended to provide a greater volume of healthy soil to support healthy establishment and growth.

- The inclusion of a greater area of land indicates that there may be further opportunities for tree
planting within, or outside the site.

Recommendations:

- This site has been subject to post-refusal (pre-application) discussions. Its acceptability relies
heavily on the off-site planting of a hedge and trees within the highway verge. These details will be
subject to a S.106 agreement - and a licence agreement (to plant and maintain the landscape on
highway land).

- No objection, subject to the above comments and conditions COM7, COM8, COM9 (parts 1,2,4,5
and 6) and COM10.

ACCESS OFFICER:

The proposal is to redevelop the site and the derelict building known as Imperial House. The works
include extending the existing car park in front of the former Bensons for Beds and Comet retail unit
to serve the 3 occupancies.

The proposed new building is to have a gross area of 2046sq m, with a sales area of 1,286sq m,
and a new store entrance and exit formed with automatic opening doors. The re-modelled and
combined car park is to provide 104 car parking spaces, of which 9 are to be designated Blue/Brown
Badge dual spaces designed to comply with Part M.

No further issues are raised, however, the following informatives should be attached to any grant of
planning permission.

Recommended Informatives

1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead and take steps to address barriers
that impede disabled people.

2. Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a term
contract planned for their maintenance.

3. Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



different/adjacent areas does not occur.

4. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to ensure they
remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with epilepsy.

Conclusion: Acceptable
WATER AND FLOOD MANAGEMENT OFFICER:
The site is in Flood Zone 2 and therefore subject to the sequential test.

A sequential test has been submitted which provides justification as to why this development should
be sited in an area with a high probability of flooding - Flood Zone 2.

A Site Specific Flood Risk Assessment has been provided to demonstrate that the development will
be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk
elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood risk overall.

Fluvial Flood Flood Risk

Sequential Test
The site is shown to be within Flood Zone 2 and the National Planning Policy Framework on page 23
states:

'Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development
away from areas at highest risk, but where development is necessary, making it safe without
increasing flood risk elsewhere'

The Council has to be able to accept that the benefits of the development outweigh this risk by
determining there is no reasonable available commercial land at a lower risk of flooding. The
applicant has satisfied the Council on this point.

Exception Test
The applicant must demonstrate that flood risk can be suitably mitigated in accordance with the
NPPF and Policy EM6 of the Local Plan. The National Planning Policy Framework states:

For the Exception Test to be passed:

- it must be demonstrated that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the
community that outweigh flood risk, informed by a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment where one has
been prepared; and

- a site-specific flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the development will be safe for its
lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and,
where possible, will reduce flood risk overall.

Both elements of the test will have to be passed for development to be allocated or permitted.

A site specific Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted.

The National Planning Policy Framework also states that it should be demonstrated that:
development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe access and escape routes
where required, and that any residual risk can be safely managed, including by emergency planning;
and it gives priority to the use of sustainable drainage systems.

A Flood Risk Assessment has been provided including further information on the risk to and from the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



site.

The FRA states that the safety of the occupants will be managed through an evacuation system and
provides a template flood evacuation plan. As the site is in Flood Zone 2 (1% to 0.1% probability), the
risk is considered appropriate according to the NPPF.

Surface Water
The site also lies in a Critical Drainage Area, where the management of the drainage in this area is
very important in managing the flood risk.

The FRA proposes to reduce the surface water run off from part of the site by controlling it through a
tanked system before discharging off site. The applicant demonstrates this scheme is feasible
considering the size of the proposed car park.

However this scheme only proposes to control the surface water run off from the Imperial House
site, event through the proposals are to alter the car parking across this and the adjacent site,
therefore providing significantly wider opportunities to reduce the flood risk, and meet the
requirements of the London Plan for the whole site. This is critical as it is the only way to manage
the increase in flood risk likely with climate change over the lifetime of the property. The following
SUDS condition is recommended:-

Condition

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision
of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage systems
(SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the development in accordance with the
hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.
Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy OES8 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (March
2015) Policy 5.12.

It is accepted that the applicant has assessed the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water, including water saving measures and equipment, water collection facilities to capture excess
rainwater, which is not considered suitable on this site.

Recommendation
Approval, subject to the SUDS condition and construction being in accordance with details provided
in the FRA.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



| have no objections to the proposed development subject to the contribution set out in the energy
report of £6,348 to make up for the shortfall and the development proceeding in accordance with the
approved statement.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
Loss of Employment Land

The application site is identified as a Strategic Industrial Location: Preferred Industrial
Location (PIL) within the London Plan (March 2015), as a Locally Significant Industrial Site
(LSIS) by the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and an
Industrial and Business Area (IBA) within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012). Policy LE2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) states that IBAs are designated for business, industrial and
warehouse purposes (Use Classes B1 - B8) and for sui generis uses appropriate to an
industrial area. The policy goes on to advise that alternative uses will not be permitted
unless (i) there is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial or warehousing
purposes in the future, (i) the alternative use does not conflict with other policies and
objectives of the plan and the proposal better meets the plan's objectives, particularly in
relation to affordable housing and economic regeneration. It is also noted that as part of the
emerging Hillingdon Local Plan, in order to rebalance the amount of employment land in the
borough, it is proposed to remove part of this site (Units 1 and 2) and adjoining retail units
that front Victoria Road from the IBA (albeit not that part of the site occupied by Imperial
House).

The proposed Class A1 food store would replace the former car showroom that has been
vacant since 2006. As such, the proposal would replace a former sui generis use that is
akin to a retail use. A letter from a commercial estate agent advises that despite the
property being marketed since the Rover dealership ceased trading in 2006, no formal
tenant interest materialised until the sale of the site in 2013 to Lidl. The estate agent
considers that the compromised access and very poor condition of the building have been
attributed to the lack of interest and the property was de-listed from the Rating Lists in 2011
due to its obsolete state. The estate agent advises that the investment needed in the
building to allow occupation is not economically viable, nor is its re-development for
traditional employment use.

Given that Imperial House did not previously provide traditional employment land, being a
sui generis use as a car showroom (which typically do not generate high levels of
employment) and the historic lack of commercial interest in the site, no objections are
raised to the principle of the 'loss' of employment land, particularly as the applicant
estimates that the new store would generate up to 30 jobs, in compliance with Policy LE2
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Retail Impact
Sequential Test:

Paragraph 24 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) establishes the
requirement for a sequential assessment by advising that applications for main town centre
uses such as retail development should be located within town centres, then in edge of
centre locations and finally on out of centre sites. Annex 2 of the NPPF specifically includes
local centres in the definition of town centres.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



This approach is carried forward in the current London Plan and the Council's Local Plan
Part 1: Strategic Policies, adopted in November 2012.

- London Plan Policy 4.7 (Retail and Town Centre Development) requires retail and town
centre development to relate to the size, role and function of a town centre and that
development should be focused on sites within the town centres themselves.

- London Plan Policy 4.8 encourages a proactive approach to retail planning and bringing

forward capacity for additional comparison goods retailing, particularly in the large
international, metropolitan and major town centres with convenience retail supported in the
district, neighbourhood and more local centres to secure a sustainable pattern of
neighbourhood provision.

- Policy E5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (November 2012) states that the Council will

accommodate additional retail growth within established centres in accordance with the
conclusions of the latest evidence base. Growth for comparison goods will be primarily
accommodated in District Centres as set out in Table 5.5 and if appropriate, specific
locations for growth in convenience goods will be determined through the production of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Specifii-c Allocations Local Development Document.
Planning decisions will be taken in accordance with the provisions of national guidance,
particularly the sequential and impact tests.

The applicants argue that as the existing retail units have permission for open A1 use and
there are no conditions to prevent these units being amalgamated, they could at least in
theory be occupied by Lidl and therefore this represents a fall-back position and an
important material consideration in determining this application. The report advises that the
present application effectively seeks to transfer a proportion of the open A1 consent from
the two existing units to a new Lidl foodstore on the site and in return, the proposal will
introduce a new condition on the amount of floorspace 'transferred' from the two existing
retail units to restrict the sale of goods to comparison goods only.

The proposal would increase the amount of retail floor space on the site by 2,046 sq m
(GEA), which would comprise an increase in retail sales area of 1,286 sq m.

The nearest centre to the application site is the South Ruislip Local Centre, its eastern
boundary being sited some 560m to the west of the application site. As such, the
application site represents an out-of-centre location and would need to satisfy the
sequential test. To this end, the applicants have submitted a sequential test as part of their
Planning and Retail Statement.

The submitted sequential test advises that a 10 minute drive-time has been used for the
purpose of the sequential test. Following officer advice provided in the pre-application
meeting, a total of 9 sites have been investigated. In centre sites include Eagle Point and
Astral House, The Runway in South Ruislip, a vacant public house on Village Way East in
Rayners Lane and Bovis House, 142 Norholt Road and 152 - 158 Northolt Road in South
Harrow. As regards the two sites on The Runway, South Ruislip, the agents advise that
these have been discounted as the buildings would be difficult to re-configure to provide a
suitable trading format, particularly as they do not provide an adequate amount of
floorspace and in the case of the latter, would not be able to accommodate parking and
access requirements. As regards the other sites, schemes for their residential conversion
have commenced so that they are no longer available.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



As regards edge of centre sites, the former Arla Dairy site was the only one considered,
but the report notes that the site is the subject of a current application
(66819/APP/2014/1600 refers) for a mixed use development and involves a 8,539 sgm
Asda store. The application site is significantly larger than the current proposal and as
Asda is involved, it is highly unlikely, that the site, or part of the site would be made
available for a new Lidl foodstore. Land values would make acquisition of all or part of the
site unviable for a discount retailer. The report dismisses the site as not being suitable or
available and is not therefore sequentially preferable.

The report then goes on to assess out of centre sites, namely Units A and B, 428A Victoria
Road and Unit 3 Victoria Retail Park, but they are all dismissed as either being of an
inappropriate size or alternative proposals are already being progressed.

The adjoining London Boroughs of Ealing and Harrow have been consulted on the
application and both do not raise any objections in principle to the sequential test and the
conclusions reached, although in the case of Harrow, they did query why the Roxeth
Library and Clinic site was not included. The applicant has responded, advising that the site
would not provide sufficient retail floorspace and adequate car parking and service access
would not be available. A copy of their response was sent to Harrow but no further
correspondence from Harrow has been received.

The availability of sites and circumstances have changed since the Council's previous
refusal and the updated assessment reflects this. It is therefore considered that the
sequential test is sufficiently robust and comprehensive, in line with the NPPF
requirements.

Impact Assessment:

Paragraph 26 of the NPPF covers the requirement for impact assessments. Paragraph 26
requires that this should include assessment of the impact of the proposal on existing,
committed and planned public and private investment in a centre or centres in the
catchment area of the proposal. In addition, paragraph 26 requires the impact assessment
to include an assessment of the impact of the proposal on town centre vitality and viability,
including local consumer choice and trade in the town centre and wider area, up to five
years from the time the application is made. For major schemes where the full impact will
not be realised in five years, the impact should also be assessed up to ten years from the
time the application is made.

The question of retail impact is a key concern in the consideration of this out of centre
application. The NPPF is clear in stating that applications should be refused where there
would be a 'significant adverse' impact upon existing centres. With any supermarket
proposal of this scale, there will clearly be an impact upon shopping patterns within the
locality and the aim of the retail impact assessment submitted with the application is to
predict, with as much accuracy as possible, the impact on these trade patterns.

This involves a complex set of assumptions regarding the available level of retail
expenditure within the store's catchment area, the performance and trading capacity of the
store itself, the relative performance of competing stores and centres, the likely trade draw
from other centres and stores, future changes in trading patterns (such as internet
shopping) and the cumulative impact of existing retail commitments. Any one of these
fields is sensitive to the assumptions inputted into the forecasting model.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



Officers have reviewed the latest retail impact assessment and this is generally considered
to be more robust and comprehensive than that submitted with the previous application.
This still does attach a significant amount of weight on a supposed 'fall back' position
whereby an open A1 retail use could operate from the existing retail units (those containing
Bensons for Beds and formally Comet). Officers acknowledge that these units are not
subject to planning controls over the range of goods they can sell, however do not accept
this as an appropriate starting point with regard to assessing retail impact in this case as
having regard to the layout and design of these existing units, officers do not consider that
there is any reasonable prospect of them being occupied by a discount goods retailer in
their current form without redevelopment. Further, one of the units is currently occupied by
a bulky goods retailer and there is no evidence that the occupier will vacate the premises in
the near future or even within the development plan period. Given these circumstances
officers do not consider there is a reasonable prospect of this supposed 'fall back' position,
or the trade diversions/impacts which would arise from it, occurring. Accordingly, this
should be given limited weight and any impact assessment reliant on this would
significantly underestimate actual retail impacts.

Notwithstanding this issue, the submitted impact assessment does go on to assess retail
impact, comparing the proposal's predicted trade draw to the overall turnover of the
centres of South Ruislip, Northolt, Rayners Lane, South Harrow, South Ruislip and an
extremely broad category of all centres outside of the indicated catchment area.

The National Planning Policy Framework makes clear at paragraph 26 that an impact
assessment should 'include assessment of:

- the impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public and private
investment in a centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and

- the impact of the proposal on town centre vitality and viability, including local consumer
choice and trade in the town centre and wider area, up to five years from the time the
application is made. For major schemes where the full impact will not be realised in five
years, the impact should also be assessed up to ten years from the time the application is
made.’

In this respect the applicants have undertaken an assessment of the impact that the
development may have on individual retailers within the Town Centre. While competition is
not a matter for planning, the proposal might have a significant impact on an anchor store
within an existing centre. Such an impact might result in the closure of an important store
which could significantly reduce the vitality and viability of that centre.

The assessment notes that the key foodstores within close proximity to the application site
are Sainbury's in South Ruislip and Waitrose in Ruislip. The report notes that both stores
are trading well, and in particular, Sainsbury's is significantly overtrading. The report goes
on to advise that the store would have an estimated turnover of £56m, which equates to
1.5% of local convenience goods expenditure. The report states that the greatest
proportion of trade would be diverted from the Sainsbury's store (£2.5m) but this only
represents a 3.3% impact. Sainsbury's would be able to continue to trade strongly,
certainly as it is currently overtrading and the percentage trade diversion is small. Officers
in considering the previous impact assessment critised the level of assessment given to
the impact on the in centre Sainsbury's store in South Ruislip. However, the situation
Further, the report goes on to advise that there are a number of foodstores outside the
catchment area that capture a significant proportion of expenditure so that there is an
opportunity to enhance trade retention in the catchment area with which this proposal will
assist in ensuring more sustainable shopping patterns and greater trade retention. The

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

assessment also notes that the total available local expenditure for convenience goods is
expected to grow by has changed since that consideration. With the redevelopment of the
Arla site and the change of use of the premises at 428/428A Victoria Road to a discount
retailer having been approved. These proposals will further help to create a strong retail
hub in South Ruislip and given the principle of 'like effects like', the majority of the impact
would be likley to be on the newly approved discount retailer. Accordingly, it is not
considered that adverse impacts in this respect would arise. Further, the report goes on to
advise that there are a number of foodstores outside the catchment area that capture a
significant proportion of expenditure so that there is an opportunity to enhance trade
retention in the catchment area with which this proposal will assist in ensuring more
sustainable shopping patterns and greater trade retention. The assessment also notes that
the toatl available local expenditure for convenience goods is expected to grow by £25.1m
from 2013 - 2018, through growth in convenience expoenditure alone, 5 times that of the
£5m expenditure required to support the new store.

AS regards the Arla Dairy site, the assessment advises that this scheme will not
compromise the Dairy site redevelopment coming forward, given the mix of uses and the
larger scale of the foodstore proposed. The scale and operational characteristics of Lidl
provide a different role and offer and will not deter Asda from investing in the site.

The report concludes on this point that rather than a negative impact, the Lidl proposals will
make a positive contribution to the catchment area, providing a different retail offer which
would support a competitive market and increased choice for consumers as at present,
there are no similar format stores in the catchment area, highlighting a strong need for a
discount operator.

Officers consider that the submitted retail assessment adequately demonstrates that the
proposed site is sequentially preferable and the proposals will not have adverse impacts on
existing centres or on committed investment. As such, it is considered that the revised
proposal complies with policy and overcomes the first reason for refusal of the previous
scheme.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to non-residential development.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposal would not affect the setting of any statutory or locally listed building and the
site is not located within or sited on the fringes of a conservation area or is located within
an area of special local character. Furthermore, GLAAS advise that this is a previously
developed site in an area with no significant recorded archaeological interest and therefore
the proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological
interest and there is no requirement for an archaeological condition for further investigation
Airport safeguarding

There are no safeguarding issues raised by this application and MoD Safeguarding and
Heathrow Airport Ltd have confirmed that they have no safeguarding objections to the
proposal.

Impact on the green belt

The application site is not located within or lies adjacent to the Green Belt and as such, no
Green Belt issues are raised by the proposal.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to ensure that development harmonises with the layout and appearance of the street

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



scene or other features of the area which are desirable to retain or enhance. Policy BE15
requires alterations to existing buildings to harmonise with their scale, form, architectural
composition and proportion. Policy BE25 encourages the modernisation and improvement
of IBAs through amongst other criteria, the careful design and landscaping of buildings and
environmental improvements.

The proposal involves the demolition of Imperial House, to be replaced by the new Lidl
store and the re-cladding of Units 1 and 2, the retained retail units.

There is no objection to the loss of Imperial House, which has no historical or architectural
interest and having been vacant for a number of years, now has a neglected and
dilapidated appearance which does distract from the visual amenity of the area. The
proposals would replace this structure with a modern building which together with the re-
cladding of the adjacent retail units and wider improvements to the landscaping, will
upgrade and enhance the site.

The proposed new building would occupy a similar siting to that of Imperial House, although
now it would be marginally set back behind Units 1 and 2 instead of being more in
alignment and would be of a very similar scale to adjoining buildings so that it would not
appear unduly prominent within the street scene.

Although the Council's Conservation/Urban Design Officer would not now comment on
schemes of this nature, on the previous similar scheme with an identical building advised
that although the principle of the development with upgrading and enhancement of the site
is welcomed, a standard design approach has been taken, with all the facades mainly
finished in extensiive areas of cladding in a silver metallic finish that provides little
articulation or depth. The Conservation Officer went on to advise that as this is a major
thoroughfare which fronts residential housing, a good design and finish is important and the
new building and elevations could contribute more positively. Although requested on the
previous application, no revisions to the building's elevation were forthcoming. Officer's
took the view previously that the modern simple design of the building was generally
acceptable within the IBA so that this did not form a reason for refusal of the previous
proposal.

It is mainly only the front elevation that would not be obscurred by adjoining buildings and
be clearly visible from Victoria Road which includes an extensive glazed shopfront which
would add visual interest. On this basis, combined with the enhanced landscaping now
proposed, the scheme would make a valuable contribution to the enhancement of this part
of the IBA and the street scene of Victoria Road generally, in compliance with Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE25 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seek to safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential
properties from new development in terms of overshadowing, dominance and loss of
privacy respectively.

The application site is located within an IBA and the busy Victoria Road separates the site
from the nearest residential properties on the opposite side of the road. As the proposal
would replace the existing Imperial House with a similarly sized and sited building which
would be some 60m from the front elevations of the nearest properties opposite, there
would be no significant adverse impacts upon the amenities of surrounding residential

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



occupiers in terms of the dominance, loss of sunlight and/or privacy associated with the
proposed building. Air quality and noise issues are dealt with in Section 7.18 below.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this commercial scheme.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Paragraph 35
of NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should be located and
designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements; create safe
and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians.

Local requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion are set
out in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). Policy
AM2 requires development proposals to be assesed on their contribution towards traffic
generation, policy AM7 requires the traffic generation of proposed development to be
acceptable in terms of the capacity and safe and efficient functioning of existing roads and
policies AM9 and AM14 require development proposals to satisfy cycle and car parking
standards.

Traffic generation

An initial Transport Assessment was submitted with the application which has now been
supplemented by four successive technical notes, following their consequent review by the
Highway Engineer. With the submission of the latest technical note (No. 4), although it is
noted that Lidl's Highway Consultants does not consider the further assessments to be a
true representation of the development's traffic impacts (as they consider that these had
been adequately identified in the Transport Assessment), the Council's Highway Engineer
considers that the revised transport assessments now robustly assess the traffic
generation of the proposal using data from generic food retailers from across London. The
latest assessment advises that the development would generate 257 two way vehicular
trips in the weekday pm peak hour and 349 two way vehicle trips during the Saturday peak
hour.

Traffic Impacts

In terms of the traffic impacts, traffic assessments have been carried out for the weekday
morning and evening peaks and for the Saturday afternoon peak period and include
analysis involving existing (2015), with committed development and with the committed
and the proposed development scenarios, assessing junction capacities along the Victoria
Road corridor to the west, to include the Long Drive junction. The Highway Engineer
advises that the proposed development can be accommodated on the highway network
during the weekday morning and evening peak periods with none of the junctions
excedding capacity. However, the Long Drive / Victoria Road junction would be congested
during the Saturday peak period with the committed development, even with the junction
improvements that would be put in place as part of the Arla site re-development. The traffic
generated by this proposal would contribute to the congestion of the junction but it is not
considered that this would be significant or severe. This is because it is considered that
most of the traffic visiting the Lidl store on a Saturday would be likely to derive from the
residential areas to the north and east of the site. For potential customers to visit the site
from the west, through the junction, they would have to pass large Asda and Sainsbury's

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



stores and perhaps more importantly, a new Aldi discount retail store.
Parking

The enlarged car parking area at the front of the units would be shared by the three units,
and would provide a total of 104 spaces, including four parent & child and nine dual use
disabled person/ blue badge holders spaces. The Mayor's maximum car parking standards
would limit the food stores parking to 109 spaces and the non-food units to 53 spaces,
giving a maximum total of 162 spaces. The Council's Highway Engineer advises that the
corresponding generic assessment of the combined foodstore and non-food units peak car
park demand is 102 spaces for Friday and 116 spaces for Saturday. Although Saturday's
peak demand would marginally exceed the capacity of the car park and consequently may
occassionally give rise to a small increase in demand for on-street parking in the locality,
this occassional impact would be acceptable in highway terms.

The London Plan (March 2015 requires 11 long stay and 23 short stay spaces to be
provided, whereas this scheme currently proposes 10 spaces under the shopfront canopy.
Motorcycle parking for 5 vehicles is also required. A condition has been added to ensure
that relevant standards are met.

Servicing

A revised layout plan has been submitted at the request of the Highway Engineer which
has re-sited the blue/ brown badge and parent/child parking spaces closest to the service
route further away.

Whilst the Highway Engineer advises that the shared customer / servicing access for the
Lidl store from Victoria Road is less than ideal, it would be acceptable providing deliveries
were restricted between 7:30 - 9:00 and 17:00 - 19:00 hours on weekdays and between
11:00 - 15:00 hours on weekends due to concerns regarding children going to school in the
morning weekday peak and periods of peak customer activity. However, the morning peak
is likely to be when the store would take deliveries of fresh produce such as milk and as
cited by the developer, this period would not be a particularly busy and the access has
been subject to a safety audit. Also, as regards the weekend restriction, although the
developer would be satisfied with a more limted restriction from 12:00 to 14:00 hours on
Saturday, it is considered that this would be the busiest customer period for the shop so
that Lidl would normally avoid deliveries during this period. As such, only the evening
weekday peak restriction is recommended.

Draft Travel Plan

A key tool in further mitigating the impact of the development on the highway network is the
introduction and promotion of a Travel Plan. A draft Travel Plan has been submitted and
reviewed by the Council's Travel Plan Co-ordinator and the plan and its associated
package of measures and initiatives has been assessed as being generally acceptable
which will promote sustainable travel choices and reduce reliance on car-use. The TP will
work to encourage sustainable travel behaviour from the outset and minimise congestion
on the local road network as a result of the development. A final Travel Plan would be
secured as part of the S106 Agreement.

Conclusion

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



711

712

713

714

In conclusion, the Highway Engineer considers that the network can accommodate the
traffic flows produced by the development without any severe impact. In the light of
paragraph 32 of the NPPF, the impacts are not considered to be demonstrably severe. As
such no objections are raised on traffic generation grounds, subject to the recommended
conditions and transport and highways obligations being covered within the S106
Agreement. Accordingly, it is considered the proposed development overcomes refusal
reasons 2 and 3 of the previous application for a similar development on this site and
accords with the guidance of the NPPF and policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

The relevant planning considerations ave been dealt with in other sections of this report.
Disabled access

The proposal would have a store entrance which incorprates automatic opening doors and
9 of the 104 proposed car parking spaces would be designated Blue/Brown Badge dual
spaces designed to comply with Part M of the Building Regulations. On this basis, the
Council's Access Officer advises that the proposal is acceptable from an accessibility
perspective as the scheme makes appropriate provision for disabled access, subject to
various informatives. These have been included in the officer recommendation.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this proposal.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan advises that new development should retain
topographical and landscape features of merit and that new planting and landscaping
should be provided wherever it is appropriate. Policy BE25 also stresses the contribution
that landscaping can make to the improvement of the Borough's IBAs.

The site boundaries are defined with shrub planting and trees, including trees along the
Stonefield Way frontage and within the car park itself. There is a wide verge running along
the southern edge of Victoria Road, which in other places has been enhanced by more
extensive planting buffers than at the front of this site.

The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer advises that the previous Tree Survey has been re-
submitted which assesses the quality and value of 17 trees on the site. It concludes that
there are no 'A' (good) category trees, one tree, a Prunus 'Kanzan,' is rated 'B' (fair) with
the remaining trees rated 'C' (poor). The officer does advise that as this survey was initially
undertaken in December 2012, its findings must shortly be considered to be out of date but
in this case, the trees are not considered to have changed materially from their initial
ratings.

The proposal involves the loss of 12 trees, although of these, the removal of 3 trees,
including the category 'B' tree had previously been approved as part of the Stonefield Way
road scheme and the removal of 4 other trees had also been applied for under the
demolition proposals for Imperial House (5039/APP/2013/2832). The remaining trees to be
removed, are within the car park and are among the weaker specimens on the site. The
Tree/Landscape Officer previously advised that whilst the mediocre quality of most of the
trees on site would not normally constitute a constraint on development, the environmental
and visual damage caused by their removal would only be mitigated by their replacement
as part of a comprehensive landscape plan for the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



To this end, the red line boundary of the application site has now been extended in the
north-west corner of the site as compared to the previous application to include part of the
service road and Victoria Road. The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer advises that the
landscape proposals reflect the outcome of pre-application discussions to secure
additional off-site tree planting within the highway verge. This planting includes the provision
of a root barrier(s) to protect the underground concrete-lined culvert in the northern section
of the grass verge and tree planting within the car park includes the provision of tree cells
(within the tree pits), intended to provide a greater volume of healthy soil to support healthy
establishment and growth. Furthermore, the inclusion of a greater area of land indicates
that there may be further opportunities for tree planting within, or outside the site.

The Council's Tree/ Landscape Officer concludes that the acceptability of the scheme
relies heavily on the off-site planting of a hedge and trees within the highway verge.
However, subject to this planting forming the subject of a S106 Agreement and a licence
agreement (to plant and maintain the landscape on highway land) and various landscape
conditions, the scheme is acceptable in terms of policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Ecology

As regards ecology, on the previous application, Natural England advised that the
proposals are unlikely to affect any designated nature conservation site or landscape and
that their standing advice should be used to assess the likelihood of protected species
being present. Having regard to their standing advice, there is little probability of the site
containing any protected species. Furthermore, the Council's Sustainability Officer does
not raise any objections to the proposal on ecological grounds.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The submitted plans do not show any specific provision being made for waste and
recycling, although there is a separate internal room marked utilities which could include
waste and recycling and provision could also be made within the warehouse.

Commercial site operators do have a duty of care to contain waste safely until it is
collected by a licensed waste carrier. A condition has included in the officer's
recommendation, requiring details of waste and recycling storage to be submitted.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

An Energy Statement has been submitted in support of the application. The Council's
Sustainability Officer advises that there are no objections to the proposed development
subject to the contribution set out in the energy report of £6,348 to make up for the shortfall
and the development proceeding in accordance with the approved statement. This has
been included in the terms of the S106 agreement.

As such, it is considered that the proposal overcomes refusal reason 6 of the previous
application (5039/APP/2014/143 refers).
717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 5.12
of the London Plan (March 2015) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014) deal with flood risk which should be
handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 (Sustainable
Drainage) of the London Plan (March 2015) and conserve water supplies in accordance
with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (March 2015).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and includes Sequential
and Exception Tests. The sequential test demonstrates that there are no sequential
preferable sites with a lower risk of flooding for this type of use available and the proposal
makes adequate provision to mitigate against flood risk. The scheme also makes adequate
provision to reduce water use. On this basis, the Council's Water and Flood Management
Officer advises that the scheme is acceptable in terms of flood risk, providing it is carried
out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment.

On this basis it is considered that the scheme overcomes refusal reasons 4 and 5 of the
previous application for a similar development on this site and accords with Policy EM6
(Flood Risk Management) in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies 5.12, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan (March 2015) and National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012) and the National Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The Council's EPU Officer previously advised that although noise has not been considered
as part of the submission, the scheme would be acceptable, providing a condition to
control noise from mechanical plant was attached to any permission. This forms part of the
officer recommendation.

As regards air quality, the EPU Officer previously noted a number of issues with the
submitted Air Quality Assessment but did not raise any significant air quality concerns. The
officer did advise that as the development is adjacent to the AQMA and may cause
increases in an area already suffering poor air quality, a £12,500 contribution should be
sought for air quality mitigation/monitoring in the area. This is included in the terms of the
S106 Agreement.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the comments of objection, the support from local residents for the proposal
suggests that a discount store is wanted in the area (point (i)). As regards car and
motorcycle parking (points (ii) and (iii), these are dealt with in the main report. As regards
hours of use (point (iv)), this is an industrial estate, where hours of use of the commercial/
industrial units would not generally be controlled. As regards point (v), converting the short
length of Stonefield Way to two way operation has already been granted permission when
the impacts upon highway safety would have been considered. Point (vi) is noted.

The supporting comments are also noted.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy LE7 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) is concerned with securing planning benefits related to the scale and
type of commercial development. The policy is supported by more specific supplementary
planning guidance.

The following would be required to mitigate the impact of the development:

1. Highways: S278/S38 for highways works to include the reconfiguration of the Stonefield
Way/ Victoria Road (east) junction, the stopping up of the existing service road and the new
vehicular access onto Victoria Road, in accordance with the details first to be submitted
and agreed in writing by the LPA,

2. Green Travel Plan in accordance with TfL guidance to include a £20,000 bond,

3. Service Management Plan

4. Tree planting on public highway, to include a licence agreement (to plant and maintain

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



the landscape on highway land),

5. £6,348 carbon tax contribution

6. £12,500 air quality mitigation/monitoring,

7. Construction training

- Training Cost: £2500 per £1m build cost +

- Coordintaor costs: 3256/7500 x £71,675 = £31,116.50,

8. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: equal to 5% of total cash contributions

The applicant has agreed to the above heads of terms. As such, the scheme complies with
Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies.

The development also represents chargeable development under both the Council's and
the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levies which would equate to £95 per sq. m and £35
per sq.m of floorspace adjusted for inflation.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

This application raises no enforcement issues.
7.22 Other Issues

Land Contamination:

A Phase 1 Preliminary Geoenvironmental Risk Assessment has been submitted with the
application. The Council's EPU Officer has reviewed the document and advises that
conditions are required to secure further site investigation for contamination and imported
soil needs to be tested for possible contamination. These conditions have been included in
the officer's recommendation.

Lighting Scheme

The proposed lighting scheme including free standing and wall-mounted lighting would be
acceptable within this IBA.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

This application is a revised proposal of a previous submission for a similar proposal which
was refused on 11/4/14 (App. No. 5039/APP/2014/143 refers).

It is considered that this revised scheme successfully overcomes the reasons for refusal
of the previous application and it is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

London Plan (March 2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

LDF - Accessible Hillingdon

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, July 2008

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



Tangsd Point Eulkding

Supers

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:
Imperial House

Victoria Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Ruislip
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
5039/APP/2014/3715 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Major Page 109 |November 2015

FHLLINGDON

LUK




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GRASSY MEADOW DAY CENTRE GRANGE ROAD HAYES

Development: 1. Demolition of existing Day Centre.
2. Erection of a single part 3 and part 4 storey building comprising:
2a. 88 number of 1 bed Extra-Care units (C2 Use Class)
2b. 700 sgm dementia resource centre with communal lounge and
associated service facilities (D1 Use Class)
3. Associated soft and hard landscaping (including ancillary structures such
as bin stores & storage shed).
4. Provision of car parking.

LBH Ref Nos: 48110/APP/2015/3436

Drawing Nos: APLO18 (Landscape Visual Impact’
APLO19 (Landscape Visual Impact’
APLO020 (Landscape Visual Impact’
Design and Access Statement dated September 2015 prepared by Hunters
APLO023 (Courtyard Shadow Analysis 21st September)
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment dated 10/09/15 prepared by
MHP
Air Quality Assessment dated 10/09/15 prepared by REC
Transport Assessment dated September 2015 prepared by CEC
Travel Plan dated September 2015 prepared by CEC
Bat Emergence Survey dated September 2015 prepared by SES
Energy Statement Rev.A dated 09/09/15 prepared by Energist Ul
Flood Risk Assessment dated September 2015 prepared by CEC
1. Rev.A (Tree Protection Plan’
1. Rev.A (Tree Survey and Removal Plan
APLO002 Rev.A (Existing Topographical Plan
APLO03 Rev.A (Existing Elevations
APLO09 Rev.A (Proposed Roof Plan’
APLO10 Rev.B (Proposed West Elevation)
APLO11 Rev.B (Proposed North Elevation
APLO12 Rev.B (Proposed East Elevation)
APLO13 Rev.B (Proposed South Elevation’
APLO14 Rev.B (Proposed Courtyard Sectional Elevations’
APLO15 Rev.B (Proposed Site Sections)
APL016 Rev.A (Proposed Bin and Handymans Stores’
APLO17 Rev.A (Main Entrance 3D Perspective lllustration
Extended Phase 1 Habitate Survey, Great Crested Newt Habitat
Assessment and Bat inspection Survey dated 10/06/15 prepared by SES
Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 10/09/15 prepared by SES
Historic Environment Desk-Based Assessment dated September 2015
prepared by TEP
Planning Statement dated September 2015 prepared by Pegasus Grouj
Internal Daylight Assessment dated November 2015 prepared by XCO:.
Energy
APLO01 Rev.A (Site Location Plan
APLO021 (Courtyard Shadow Analysis 21st March’
APLO004 Rev.D (Proposed Site Plan)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



APLOO05 Rev.E (Proposed Ground Floor Plan’
APLO06 Rev.D (Proposed First Floor Plan)

APLO07 Rev.D (Proposed Second Floor Plan)
APLO008 Rev.D (Proposed Third Floor Plan’
15066.101 Rev.B (Landscape Strategy)

APL024 (Courtyard Shadow Analysis 21st December)
APL022 (Courtyard Shadow Analysis 21st June'

Date Plans Received: 14/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 14/09/2015 05/11/2015
28/10/2015
14/09/2015

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the Grassy Meadow
Day Care Centre and the complete redevelopment of the site to provide 88 one-bedroom
Extra Care housing units, a specialised Dementia Resource Centre and associated
facilities. Extra Care housing provides accommodation for older people who wish to live
independently but have higher support needs.

It should be noted that despite the introduction of residential accommodation to the site,
the facility would also provide day care support and the Planning Statement confirms that
the services currently provided at the Grassy Meadow Day Care Centre would continue to
be provided, but that the facilities would be greatly enhanced in terms of the quality of
accommodation and their setting.

The development complies with current planning policy which seeks to encourage new
residential schemes, including those which cater for people in need of additional care.
Furthermore, the provision of the Dementia Resource Centre ensures that there is no loss
of existing daytime health facilities at the site. The scheme would have limited impact on
the openness and visual amenity of the wider Metropolitan Open Land due to existing and
proposed tree planting and, as such, is considered to comply with relevant planning
policies in this regard. Accordingly, no objections are raised to the principle of the
development in this location.

An acceptable living environment would be created for future occupants and the
development and the scheme would have no adverse impact on residential amenity with
the nearest neighbouring properties being located some distance away.

The development would have no significant impact on the local highway network and
appropriate mitigation measures are recommended to ensure that users of the facility are
encouraged to travel by sustainable modes of transport.

The development is considered to comply with all relevant local, London Plan and national
planning policies and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land).

2 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

3 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers APL0O01 Rev.A,
APL002 Rev.A, APL003 Rev.A, APL004 Rev.D, APL005 Rev.E, APL006 Rev.D, APL0O07
Rev.D, APL0O08 Rev.D, APL009 Rev.A, APL0O10 Rev.B, APLO11 Rev.B, APL0O12 Rev.B,
APLO13 Rev.B, APL0O14 Rev.B, APL0O15 Rev.B, APL0O16 Rev.A, APL0O17 Rev.A and
15066.101 Rev.B, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

4 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
supporting plans and/or documents:

Air Quality Assessment dated 10/09/15 prepared by REC

Transport Assessment dated September 2015 prepared by CEC

Bat Emergence Survey dated September 2015 prepared by SES

Energy Statement Rev.A dated 09/09/15 prepared by Energist UK

Flood Risk Assessment dated September 2015 prepared by CEC

Extended Phase 1 Habitate Survey, Great Crested Newt Habitat Assessment and Bat
inspection Survey dated 10/06/15 prepared by SES

Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 10/09/15 prepared by SES

Internal Daylight Assessment dated November 2015 prepared by XCO2 Energy

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of the Hillingdon Local Plan,
the London Plan 2015 and the NPPF.

5 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies/winter gardens, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RESS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage for up to 12 Euro sized wheelie bins

2.b Covered and secure cycle Storage capable of accommodating 24 bicyles

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5 (3 active and 2 passive) of all
parking spaces are served by electrical charging points

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(2015).

9 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

10 RES25 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
detalils.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012); and

To protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3. (delete as
appropriate)

1 NONSC PV details

Prior to the commencement of development full details of the 60.72kwp of Photovoltaic
panels shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
details shall include final amount of PV panels (m2), roof plans and specification of the
panels. The development must proceed in accordance with the approved details unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development reduces its energy demand and carbon emissions in
accordance with Policy 5.2 of the London Plan.

12 NONSC Ecological enhancements

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the enhancement of
biodiversity shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall detail how flora and fauna will be accommodated in the new
development to result in a net improvement in biodiversity. In particular, the landscaping
plans shall include habitat specific vegetation and features (e.g. reptile refugia, habitat
walls, bat and bird boxes); the inclusion of ponds would be welcomed. The development
must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON

To deliver a net gain for biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



13 NONSC Car parking management strategy

Prior to occupation of the development a Car Park Management Strategy shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted
strategy shall contain details of how parking will be allocated to residents, staff and
visitors; how this will be managed to ensure its efficient operation; and how off-site
provision of 20 spaces within the adjoining public car park will be secured, allocated,
managed and maintained for users of the approved development.

REASON

To encourage sustainable modes of travel whilst ensuring sufficient parking is provided for
users of the development in accordance with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

14 NONSC Travel Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved a full travel plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the Travel
Plan is required to be reviewed at regular intervals to monitor its impact and, if required, it
shall be

updated and/or amended in order that its aims and objectives are achieved.

The Travel Plan shall demonstrate a commitment to the ongoing promotion of sustainable
travel to users of the development and include targets for sustainable travel
arrangements, effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan, a
commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives and details of effective mechanisam
to acheive the objectives of the Travel Plan.

REASON
To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

15 NONSC Construction training

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority detailing how Construction
training will be provided for construction workers on the site. The approved means and
timescale of providing the proposed improvements shall then be implemented in
accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the privision of
construction training within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development,
in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations.

16 NONSC Off site planting

Prior to commencement of development, a scheme shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, to provide full details of off-site tree planting to be
provided within the adjoining Grassy Meadow recreation ground. The scheme shall include
full details of the location, species, size and quantity of trees to be provided and a
schedule for implementation.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



To provide additional screening to the development and to ensure that the proposed
development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the Hayes Village
Conservation Area and Metropolitan Open Land in compliance with policies BE4 BE13
and BES38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for
education, social, community and health services

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreatior
leisure and community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 6.1 (2015) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.17 (2015) Metropolitan Open Land

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

6 12 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

7 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 19 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

9 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

10

With regard to condition 5, the Council's Urban Design and Consevation Officer has
recommended use of a red or brown brick rather than a grey brick as proposed, as it is
considered that this would soften the visual impacts of the buiding and be more in keeping
with nearby developments. Accordingly, you are strongly encouraged to give consideration
to this when discharging this condition.

11
The Council's Waste Services Manager has provided the following advice:

a) It is estimated that the waste arising from the development would give rise to the need
for at least 12 bulk bins. Space should be created for this number of containers.

b) The current design show eight bins with a 50:50 split for waste and recycling. Although
setting a goal of diverting 50% of waste for recycling is very commendable, it may be
more practical to have a higher ratio of residual waste bins to start with, and increase the
recycling bins if waste diversion proves successful.

c) The bin enclosure must be built to ensure there is at least 150 mm clearance in
between the bulk bins and the walls of the storage area. The size and shape of the bin
enclosures must also allow good access to bins. A 1,100 litre bulk bin measures 990mm
deep by 1,260mm wide by 1,370mm high.

d) Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the waste storage area with water
and disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage
should be by means of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



area should have a suitable fall (no greater than1:20) towards the drainage points.

e) The material used for the floor of the waste storage area must be able to withstand the
weight of the bulk bins - 100 mm. Ideally the walls of the bin storage area should be made
of a material that has a fire resistance of one hour when tested in accordance with BS
472-61.

f) If gate / door are added to the waste storage area these need to be made of either
metal, hardwood, or metal clad softwood and ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes
when tested to BS 476-22. The door frame should be rebated into the opening. Again the
doorway should allow sufficient clearance either side of the bin when it is being moved for
collection. The door(s) should have a latch or other mechanism to hold them open when
the bins are being moved in and out of the chamber.

g) If 1,100 litre bulk bins are used for the collection of certain waste streams these should
not have to be moved more than 10 metres from the point of storage to the collection
vehicle (BS 5906 standard). This appears to have been met.

h) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins (1,100 litre) have to be moved on should
ideally be no more than 1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be
smooth. If the storage area is raised above the area where the collection vehicle parks,
then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the bin to level of the collection vehicle.

h) The Council cannot provide a collection service for clinical waste from large premises.
This would have to be done by a contractor.

i) The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the Duty
of Care requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental Protection Act.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an approximately 0.7 hectare broadly square shaped and
relatively flat site located towards the east of the Beck Theatre in Hayes.

It currently accommodates the Grassy Meadow Day Care Centre, a single story brick-built
building characterised by its large pitched roofs; its associated access road and car
parking, garden areas; and woodland.

Whilst located in close proximity to busy Uxbridge Road, the site is nevertheless
characterised by its woodland setting and its boundaries are defined by associated tree
planting. It is bounded to the north east by woodland, beyond which is Uxbridge Road, the
opposite side of which are predominantly commercial properties. To the south east the site
is bounded by a recreation ground, beyond which are residential properties. The site is
bounded to the south west by woodland, beyond which is natural public open space and
Hayes Cricket ground. It it is bounded to the north west by the Beck Theatre, a public car
park and Uxbridge Magistrates Court.

The sole access to the site is from its western side. Vehicular and pedestrian access is
gained from Grange Road to the west, via the public car park. The surrounding land is well
traversed by public footpaths which run immediately adjacent to the south east and south

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



west boundaries of the site and provide more direct pedestrian access from the north, east
and south.

The entire application site falls within the Hayes Village Conservation Area and is
designated as Metropolitan Open Land, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan. It is also
designated as a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance.
Records indicate that some water pooling occurs on site. Public Right of Way H25
immediately bounds the south east boundary of the site and Public Right of Way H24 skirts
the site's south west corner. Uxbridge Road to the north east is designated as a London
Distributor Road.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the Grassy Meadow
Day Care Centre and the complete redevelopment of the site to provide 88 one-bedroom
Extra Care housing units and a specialised Dementia Resource Centre.

The Extra-Care units aim to provide high quality independent living, which offers a safe
home to local elderly people with the provision of on-site care and communal facilities. The
Design and Access Statement confirms that 100% of the accommodation to be provided
would be affordable.

The proposed building would be characterised by its part three-storey/part four-storey
broadly square plan surrounding a central courtyard, which would accommodate sensory
gardens.

At ground floor level, in addition to 20 residential units, the building would accommodate a
lobby and reception area; small offices; a kitchen and dining room; mobility vehicle store;
communal resident lounges; a staff lounge; a hair salon and shop; activity rooms;
consulting rooms; an aromatherapy treatment room; activity rooms; a quiet room; a laundry
room; WCs; stores; refuse store; circulation space; and associated facilities.

At first and second floor levels the building would comprise 29 and 28 residential units,
respectively. Two resident day lounges, refuse stores and associated facilities would also
be provided on both floors. At second floor level the building would additionally
accommodate a guest suite and a garden terrace.

At third floor level the building would accommodate 11 units, a day lounge, a roof terrace,
staff WCs and changing rooms, refuse store and ancillary facilities.

It is understood that the communal areas at ground floor level, which make up the
Dementia Resource Centre, such as the restaurant, consulting rooms, activity rooms and
sensory garden, would be available for use by both day visitors and to residents.

Each residential unit would comprise one bedroom, a living room with kitchenette, a
bathroom, an entrance hall and an enclosed balcony/winter garden area of at least 6m2. All
units would provide 52.5m2 of floorspace.

Externally, sensory gardens would be provided within the internal courtyard areas. Amenity
planting, new tree planting and areas of lawn would be provided around the perimeters of
the site, which could be accessed via a permeable pathway. An area of existing woodland
would be retained within the northern corner of the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



3.3

25 car parking spaces would be provided to the north west and north east of the building. It
is also proposed that 20 overspill spaces are provided within the adjoining public car park.
A bin store would be provided in the west corner of the site and a storage/handyman's
shed would be provided within the southern corner.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

Whilst the building would appear to date from the 1970s records indicate that there have
been relatively few past applications pertaining to the site. No previous applications are
directly relevant to the current proposals.

Planning Policies and Standards

National Planning Policy Framework

London Plan (2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

HDP4 bRF.Resignation and London Plan
Bk following YRI, PRI ATERINHRE S0 Rentigdb o replisaition areas

BEA3 PoliciesNew development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE>BET (2 yHBEHEsMIRIHebhsiderations.
BE21CI1 giting) B dkanshrioririyt Rfctems IPyidis@s{extensions.

BJI:'%?EMZ &%qlﬂlﬁ?rteheen 8ﬁi,sl\ﬂe]trogpaq?quf pen emt 8R3%Geen Chains

BE24

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE%§M6 Q&Ia%}igh%gtgﬁ%bp%ﬂﬂ%rglei&tlandscape features and provision of new planting
PT1.EM7  ®T12NERAPEIGIH) IR RIeRPE-ISation

9%11.H ’ gé)ﬁcitﬁgucgl rj[]BeG(:rk(1)r:\}\5ﬁ110ter and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
BEV.H2 2Hicppriferdablartasisikgy to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:

PEB HE1 BRveloppapidikely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

R11

R16
R17

AM2

AM7

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for education, social,
community and health services

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people wit

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(if) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities
LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice
LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management
LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 6.1 (2015) Strategic Approach
LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking
LPP 7.17 (2015) Metropolitan Open Land
LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 11th November 2015
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



2nd November 2015

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 64 local owner/occupiers. Site and press notices were also posted.
No responses have been received.

It should be noted that the applicant has provided details of a public consultation event which was
held at the site on Thursday 20th August between 3.30pm and 7.30pm. The Design and Access
Statement confirms that only seven people attended, five of whom were staff from the existing Day
Care Centre. It suggests that all comments received were positive, although no information of these
has been made available.

HAYES CONSERVATION AREA ADVISORY PANEL

We have no problem with the concept of replacing the existing Grassy Meadows Day Care Centre
building but we do not think the design that is proposed is appropriate in this setting. The scale and
massing of the building might be acceptable in a town centre setting but in its proposed location it
would totally dominate the nearby buildings, such as the Beck Theatre, and the surrounding open
spaces that are a key feature of the area. In addition, the proposed felling of a considerable number
of trees would make it clearly visible from the open spaces that surround the site, especially in
winter when many of the trees shed their leaves.

In producing their design the architects do not seem to have taken any notice of the Hayes Village
Conservation Area Character Appraisal which earlier this summer was put out for public
consultation following its drafting by the Council (http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/media/33730/Draft-
Hayes-VillageConservation-

Areaappraisal/pdf/Draft_Hayes Village_conservation_area_appraisal.pdf).

We can do no better than quote from the appraisal:

"The Conservation Area is surrounded by predominantly low rise residential areas - One of the
defining features of the area is its open spaces. Residents make good use of these, both the formal
ones - and the more informal ones, for example St Mary's Field - "

"The centre of the Conservation Area is dominated by areas of green open space. The main areas
are - the Botanical Gardens, the area round the Beck Theatre, the cricket field, St Mary's Field,
Grassy Meadows ... The buildings appear generally subservient to the mature trees and well
established greenery, that are such a notable feature of these open spaces."

"The - Council's Grassy Meadows Day Care Centre is well screened and appropriately subordinate
to the enveloping landscape, which is a defining feature of the Conservation Area."

The proposed building would be far less well-screened that the one it would replace, and at twice the
height it would dominate its surroundings rather than being subordinate to the landscape. As

noted in the Conservation Area Character Assessment, "- most buildings are of two storeys and this
is an important feature and characteristic in terms of the appearance of the Conservation Area." If
the proposed building was on this sort of scale it might be acceptable, but the present design, and
especially its scale, does not make a positive contribution to the Conservation Area; as such its
construction in this sensitive location would be quite inappropriate.

We therefore strongly oppose this proposal and hope that permission for its construction will be
refused.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



METROPOLITAN POLICE
Consultation has already taken place with the architects. Minutes from the meeting have been
provided.

No objections are raised in relation to the development as long as it adheres to the principles of
Secured by Design.

HISTORIC ENGLAND
The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) provides archaeological advice to
boroughs in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and GLAAS Charter.

Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary.

NATURAL ENGLAND
Natural England has no comments to make on this application.

Internal Consultees

HOUSING SERVICES
The development has been specifically designed to meet an identified need for extra care sheltered
housing in the borough and the development is supported by both Housing and Adult Social Care.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

No concerns are raised in relation to:

a) the impact of the proposed day centre on existing air quality, and

b) the exposure of future occupants to hazardous levels of air pollution,

as the change in concentrations due to the proposal is negligible and the air quality in the opening
envisages is predicted to be well below the limit value to safeguard human health.

The following condition should however be attached:

1. No floodlighting shall be installed unless it is in accordance with details which have previously
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include
location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so
installed shall not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in relation to light pollution accordance
with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The standard informative regarding control of environmental nuisance from construction work should
also be attached.

DRAINAGE OFFICER
Although there is some lack of clarity over whether infiltration would be considered as an option, the
scheme nevertheless looks acceptable with a good range of Suds and drainage options.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



Providing it's built to the plans no objections are raised.

TREES/LANDSCAPING OFFICER

Landscape Character / Context:-

Site description:

The square site is occupied by a single-storey day centre situated within the Grassy Meadow public
open space to the south of Uxbridge Road. It currently has a particularly verdant character due to the
trees and gardens within the site and the woodland and parkland surrounding it.

It is accessed via a shared service road with the Beck Theatre to the west, through open parkland
with trees and the theatre car park.

The land to the east is open space with playing fields and a boundary of hedgerow with trees.
There is a block of woodland to the north which effectively screens the site from Uxbridge Road and
the land to the south is also dense ornamental woodland - an extension of the Norman Leddy
Gardens. There is a narrow permissive footpath which runs immediately to the south of the site,
linking the open space / playing fields to the Beck Theatre.

The mixed semi-natural woodland setting make a positive contribution to the verdant character of the
area. The trees within the site itself include some ornamental species which are not characteristic of
the wider woodland setting.

Landscape Planning designations:

The site lies within the Hayes Village Conservation Area, a designation which protects trees.
However, if consent to remove specific trees is granted as part of a planning consent, further
approval with regard to these trees is not required from the local planning authority.

The site lies within a larger area designated as Metropolitan Open Land.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:
- Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Proposal:-

The proposal is to 1. Demolish the existing Day Centre. 2. Erect a single part 3 and part 4 storey
building comprising 2.a) 88 number 1-bed Extra-Care units (C2 Use Class), 2.b) a 700 sgm
dementia resource centre and communal lounge and associated service facilities (D1 Use Class) 3.
Associated soft and hard landscaping. 4. Single storey communal bin store to incorporate 8 number
of 1100 L Eurobins for general waste and dry recycling and 1 number of 240 L wheelie bin with
locked lid for clinical waste. 5. Single storey shed and handyman store. 6. Provision of 25 on site
parking spaces including 4 disabled spaces and proposal to provide 20 overflow spaces in the
existing Beck Theatre car park.

Landscape Considerations:-

- A Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment, by MHP has been undertaken, in accordance with the
Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact assessment (3rd edition) - the industry standard.

- The assessment describes the site and its context in detail and analyses the predicted impacts,
including the temporary affects during the 24-36 month construction period.

- There is no objection to the assessment which confirms that the development will continue to be
contained within / screened by trees, with the notable exception of the east boundary which will be
exposed to visual receptors.

- A tree survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, by SES has been submitted.

- A total of 64No. individual trees, 7No. groups of trees and 4No. hedges were identified and
assessed, including off-site trees which are close enough to be influenced by the proposals.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



- No 'A' grade (good) trees have been identified - whose quality and value would normally justify
retention as part of any development.

- There are 22No. 'B' grade (moderate) trees and 2No. groups, whose quality and condition merit
retention if at all possible.

- 34No. trees and 5No. groups are considered to be 'C' grade trees - of poor condition and value.
While these trees may have a limited useful life compared with the better trees they may yet have
some collective value in the landscape for the screening / privacy they provide or their value to
wildlife.

- 8No. trees are considered to be 'U' grade, whose removal can be justified for reasons of good
management.

- At 3.4, the report confirms that 46No. individual trees, all 7No. groups and the 8No. 'U' grade trees
will be removed in order to accommodate the development.

- The building has a larger footprint than at present and continues to dominate the south-west corner
of the site with most of the retained trees found along the north and west boundaries.

- 11No. 'B' grade trees will be retained as part of the development: field maple (T68, T69), Italian
alder (T1, T2, T3), oak (T8,T30, T41, T48, T72) and yew (T28).

- In addition, 7No. 'C' grade trees will be retained: ash (T16), Corsican pine (T3), field maple (T17),
Italian alder (T5, T6) and oak (T31, T70).

- The conclusions of the report are found in chapter 5.0 of the report and recommendations are
made in chapter 6.00.

- While the extent of the tree removal is regrettable, it is acknowledged that the off-site woodland to
the north and south and parkland setting (trees and open mown grass) to the west will continue to
provide a degree of privacy and screening. This will be less effective on the east boundary which is
shared with open space / playing fields.

- It is noted, at 3.5, that some planned pruning may be necessary to safeguard retained trees from
accidental damage during the demolition and construction phase.

- A preliminary Arboricultural Method Statement is provided in chapter 4.0.

- An Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey, by SES, has been submitted.

- At 5.8 the report notes that there are a number of invasive species on site which are of local
concern and are listed within the London Invasive Species Initiative (LISI).

- Recommended surveys and precautionary methods are specified in the conclusions, chapter 6.0.
- Subsequent to the above recommendations a Bat Emergence Survey was undertaken by SES, in
September 2015.

- The Design & Access Statement, by Hunters, refers briefly to the site layout (and loss of tress) in
section 2.7 and the proposed hard and soft landscape in 2.15.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

Recommendations:
This application has been subject to pre-application discussions and the proposed tree retention and
landscape proposals reflect the outcome of the discussions.

No objection, subject to the above observations and RES6, RES7, RES8 (As noted in chapter 6.0 of
the tree report, a full Arboricultural Method Statement, with associated plans is required, prior to
commencement. Furthermore, the arboricultural consultant must be retained to monitor and
supervise work near to trees at all critical points, including the site set up, demolition and
subsequent operations. Minutes of site visits / meetings should be submitted to the local planning
authority), RES9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6), RES10.

Additional comments:-

Potential off-site enhancements:

It is noted that there is little space or opportunity for landscape enhancement within the site itself.
The development is largely screened by, and benefits from, the borrowed landscape features within

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



the surrounding public open space. Landscape enhancement of the public open space would
benefit both the development and the wider Conservation Area.

Identified opportunities for enhancement include:

1. The Woodland between the development site and Uxbridge Road.

This is an area which is currently unfenced and open to abuse / anti-social behavior. The woodland
is in need of positive management and maintenance. Access into the woodland should be fenced
and gated. The site would benefit from:

- Woodland management and maintenance, including a serious litter pick throughout the area.

- The area could then be fenced off from uncontrolled public access so that the visual quality of the
woodland can be maintained without enabling the current anti-social behaviour.

2. The Uxbridge Road boundary.

The northern boundary of the public open space to the east and the west of the woodland
(described above) is currently defined by a hedge maintained at approximately 1800mm. This
boundary could be re-inforced to good effect by tree planting between the hedge and the footpath
around the park:

- It is recommended that specimen trees are planted in a parkland style, that is to say individual
specimens planted at 7-10 metre centres with managed / mown grass or meadow beneath.

- This style of planting permits visual permeability at eye level. Unlike the lower storey scrub within
the woodland, it will not screen / shelter undesirable behavior.

- Additional tree planting would benefit both the views from Uxbridge Road and the open space,
together with other environmental benefits.

- Tree planting along this boundary would also help to screen, or at least filter, high level /long
distance views of the proposed development.

- The existing roadside hedge has gaps which could be replanted.

3. Planting along the southern boundary of the proposed development.

The southern faacade of the dementia home is very close to the boundary with the park and
provides little opportunity for preventing overlooking from the open space into the ground-floor
rooms.

If fencing or planting is provided within the development site, it is likely to be oppressive and block
natural light:

- Some off-site planting and management would provide a desirable spatial buffer and / or visual
screen, for the benefit of the ground-floor occupants.

URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

Background:

Grassy Meadow day centre is a single storey structure, dating from the 1970's, which sits just to the
rear of the Beck Theatre, in the former grounds of Wood End House. The day centre is ringed by
woodland, with the Norman Leddy botanical gardens situated on the south-west side, playing fields
on the south east side and the Uxbridge Road to the north east. The whole of the open space is
located within the northern part of Hayes Village Conservation Area.

The Hayes Village Conservation Area Appraisal, adopted in September 2015, describes the area
thus:

"The centre of the Conservation Area is dominated by areas of green open space. The main areas
are Bell Field, Barra Hall Park, the Botanical Gardens, the area round the Beck Theatre, the cricket
field, St Mary's Field, Grassy Meadows and the playing fields of Dr Triplett's School. The buildings
appear generally subservient to the mature trees and well established greenery, that are such a
notable feature of these open spaces.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



... .the Council's Grassy Meadows Day Care Centre is well screened and appropriately subordinate
to the enveloping landscape, which is a defining feature of the Conservation Area. The trees, open
spaces and surviving historic field boundaries are a constant feature in most of the views across the
Conservation Area and contribute positively to its significance. "

The proposal is for a part three, part four storey building, set out around a quadrangle, infilling most
of the day centre site. It is understood that the numbers of units are necessary for the viability of the
extra care facility and that the dementia care resource is an important adjunct to it. It is considered
that the brief allows little scope for any alteration to the layout, height or placing within the site, whilst
the design already addresses the need to articulate the elevations as much as possible.

The appraisal stresses that the heritage significance of this part of the Conservation Area has been
derived from its open space and enveloping landscape. It is acknowledged that the building would
be all but screened in views from the Uxbridge Road, and largely screened from the south-west.

However the building would be visible from the entrance, visible above the trees on the Beck Theatre
side, would lie very close to the public footpath separating it from the Norman Leddy Gardens, and
appear very exposed towards the playing fields to the south-east. To improve these relationships, it
is considered that the brick palette should be changed to reflect that characteristic of the area - ie
brown/red brick, rather than grey; a tall hedge should be grown along the boundary with the public
footpath and the possibility of off-site planting be considered along the playing field boundary.

Conclusion:

In summary, it is considered that, as the partial tree screening "will lead to less than substantial
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal." (NPPF para 133).

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER
No objections are raised to the propose development subject to the following:

Energy:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development full details of the 60.72kwp of Photovoltaic panels shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall include final
amount of PV panels (m2), roof plans and specification of the panels. The development must
proceed in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason
To ensure the development reduces its energy demand and carbon emissions in accordance with
Policy 5.2 of the London Plan.

Ecology:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the enhancement of biodiversity shall be
submitted to and approved in writing. The scheme shall detail how flora and fauna will be
accommodated in the new development to result in a net improvement in biodiversity. In particular,
the landscaping plans shall include habitat specific vegetation and features (e.g. reptile refugia,
habitat walls, bat and bird boxes); the inclusion of ponds would be welcomed. The development
must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



Reason
To deliver a net gain for biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and
Policy EM8 of the Local Plan.

WASTE SERVICES
a) It is estimarted that the waste arising from the development would give rise to the need for at least
12 bulk bins. Space should be created for this number of containers.

b) The current design show eight bins with a 50:50 split for waste and recycling. Although setting a
goal of diverting 50% of waste for recycling is very commendable, it may be more practical to have a
higher ratio of residual waste bins to start with, and increase the recycling bins if waste diversion
proves successful.

c) The bin enclosure must be built to ensure there is at least 150 mm clearance in between the bulk
bins and the walls of the storage area. The size and shape of the bin enclosures must also allow
good access to bins. A 1,100 litre bulk bin measures 990mm deep by 1,260mm wide by 1,370mm
high.

d) Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the waste storage area with water and
disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be by means
of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area should have a suitable
fall (no greater than1:20) towards the drainage points.

e) The material used for the floor of the waste storage area must be able to withstand the weight of
the bulk bins - 100 mm. Ideally the walls of the bin storage area should be made of a material that
has a fire resistance of one hour when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

f) If gate / door are added to the waste storage area these need to be made of either metal,
hardwood, or metal clad softwood and ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS
476-22. The door frame should be rebated into the opening. Again the doorway should allow
sufficient clearance either side of the bin when it is being moved for collection. The door(s) should
have a latch or other mechanism to hold them open when the bins are being moved in and out of the
chamber.

g) If 1,100 litre bulk bins are used for the collection of certain waste streams these should not have
to be moved more than 10 metres from the point of storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906
standard). This appears to have been met.

h) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins (1,100 litre) have to be moved on should ideally be no
more than 1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage
area is raised above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to
safely move the bin to level of the collection vehicle.

h) The Council cannot provide a collection service for clinical waste from large premises. This would
have to be done by a contractor.

i) The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the Duty of Care
requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental Protection Act.

ACCESS OFFICER
The intended demolition of Grassy Meadow Day Centre is to make way for an Extra Care supported
housing scheme comprising 88, one-bedroom units. Planning permission is also sought to replace

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



the existing care facility with a new specialist Dementia Resource Centre, which would provide a
base for complimentary support services delivered by specially trained staff, in addition to the usual
dining and kitchen facilities provided by such establishments.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015 (ADM 2015). 10% of
the proposed residential unit should meet the standards for Category 3 M4(3) dwellings, with all
remaining units designed to the standards for Category 2 M4(2), as set out in ADM 2015.

The submitted Design & Access Statement reports on level access from the public highway.
Pedestrians would be given right of way throughout the site, with vehicles relegated to the
designated access and parking zones.

All external pathways are proposed at a minimum of 1200mm wide and would have a suitable
surface for wheelchair users, using a combination of resin bound gravel, concrete paving slabs and
tarmac. Contrasting colours will be used to demarcate hazards and aid navigation. Tactile paving
surfaces would be used in accordance with national standards.

In accordance with the Stirling Dementia guidelines, the communal garden pathways would be
finished in a resin bound gravel with a Light Reflectance Value of 30 points between the internal
flooring and external terrace finishes. Level access would be achieved to the residential gardens and
lighting levels graded to avoid sudden changes.

A drop-off zone has been incorporated adjacent to the main entrance. Four of the 25 parking
spaces have been designed as accessible bays and are shown on plan to be within 50m of the
internal courtyard entrance.

All entrance and exit doors would provide a clear width opening of 1000mm, with the main entrance
door for the supported housing automatically opening. A minimum width of 800mm clear would be
provided to fire exits, store rooms and plant rooms, etc.

Three, 13 person, lifts would be provided within the communal areas to serve the upper floors. The
communal staircases will be designed in accordance with Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations 2015.

The Design & Access Statement refers to the scheme having been designed to achieve the key
principles set out in the wheelchair design guidance provided by Habinteg Housing Association, with
an emphasis on making homes easily adaptable to cater for a change in personal circumstance.
Within all dwellings, a mobility scooter parking spot would be provided within the hallway, close to
the entrance door. Shower rooms in each flat are configured as 'wet rooms' for wheelchair use, and
it is understood that a ceiling track hoist could be installed for direct access between the main
bedroom and bathroom. All internal doors will meet current Building Regulation requirements. Low
level windows will be provided to ensure access for wheelchair users and people of short stature,
and the mechanisms will be usable by occupants with reduced manual dexterity.

Appropriate fire zones, refuge spaces, fire exit points are understood to have been developed and it
is anticipated that these would acceptable to a fire service representative.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Given the position the drop-off point and the four accessible parking bays, seating should be
provided within the courtyard at intervals not exceeding 50 m.

2. The assisted bathroom shown on the ground floor plan (drawing no: APL 005) should, in addition,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



incorporate the specifications of a 'Changing Places' as specified in the Council's Supplementary
Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon' (adopted May 2013). In addition to a track ceiling hoist,
which should also route to the adjoining accessible toilet cubicle, a height adjustable adult sized
changing table should be added to the brief and incorporated into the design. It may be necessary to
reconfigure the centrally positioned bath, and it would be prudent to consult with the management
and care staff at Grassy Meadow before the new layout and required revised plans are finalised.

Conclusion: revised plans should be requested as a prerequisite to any planning approval. In
addition, a suitable planning condition in line with the example set out below, should be attached to
any planning permission:

Condition:

10% of the residential dwellings shall be constructed to meet the standards for Category 3 M4(3)
dwellings, with all remaining units designed to the standards for Category 2 M4(2), as set out in
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015, and all such provisions shall remain
in place for the life of the building.

Reason: to ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan policy
3.8, is achieved and maintained.

Officer comment:

Further to these comments amended plans have been received to address points 1 and 2 above.
The Council's Access Officer has confirmed that the amended plans satisfactorily address the
matters raised.

With regard to the recommended condition, the applicant has argued that this should not apply
because the application has been registered prior to adoption of the October 2015 Building
Regulations.

The Council's Access Officer has advised as follows:

"As the application was validated before 1 October, 2015, | accept that the council may not wish to
apply the new Technical Housing Standards.

London Plan Policy 3.8 nonetheless remains applicable in terms of meeting the pre-October 2015
Lifetime Home Standards and Wheelchair Home Standards, which | consider have been
incorporated to an acceptable degree."

BUILDING CONTROL

The Council's Building Control Manager has verbally confirmed that no objections are raised to the
determination of the planning application based on the pre-October 2015 Building Regulations and
that this would be taken into consideration in the future assessment of any Building Control
application submitted to the Council.

HIGHWAY OFFICER

Assessing the proposal:

The existing site access is just off Grange Road-3 arm roundabout, currently serving the Beck
Theatre and the existing Grassy Meadow Day Centre. The Grange Road forms a junction with
Uxbridge Road (A4020) which is part of the strategic road network and has a greater importance in
terms of traffic movements. It is a dual carriageway with cycle lanes running parallel to it. The speed
limit at this section of the road is restricted to 40 mph.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



The Grange Road/Uxbridge Road is traffic signal controlled arm and part of a major junction. The
signal controlled phase on the Uxbridge Road allows right turn movements to the Grange Road. The
road surface on the Grange Road is marked, indicating that left turns only are allowed. There are
signs at the entry point from Uxbridge Road, restricting entry to lorries carrying above 7.5 T in
weight, with the exception of the loading lorries, as well as, signs limiting speeds to 30 mph and
speed humps as physical measures to enable speeds to remain low.

The pedestrian movements are facilitated by dropped kerbs with tactile paving. On the junction of
Uxbridge Road and Lansbury Drive, pedestrians are accommodated with a separate pedestrian
phase. In addition, there are a number of public footpaths in the immediate vicinity of this site.

The site is well served for cyclists because of the close proximity to the cycle network and off-road
cycle routes on sections of the Uxbridge Road. The other recommended quieter routes for cyclists,
according to the Local Cycling Guide are Lansbury Drive and Wood End Green Road.

It is concluded that this location is well connected and the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and
vehicular movements are well facilitated.

The PTAL output for this site during the 2011 (Base year) was calculated at 3. In terms of the levels
this represents a moderate public accessibility. Several bus routes were included in the PTAL
calculations, routes U7; 90; H98; 195; 427; 607

The site is not within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ). However, there are double yellow lines close
to the junction of Grange Road with Uxbridge Road. In addition there are single yellow lines along
the Grange Road, restricting parking Mon-Sat from 8AM to 6:30 PM.

On the submitted drawing, ref: APLO04 rev: B, it is noted that existing plants will be retained, with
more planted to 1.8 meter height, to create a screen with public footpaths one of which is running
parallel to the side of the boundary.

There are separate existing pedestrian and vehicular gates at the entrance of the existing site. Full
details of these will be required by way of condition.

Accident data:

Personal Injury Accident data has been assessed in the Transport Assessment (TA) covering a
period of 5 years between July 2010 and August 2015. During this period it has been reported that,
49 personal injury accidents were recorded within the selected zone.

When considering the same zone during the last 3 years, 21 personal injury accidents were
recorded. The map of the selected zone was included in the TA-Appendix 5. The majority of the
recorded accidents were clusters near junctions of Lansbury Drive/Grange Road, Gledwood Drive
and Church Road. Two serious accidents were recorded involving pedestrians, one was at the
junction with Lansbury Drive and the other at Church Road. The majority of the recorded accidents
were shunts or minor collisions which occurred due to driver error.

It was concluded that, there are no reasons in terms of road safety to prohibit the proposed
development because there were no apparent links that accidents were occurring due to the current
junction design.

Trip Generation:

The 7 day automatic traffic counts were taken from the existing site's access, from 27th July to 2nd
August 2015, which recorded a total of 49 two-way movements per day, Monday to Friday.

To predict the number of trips of the proposed development, it was concluded that no similar sites
were found on the TRICS database.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



A similar site to the proposed was analysed to determine the trip rates. The site selected is located
within the LB Hillingdon in Roberts Close, West Drayton consisting a 63 bed care home. The
sample site also has a PTAL of 3, the same as the application site.

The vehicular trip rate per unit for the morning peak arrival was 0.14 whereas the departure trip rate
were 0.21. The total trip rate movements were added and resulted in 0.35. For the afternoon peak
arrival was 0.21, whereas the departure trip rates were 0.21. The total trip rate movements were
0.42. These trip rates are considered acceptable.

Based on the trip rates above, a similar proposal with 88 residential units would have:

-during the (8-9)AM morning peak the arrivals trips will be 12, whereas the departure trips will be 19.
In total the predicted level of trips will be 31.

-during the (17- 18)PM evening peak the arrivals trip will be 19, and departure trip will be 19 as well.
In total the predicted level of trips will be 38.

In addition, trip rates for the proposed Resource Centre, were not possible to predict based on
common databases used. The transport consultant added 10% of the predicted trips to account this
part of the development.

Therefore, the total trips for the proposed site is predicted to generate 34 two-way movements
during the AM peak, whereas for PM peak this number is 42.

If 12 hour counts were looked at for the period, from 7:00 to 19:00, it was concluded that the total
number of arrivals was 151, whereas the total departing trips were 152. Therefore the total two-way
movements was added at 303, for the 12 hour period.

(Note: Since the existing use will remain on site, the existing trips should have been added to
determine the overall impact on the Highways network. However, it can be argued that because of
the temporary relocation of the staff and its users, there will be opportunities for introducing travel
plan measures.)

It is concluded that the overall vehicular trips for the peak periods are low thus the development is
not likely to cause a significant traffic impact.

Car parking provision:

There are 29 existing car parking spaces facilitating the Grassy Meadow Day centre, whereas the
proposed car parking provision for this development is: 25 standard car parking spaces, 4 car
parking spaces for the disabled users, as well as 2 drop-off spaces for the minivans.

There are no LBH Car parking standards for the planning Land Use Classes C2 and D1 and
therefore car parking assessment is based on transport appraisal.

The proposal does not include a designated space for ambulance parking. Nevertheless, the
proposed drop-off area for minivans is considered acceptable to be used in emergency occasions.

On the submitted Site Location Plan the nearby car park is marked as Beck Theatre car park. It was
confirmed, that in fact, this is an existing public car park which is currently underutilised and could be
used during the events when there is additional demand for car parking spaces.

The proposed car parking spaces for the disabled users are located close to the main entrance. The
spaces have an additional 1.2 meters strip on two sides. This is considered acceptable and will help
users with mobility issues, coming in/out of vehicles with ease.

It is understood that minibus location for the drop-off will temporarily restrict movements of several
car parking spaces. Because this is a temporary situation and unlikely to occur frequently, this is

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



considered acceptable.

In order to comply with the London Plan Policy 6.13, a 20% active and 10% passive Electric
Charging Points (EVCPs) out of the total proposed car parking spaces are required for this type of
development. For this case, a provision of 6 active points on occupation, with 3 additional passive
points which could be converted to active, if there is a demand.

Conditions to secure a Car Parking Management Plan (CPMP) to manage car parking demand on
site and to secure the provision and monitoring of EVCPs should be attached should approval be
granted.

Cycle parking provision:

The LBH cycle parking standards for the planning Land Use Classes C2 and D1 are, minimum
provision of 1 space per 2 staff. The information included in the planning statement was that for the
existing development the number of staff expected is 30. To comply with LBH standards this
proposal should include at least 15 cycle parking spaces.

The latest London Plan- draft further alterations to Jan 2014, indicates that for C2 Land use, the
minimum cycle parking standards are: for long stay cycle parking the requirements are 1 space per
5 staff, whereas for the short stay: 1 space per 20 bedrooms. For the D1 Land use these standards
are: 1 space per 5 staff (long stay) and 1 space per 8 staff (short stay).

The proposed employees, noted on the planning application form are 21, which means that 4 cycle
parking spaces(long stay) would be a minimum requirement, whereas for the 88 proposed units, a
minimum of 5 cycle parking spaces (short stay) would be acceptable. This proposal includes 24
cycle car parking spaces. These are split between visitors at the entrance with 4 Sheffield type
stands and 8 located at the rear for staff use.

The proposed cycle parking provision is considered acceptable.

Refuse/Recycling
The refuse is proposed to be moved to an exterior waste store from where it can be collected
externally by refuse vehicles via the existing Beck Theatre access road.

The Swept Path Analysis were included on the Appendix 1 drawing ref: 4769/202. It shows the
9.55m refuse vehicle. If LBH lorries are proposed to be used to carry the refuse/ recycling
collections these are 10.5m long.

It is accepted that although LBH refuse/ recycling vehicles are longer then assessed on the TA that
the existing collection arrangements and the road layout are proposed to remain the same and
worked effectively for the previous use. Therefore this part of the proposal is considered acceptable

Delivery and servicing:
The delivery and servicing activities will be managed internally. The drop-off area is proposed to be
used and this is considered acceptable.

Travel Plan:

A draft Travel Plan was submitted with this application. The travel plan should be secured through a
Condition/or S106 and then monitored for 5 years at least or until the aims and objectives of the
travel plan are achieved.

Recommendations:
Subject to attaching the above mentioned conditions, there is no objection raised on the highways
aspect of the proposals.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site comprises an existing day care facility which, although vacant at the time of writing
this report, has until recently provided day care facilities aimed at older people and adults
who live in the Borough and have physical and sensory disabilities. The submitted
Planning Statement confirms that in addition to residential accommodation the new facility
would continue to provide these facilities. Accordingly, the development is considered to
comply with the aims of Local Plan: Part 2 Policy R11 which seeks to resist the loss of
existing social, community and health provision.

With regard to use of the site for residential purposes in the form of Extra-Care housing,
Policies H1 and H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 seek to encourage new housing with
the emphasis of policy H2 being specific to affordable housing. Paragraph 6.31 of the
supporting text to Policy H2 confirms that:

"Affordable housing achieved across the borough should reflect the distinct needs of
different sections of the community. It should include provision for older people and for
other groups in need of supported housing, specifically people with mental health needs
and people with physical and sensory disabilities or learning difficulties. The council's aim
is to maximise independence and provide self-contained accommodation with appropriate
support.”

London Plan 2015 Policy 3.8 reiterates support for such accommodation confirming that a
wide range of housing types must be made available across London and that local
authorities must ensure "account is taken of the changing age structure of London's
population and, in particular, the varied needs of older Londoners, including for supported
and affordable provision."

NPPF paragraph 50 reaffirms support for a "mix of housing to take account of different
groups in the community including (but not limited to) accommodation for older people" and
the supporting Planning Practice Guidance reiterates the need to provide housing for older
people.

The development is considered to fully comply with these policies which support the
provision of affordable new accommodation for older persons.

Notwithstanding the above policy support for housing and health care provision which
meets the needs of older persons who are in need of additional support, it must be noted
that the entire application site falls on land designated as Metropolitan Open Land (MOL).

Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 confirms that "any proposals for
development in Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be assessed against national
and London Plan policies, including the very special circumstances test."

London Plan policy 7.17 states that:

"The strongest protection should be given to London's Metropolitan Open Land and
inappropriate development refused, except in very special circumstances, giving the same
level of protection as in the Green Belt. Essential ancillary facilities for appropriate uses will
only be acceptable where they maintain the openness of MOL."

Metropolitan Open Land is not referred to in the NPPF. However, the London Plan is clear
that such land should be given the same level of protection as Green Belt and, as such, the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



NPPF's commentary of Green Belt is considered to be of direct relevance. Paragraph 89 of
the NPPF confirms that the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt should be
regarded as inappropriate. However it sets out a number of exceptions to this. Those most
relevant to this development include:

a) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

b) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings),
which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose
of including land within it than the existing development.

The applicant argues that although the building would quite clearly have a larger footprint
and greater volume that the existing Grassy Meadow Day Centre it would, nevertheless,
have no greater impact on the MOL and the development therefore complies with both of
these exceptions. The applicant asserts that unlike the surrounding MOL land the
application site is enclosed by woodland and not publicly accessible with the existing
building and car parking contributing little to the function of the MOL. Furthermore, it is
argued that because the development would not extent beyond the immediate curtilage of
the existing site, there would not be a material increase in the size of the replacement
building in terms of its relationship to the MOL as a whole.

The applicant's arguments are acknowledged and, whilst the proposed building would
undoubtedly be significantly taller and larger in scale than the existing development, it is
nevertheless recognised that, as per the applicant's assertion, the existing site due to its
lack of openness and public accessibility makes only a very limited contribution to the wider
MOL in this instance. It is important to consider the scheme in this context. Furthermore, it
must be acknowledged that despite the size, scale, mass and height of the new
development that due to the significant tree screen surrounding the site the proposed
scheme would, nevertheless, have limited visual impact on the wider MOL. It should also
be noted that the addition of natural surveillance to the neighbouring recreation ground
could contrinute to the safety and security of the space, which could serve to enhance the
function and use of the MOL. Accordingly, on balance, the applicant's argument that the
development meets relevant exceptions as set out in NPPF paragraph 89 is accepted.

Notwithstanding the above, the applicant has also set out to demonstrate that a case of
very special circumstances exists to justify the provision of the facility in this location. The
applicant confirms that there is a significant and growing need for such accommodation
both nationally and within the borough, with targets for such provision having increased
from 425 dwellings per annum to 559 dwellings per annum in recent years. This is
supported by data within the Council's Housing Strategy, research undertaken by the GLA,
the above mentioned policies which support housing growth and by recent Government
housing updates.

In addition to the need for the development, the applicant also argues that there are no
more suitable sites available to the Council to meet this need locally. Whilst no evidence of
a site search has been provided, it is acknowledged that the purchase of land outside the
Council's ownership is unlikely to be a viable or affordable option. Furthermore, it must be
remembered that notwithstanding its MOL designation, this is nevertheless an already
developed site. The availability of sites which are of sufficient size to meet the
accommodation needs, are available to the Council and do not fall within similarly
designated land within this locality are extremely limited.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



The applicant goes on to argue that the development would provide significant employment
benefits, with a need for approximately one member of care staff per eight apartments,
over a total of five shifts, in addition to ancillary staff such as those employed in
management, maintenance, cleaning, etc.

The proposed development complies with current local, London Plan and national planning
policies regarding affordable residential development for older people in need of care and,
notably, the scheme would continue to deliver similar day facilities to the existing Grassy
Meadow Day Care Centre. Furthermore, London Plan policy is clear that development
affecting MOL should be assessed on the same basis as if it were Green Belt. Whilst it is
considered that the development meets the exceptions set out in Paragraph 89 of the
NPPF regarding appropriate development within the Green Belt, it is also considered that
the applicant has demonstrated a case of very special circumstances sufficient to justify
the development in this location. Accordingly, based on a site specific balance of benefits
and harms arising from the scheme, no objections are raised to the principle of the
development subject to the proposals meeting site specific criteria.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2. The London Plan 2015
range for residential sites with a PTAL of 2-3, which fall within an urban area, as defined in
the London Plan, is 200-450 habitable rooms per hectare (hrph) and 70-170 units per
hectare. Given the size of the proposed living rooms (including the kitchenette) in each unit,
at over 20m?, each would count as the equivalent of two habitable rooms in compliance
with the Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts. As such,
based on a total site area of approximately 7,270m? the site would have a density of 121
units per hectare and 363 hrph. This fully complies with London Plan density standards
and is therefore considered to be acceptable.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no listed buildings within the vicinity of the site. Furthermore, it does it fall within
an Archaeological Priority Area and Historic England have confirmed that there are no
objections relating to the development on archaeological grounds.

Notwithstanding the above, the site does fall within the Hayes Village Conservation Area
and its impact on the setting and appearance of that Conservation Area is an important
consideration.

The Hayes Conservation Area Advisory Panel's opposition to the scheme is noted and it is
acknowledged that they consider the proposed building to be too large, too tall and overly
prominent with the development resulting in unacceptable tree loss and failing to consider
the Hayes Village Conservation Area Character Appraisal.

The proposed building would indeed be significantly larger than the existing Grassy
Meadow Day Centre both in terms of its footprint and height. Furthermore, it would indeed
result in the loss of some trees, although notably these would be mostly along its south
west boundary, which bounds a large area of woodland. Nevertheless, it is considered that
the proposed building would be of a high quality design with well articulated elevations and,
despite its increased size and the proposed removal of some trees, it would nevertheless
continue to be well screened.

Notably, one of the key characteristics of this part of the Conservation Area is its open
spaces which are interspersed with areas of tree planting and woodland. Notwithstanding
the proposed increase in the scale of development at the site, it must be acknowledged
that the site in its entirety is, and would continue to be as part of this development,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



enveloped by tree screening on all sides, which significantly limits its visual impact on the
surrounding area.

The applicant has submitted a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment which demonstrates
that through a combination of existing and proposed tree planting, like the existing building
on site, the proposed facility could be significantly screened.

Like the existing day centre the building would be most visible from the shared access road
and public car park to the north west. Despite the retention of large mature trees along this
boundary, in addition to proposed additional tree planting, views would be available through
the site's entrance. Nevertheless, it is considered that the building would be seen in context
with the nearby Beck Theatre and large public car park when viewed from here such that it
would not have any significant adverse impact on the visual amenities of the Conservation
Area.

Limited views of the building would also be available across the recreation ground to the
south west where, due to its height, it would have greater impact than the existing building,
albeit that existing and proposed tree screening would help to minimise its visual impact.
The applicant's Landscape Plan alludes to the provision of off-site planting and this is
supported by both the Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer and the
Trees/Landscape Officer. It is considered that the provision off site planting would
appropriately mitigate against any adverse impact the development might otherwise have
on the visual amenities of the Conservation Area, such that it would have no significant
adverse impact.

The Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officer has recommended that an
alternative brick colour should be considered in order to soften the visual impact of the
development. This could be secured by way of condition. The Council's Urban Design and
Conservation Officer has also recommended the provision of a tall hedge along the south
west boundary, where the site is bounded by a footpath. This is indicated on plan and
would be secured by way of the standard landscaping condition.

Whilst the proposed development would inevitably have some impact on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area this must be weighed against other policy criteria.
Given the need for the proposed development, in addition to the proposed planting, which
would significantly mitigate against the impact of the development, it is not considered that
the proposal would have such an adverse impact on the visual amenities of the Hayes
Village Conservation Area that refusal could be justified.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities
on this developement.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The site does not fall within the Green Belt and there is no Green Belt within the vicinity.
The entire application site and surrounding land is however designated as Metropolitan
Open Land (MOL). As stated elsewhere in this report, given that this is an existing
developed site which is not publicly accessible and which is significantly screened by
existing trees, it is not considered that the development would have any significant
detrimental impact on the visual amenities or the openness of the MOL or be contrary to
current policy which seeks to protect such land. This has been discussed in more detail
above in part 7.01 of the report.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



This issue has been largely addressed in part 7.03 of the report. With the exception of the
Beck Theatre and public car park to the west of the site the immediately surrounding area
is predominantly characterised by public open spaces, interspersed with woodland and
tree planting.

The application site is bounded by woodland to the north east and south west and tree
planting exists along its north west and south east boundaries. Notwithstanding the
proposed increase in the size of the building height and footprint, the proposed
development would nevertheless remain well screened such that its impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area would be limited.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With the exception of the Beck Theatre and a public car park, located towards the west, the
application site is bounded on all other sides by woodland and public open space.
Accordingly, it is relatively isolated from the nearby urban areas.

The nearest residential properties are located over 80m away above commercial premises
in Uxbridge Road and beyond woodland and a busy dual carriageway. To the south east
the nearest residential properties are located over 100m away in Church Road, beyond the
Grassy Meadow Recreation Ground.

Given the distance between the proposed development and the nearest sensitive

receptors, and tree screening which would be provided around the site, it is not considered

that the development would have any significant adverse impacts on residential amenity.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

There is no specific design guidance for Extra Care Homes. However, Policy H10 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan states that proposals for redevelopment to provide hostels or other
accommodation for people in need of care, such as residential care homes or sheltered
housing schemes, should have regard to the amenity guidelines set out in Supplementary
Planning Guidance. Accordingly, due regard must be given to the Council's Supplementary
Planning Documents (SPDs) on Residential Layouts and Accessibility in addition to other
policy updates.

The Council's SPD on Residential Layouts states that a minimum of 50m2 internal
floorspace should be provided for one-bedroom flats. This is reinforced by policy 3.5 of the
London Plan 2015 and also by the recently published Housing Standards Policy Transition
Statement (October 2015). All units would have internal floor areas of 52.5m2. Accordingly,
all of the units would exceed current minimum standards.

In accordance with the SPD on Residential Layouts a minimum distance of 21m would be
achieved between facing habitable rooms within the courtyard area. No overlooking would
occur to external facing units. At ground floor level enclosed "winter gardens" would provide
a degree of defensible space between residential units and external garden areas and
footpaths.

Overshadowing diagrams have been provided for units fronting the internal courtyard area.
These show that units fronting the south east and south west elevations of the courtyard
would experience shade for a significant portion of the year. Following concerns raised by
officers over the levels of internal daylight to some of the units the applicant has given
careful consideration to the originally proposed glazing specification and room configuration
and confirmed, through the provision of an amended Internal Daylight Assessment, that
100% of habitable rooms and the vast majority of communal rooms, including those which
are likely to be used for longer periods of time, would meet recommended BRE guidelines

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



associated with internal daylight standards. Accordingly, it is considered that the units
would provide an acceptable living standard to future occupants in this regard.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts states that a
minimum of 20m2 usable external amenity space should be provided for one-bedroom
flats. It confirms that balconies should be provided wherever possible for upper floor flats,
along with private patio or garden areas and that where usable balconies or private garden
space is provided for individual units the floorspace can be deducted from the overall
calculation of outdoor amenity space. No standards are provided within the London Plan.
Accordingly, in total, at least 1,760m2 of external amenity space should ideally be provided.

The internal courtyard gardens would provide approximately 471m2 of amenity space
(excluding the conservatory and potting shed) and communal areas in the form of terraces
and balconies would provide approximately 150m2 of amenity space. Whilst the
balconies/winter gardens to the individual residential units are enclosed, these would
provide bright and airy spaces with attractive outlooks and, given the nature of the scheme,
it is considered that these areas add valuable amenity to the development and should be
included for the purposes of such calculations. These would provide spaces of between
6m2 and 12m2 to the units, providing a total of approximately 731m2 of space. In total, this
amounts to approximately 1,352m2. Informal garden areas, seating and pathways would
be provided around the periphery of the site which would also contribute to the amenity
space available on site, such that the total space available, including internal courtyards,
terraces, balconies/winter gardens and peripheral areas would be well in excess of the
minimum standards.

The scheme exceeds current standards relating to internal floor space and Council
guidelines relating to external amenity space. It is considered that the proposal would
adequately serve the needs of future occupiers and that it fully complies with current local,
London Plan and national policies relating to residential amenity.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

A Transport Assessment has been submitted in support of the application. This confirms
that the traffic generation associated with the proposed Extra Care apartments is expected
to be low, with a very low number of occupants likely to own cars due to the very nature of
the facility. As such, the majority of traffic associated with the development would be from
staff, visitors and mini-buses to/from the Dementia Resource Centre.

25 on-site parking spaces, including four disability standard spaces, would be provided.
The Planning Statement suggests that there could be up to 30 staff on site at any one time
(although it should be noted the application form suggests this is lower at 21). Given the
proximity of the application site to residential areas of Hayes and to bus stops and cycle
lanes along Uxbridge Road it is likely some of these would however walk, cycle or use
public transport. As stated above, car ownership amongst residents is expected to be very
low. Furthermore, day users of the Dementia Resource Centre would be transported by
mini-bus. Accordingly, based on predicted demand, which has considered parking demand
at existing Extra-Care facilities in the borough, this is considered to be sufficient to cater for
staff and visitors of the facility.

Notwithstanding this however, it is also proposed that up to 25 additional spaces are
provided within the adjoining public car park to cater for visitors at busy times of the year.
The Transport Assessment suggests overspill into the public car park would be infrequent.

Notably, no parking restrictions apply in the public car park which, despite its location

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



adjacent to the Beck Theatre, is currently freely available to anyone to use and not
specifically for the Theatre. Therefore, even if this were not proposed, it would be difficult to
prevent overflow parking from the application site taking place here at busy times. At times
of site visits the car park has been extremely underused, with a small number of users
parking at its western end only. The Transport Assessment confirms that even during
performances at the Beck Theatre capacity remains within the car park and it is accepted
that this is indeed likely to be the case for all but perhaps the busiest Christmas
performances. Accordingly, this is considered to be acceptable and, notably, no objections
have been raised to this by the Council's Highway Officer. It is recommended that a
condition is attached requiring a car parking management plan to ensure this is
appropriately managed.

Sufficient space is provided for mini-buses and ambulances associated with the facility to
drop-off/pick-up passengers and manoeuvre within the site.

Cycle parking for 24 bicycles would be provided, which is considered to be acceptable for
this type of development.

Trip generation from the site is expected to be very low, with staff working in shifts such
that travel during peak times would be limited. As such, it is not considered that the
development would have any adverse impacts on the local highway network.

Notably, no objections have been raised by the Council's Highway Engineer subject to
conditions requiring the submission of a Travel Plan, to encourage staff to travel by
sustainable modes of travel, a parking management plan and provision of electric vehicle
charging points. As such, the development is considered to be acceptable on parking and
highway grounds.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

- Urban Design
Issues relating to urban design have been addressed in part 7.03 of the report.

Whilst the proposed development, due to its increased height and footprint over the existing
building, would inevitably have a greater visual impact, existing and proposed planting
would provide sufficient screening such that this would nevertheless remain limited.

The building would be of a high quality modern design with well articulated elevations.
Whilst a grey brick finish is currently proposed, the Council's Urban Design and
Conservation Officer has recommended that a red or brown brick finish should be
considered. It is not considered that refusal could be justified based on use of the proposed
grey brick, particularly given the proposed tree screening around the periphery of the site.
However, should planning permission be approved, full details of all external materials
would be required by way of standard condition. An informative would be attached to
encourage the applicant to consider use of a red or brown brick.

- Security
No objections have been raised on grounds of security by the Metropolitan Police
Designing out Crime Officer and increased natural surveillance of the neighbouring open
space could benefit the use of this area.

7.12 Disabled access

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed development will
acheive high levels of accessibility with level access provided throughout, good wheelchair
access to all facilities, appropriate door widths and surfacing to internal and external areas,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



provision of three lifts and appropriately located accessible parking bays.

Amended plans have been received which show exterior seating around the car park and
an appropriate layout to the communal bathroom to meet Changing Places criteria,
following comments from the Council's Access Officer, who has confirmed the
amendments are acceptable.

The applicant has argued that because the planning application was submitted prior to the

1st October that it would be unreasonable to require them to comply with new Building

Regulations and this has been accepted by the Council's Access Officer, particularly given

that the scheme would require separate Building Control consent in any case. Accordingly,

the development is considered to adequately comply with relevant accessibility standards.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The Design and Access Statement confirms that 100% of the accommodation to be
provided would be affordable.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

-Trees/Landscaping

The site is currently characterised by its woodland setting and tree planting around all its
boundaries. Whilst a number of trees would be removed to accommodate the
development, the best quality trees would, where practical, be retained.

The south west boundary suffers from the greatest level of tree removal. However, this
would be mitigated against by the adjacent woodland and proposed new tree and hedge
planting towards the edge of the site.

Additional tree and hedge planting would also be provided along the south east boundary,
which is, arguably, the most sensitive in terms of its impact on the MOL and Conservation
Area. Tree planting is also proposed to the north east and north west of the site to provide
enhanced screening.

The Council's Trees/Landscape Officer, although raising no objection to the proposed loss
of trees or landscaping scheme, which is considered to be of a high quality, has however
recommended better management of existing woodland adjacent to the site and the
provision of additional tree planting off-site, to suitably screen the building and help to
mitigate against its visual impact on the surrounding area. This would be secured by way
of a condition.

- Ecology

The site falls within an area designated as a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade |l
or Local Importance. Accordingly an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey, Great Crested
Newt Habitat Assessment and Bat Inspection Survey has been submitted in support of the
application. This confirms that subject to appropriate mitigation measures the development
would not have any unacceptable adverse impact on protected species. Notably, in addition
to enhanced planting in and around the site the development includes the provision of a
green roof, which has benefits for biodiversity. The Council's Sustainability Officer has
raised no objections subject to an appropriate condition requiring further ecological
enhancements.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The plans indicate that a refuse store for general and recyclable waste would be provided
within the south west corner of the site, in a location easily accessible to refuse vehicles.
The Council's Waste Services Manager has notably raised no objections subject to the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



provision of a slightly larger refuse store, capable of holding additional bins. This can be
required by way of condition and, as such, the refuse provision is considered to be
acceptable.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (2015) requires development proposals to make the fullest
contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions. Major development schemes must be
accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 40% target reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement to
demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met. In addition to energy efficient
building measures relating to the building fabric, lighting, ventilation, etc, photovoltaic (PV)
panels and a CHP boiler will be incorporated into the scheme. These measures would
achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions in excess of 40% above Part L of the
Building Regulations in compliance with London Plan requirements.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has notably raised no objections to the carbon
reduction measures proposed subject to a condition requiring full details of the PV panels.
717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone or critical drainage area and no specific issues
relating to flooding in or around the site have been identified. In accordance with current
planning policy a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy has been submitted. This
confirms that the proposed development will not lead to any increased risk of flooding and
that sustainable urban drainage measures in the form of permeable paving and attenuation
tanks would be provided, in addition to a green roof. The Council's Drainage Officer has
confirmed that the details submitted are acceptable.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

- Noise

It is not considered that the development would give rise to unacceptable levels of noise
given its proposed use and location. Notably, officer's in the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit have raised no objections on noise grounds.

- Air Quality
An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted which confirms that the development
would not have any significant impact on local air quality. Officers in the Council's
Environmental Protection Unit have raised no objections on air quality grounds.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The only comments received were from the Hayes Conservation Area Advisory Panel and
the concerns raised are addressed in the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Local Plan states that: 'The Local Planning Authority will, where
appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open spaces, facilities to
support arts, culture and entertainment facilities through planning obligations in conjunction
with other development proposals.’

In this case, due to the ownership of land all necessary off-site mitigation is capable of
being secured by way of grampian condition.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

None.
7.22 Other Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The development is considered to comply with current planning policies which seek to
meet the populations growing housing needs. Furthermore, given the need for this type of
accommodation and the limited visual impact the development would have on the wider
area it is considered to comply with the objectives of policies which seek to protect MOL
from unacceptable development.

The applicant has demonstrated that an acceptable living environment would be created for
future occupants. Given the distance between the application site and the nearest
residential properties, the scheme would have no adverse impact on residential amenity.

The development would have no significant impact on the local highway network and
appropriate mitigation measures are recommended in the form of a Travel Plan to ensure
that users of the facility are encouraged to travel by sustainable modes of transport. This
would be secured by way of condition.

The development is considered to comply with all relevant local, London Plan and national
planning policies and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework

London Plan (2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Contact Officer: Johanna Hart Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



Uxbridge
County
Court

Beck Theatre

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Grassy Meadow Day Centre

Grange Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Hayes Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale: f
48110/APP/2015/3436 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: S
Major Page 149 [November 2015 “I"“I' [L1 lliiu%j DON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WEST LONDON INDUSTRIAL PARK IVER LANE COWLEY

Development: Continued use of the site for B8 purposes with new storage and ancillary

workshop and office buildings, car parking, external storage area and new
access to Wallingford Road

LBH Ref Nos: 751/APP/2015/335

Drawing Nos: TNO1

P31036.01 Rev B

P31036-07

31036 Standard Drawings: Washbay 3

Planning Noise Impact Assessment

P31036-09 Rev B

31036 Typical fuel storage and containment arez
P31036-08

P31036-04

P31036-05

P31036-06

P31036-02 Rev A

P31036-03 Rev A

Design and Access Statement

Drainage Statement

Phase one desk top report reference In15241 CL 00
DW Transportation Technical Note

Covering Letter

Date Plans Received:  28/01/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/04/2015
Date Application Valid: 09/06/2015 28/01/2015
15/03/2015
15/06/2015

SUMMARY

This application seeks consent for the continued use of the site for B8 purposes and the
addition of new storage and ancillary workshop and office buildings, car parking, external
storage area and new access to Wallingford Road.

Whilst the use of this vacant site for B8 purposes is welcomed in accordance with the
Councils employment policies and no objection raised to the addition of new buildings to
assist the operations, there are concerns with regards to the proposed new access and
egress from the site on the highway network and its impact on the amenity of residential
occupiers.

Historically the site access/egress has been from Iver Lane to the south, however this
scheme proposes to create a new access point so that all traffic associated with the
operator can access the site via Cowley Mill Road/Wallingford Road.

The application has failed to demonstrate that Wallingford Road, and Cowley Mill
Road/Wallingford Road and Cowley Mill Road/St John Road junctions and the surrounding
road network can satisfactorily accommodate the development traffic. Officers are of the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



view that the proposals will unacceptably increase demand along the roads/junctions
which are already used to capacity by other industrial and residential users. Overall, the
scheme is considered to prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of general
highway and pedestrian safety.

Furthermore, the proposed use of this new access over a 24 hour period, raises additional
concerns with regards to the potential noise disturbance, particularly at night time as a
result of the additional HGV traffic. Given that the existing night time noise levels are
already above the WHO guidelines, it is considered that the additional noise associated
with these vehicle movements would harm the health and quality of life of residents,
sufficient to outweigh the commercial needs of the occupier (Speedy Hire). The
application would thereby be contrary to policies paragraph 123 of the NPPF, EM8 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies, saved policies OE1, OE3 and AM7 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved policies and SPD 'Noise'.

Refusal of the application is therefore recommended.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Vehicular Noise disturbance

The proposed night time vehicle movements associated with the new access road via
Wallingford Road, would have a significant adverse impact on the health and quality of life
of the residents in Cowley Mill Road. The new access point would introduce significant
additional vehicular movements, including during unsociable hours, resulting in
unacceptable noise and disturbance to nearby residential occupiers. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (2015), the National
Planning Policy Framework and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Noise.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposals have failed to demonstrate whether the traffic generated on the roads to the
north as a result of the creation of a new access/egress to the site via Wallingford Road,
would be acceptable in terms of the capacity and functions of the existing roads. In the
absence of this information, the proposals will unacceptably increase demand along the
roads/junctions within the local borough highway network, which are already used to
capacity by other industrial and residential users. The scheme is therefore considered to
prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety and
would be contrary to policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved policies.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located within West London Industrial Park, on the northern side of
Iver Lane. The site is designated as an Industrial and Business Area (IBA) within the
Hillingdon Local Plan and the industrial estate has been subdivided into a number of plots
which are predominantly used for open storage. The site is rectangular in shape
(measuring 1.74 hectares) and is accessed currently from Iver Lane.

The western edge of the site bounds open Green Belt land and the River Colne. To the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



north is the proposed access to the site via Wallingford Road and extensive area
comprising Uxbridge Industrial Estate. Access to Wallingford Road is from Cowley Mill
Road to the north which extends from the cross roads at Frays River to the east of the site,
through to the roundabout with the A4007 Slough Road/St Johns Road to the north west.
Cowley Mill Road crosses the Grand Union Canal over the narrow humped Swan Bridge,
with a 17 tonne weight limit, subject to single lane working controlled by traffic signals.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the continued use of the site for B8 purposes and the
addition of new storage and ancillary workshop and office buildings, car parking, external
storage area and new access to Wallingford Road.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

751/APP/2007/3244 Northern Part Of The Former Cape Boards Site lver Lane Cowley

PERMANENT ERECTION OF FOUR PORTACABINS FOR ANCILLARY OFFICE AND STAFF
WELFARE FACILITIES, CLADDING & NETTING OF THE EXISTING BUILDING, ERECTION O
7M HIGH CHAIN LINK FENCING (WESTERN AND SOUTHERN BOUNDARY), ASSOCIATED
CAR PARKING AND ANCILLARY SITE WORKS INCLUDING THE INSTALLATION OF VARIOL
ASSOCIATED PLANT MACHINERY.

OPTION 1: ACCESS FROM WALLINGFORD ROAD

OPTION 2: ACCESS FROM IVER LANE

Decision: 22-01-2008 Approved

751/APP/2008/3334 Northern Part Of The Former Cape Boards Site Iver Lane Cowley

Alteration to depot's lorry parking layout to provide for 16 additional unloading bays (new total of
25) for overnight parking. Amendment to planning permission ref.751/APP/2007/3244 dated
22/01/2008: Permanent erection of four portacabins for ancillary office and staff welfare facilities
cladding and netting of the existing building, erection of 7m high chainlink fencing (western and
southern boundary), associated car parking and ancillary site works including the installation of
various associated plant machinery.

option 1: access from Wallingford Road

option 2: access from lver Lane (AMENDED SITE PLAN - 1 HECTARE+)

Decision: 03-03-2009 Withdrawn

751/APP/2009/2721 Northern Part Of The Former Cape Boards Site lver Lane Cowley

Marking out on existing tarmac of 25 lorry parking spaces (Application for a Certificate of Lawful
Development for a Proposed Development)

Decision: 19-02-2010 Refused Appeal: 29-12-2010 Allowed

751/APP/2009/674 Northern Part Of The Former Cape Boards Site lver Lane Cowley

ALTERATION TO DEPOT'S EXISTING HEAVY GOOD VEHICLE AND LORRY PARKING
LAYOUT TO PROVIDE A TOTAL OF 25 SPACES FOR OVERNIGHT PARKING (AMENDMENT
TO PLANNING PERMISISON 751/APP/2007/3244)

Decision: 30-06-2009 Approved Appeal: 20-04-2010 Allowed

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



751/APP/2013/2717 West London Industrial Park lver Lane Cowley

Erection of buildings comprising offices, welfare facilities, maintenance workshops, laying out of
car parking and internal security fencing all in conjunction for the use of the site in association
with the storage, maintenance and hire of construction plant and machinery.

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

There have been a number of planning applications at the Cape Boards site over the years.
Over time these have increased the built up nature of the site and also increased the
vehicle movements to and from the site from its state following the closure of the Cape
Boards factory, where it was largely vacant hardstanding. There do not appear to be any
planning applications that relate directly to this site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

HDP4 BBF.Resignation and London Plan
AR following W olifies asropissitered S8 ¥ABh QR ARPleA i ation, impact on congestion

.. and public transport availability and capacity
Part 1 Policies: ) ] ]
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Al BE1 (Yo HemalrEmenbanteaar parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 7.30 (2015) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE2 Assessment of environmental impact of proposed development

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE4 New or improved roads or railways - mitigation measures

OES5S Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 154



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

147 residents were notified of the application and 7 comments were received from residents raising
the following objections and support to the scheme:

1. 24 hour industrial traffic will cause disturbance to sleep;

2. Why can the trucks continue to use Iver Lane, using Wallingford Road will disrupt residents;

3. Wallingford and Cowley Mill Road are not suitable for this application and there is no provision for
maintenance of Wallingford Road;

4. The increased use of Wallingford Road will increase damage to the road;

5. Wallingford road is already in 24hr use and other industries in the site have to pay for the damage
they cause;

6. The junction of Wallingford Road and Cowley Mill Road is unsuitable for articulated lorries, many
cannot safely turn into or out of the site and hold up traffic;

7. Single lorry trailers have to go over the footpath to make the turn which is dangerous for
pedestrians and other vehicles using the bridge;

8. Cowley Mill Road is a very narrow road also where lorries mount the path to pass oncoming
vehicles;

9. The existing noise from lorries passing between 3.30am and midnight is already unbearable,
particularly those lorries carrying plant/machinery;

10. The company already operate on the site but use the exit/entrance in lver Lane, which is already
busy with other HGV traffic.

SUPPORT
11. Would support the scheme if they have the same working hours as others within the site, and
would welcome the use of others using the Wallingford Road exit.

SOUTH BUCKS DISTRICT COUNCIL

South Bucks District Council raises no objections to the proposal provided that there would be no
increase in vehicle movements on Iver Lane and then on through Iver Village and Richings Park,
which would be contrary to the objectives of the Core Strategy by impacting highway safety and
causing additional noise and disturbance to residents during unsociable hours.

IVER LANE RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

Wish to make the strongest objection to the section in the application concerning the request for
24/7 working, on the grounds that the noise and disturbance from the loading and unloading,
movement of plant and equipment in this company's compound. The noise HGV traffic both Speedy
Hire's own and the large number of subcontract hauliers that are generated by this company
operating at this location, is placing intolerable noise burden on the rear of local residents properties
in Iver Lane. Plus the same effect on the large number of Residential moorings on the Grand Union
Canal, all of which are close to this companies compound

Internal Consultees

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT

The proposed plans have taken into account their increase in discharge with the addition of wash
bay facilities and additional office workspace. They have taken appropriate steps with attenuation
and separators to minimise any chemical discharge into the two watercourse. The plans also show
they have taken into consideration any future capacity increase. | have not been provided with any

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 155



information on the management & maintenance of the drainage system. Therefore, | ask for the
following condition: Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system. i. Provide a
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements to secure
the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of Inspection
regimes, appropriate performance specification, remediation and timescales for the resolving of
issues.

HIGHWAYS
The site area is 6000 sgm with the proposed building of 557 sqm GFA. The rest of the site is for
storage of equipment, cranes etc.

The transport statement provides trip generation from TRICS as well as figures supplied by the
applicant based on the anticipated requirements of the applicant. No details of any surveys out
carried to determine the applicant's figures have been provided.

Based on TRICS the site has a potential to generate 53 two way trips (34 arrivals and 19
departures) during the AM peak and 46 two way trips (14 arrivals and 32 departures) during the PM
peak with predicted daily ( assumed 8hr day) two way movements of 536 vehicles.

The data provided by the applicant is 16 two way movements during AM peak and 16 two way
during the PM peak with daily flows of 32 vehicles.

The sites permitted access and egress is off Iver Lane. Due to the weight restriction on the Canal
bridge HGVs can only access the site from and to Iver with no HGVs having any impact on the
borough's highway network. The current proposal is to have the sole access/egress from
Wallingford Road on to Cowley Mill Road. Therefore all traffic from this development would be
considered to be new traffic on to the local borough highway network.

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that Wallingford Road, and Cowley Mill Road/Wallingford
Road and Cowley Mill Road/St John Road junctions can satisfactorily accommodate the
development traffic.

No auto tracks have been provided to demonstrate that HGVs etc turning left out of Wallingford
Road are able to do so without encroaching on to the opposite lane.

25 car parking spaces are proposed again based on anticipated requirements of the applicant, with
no justification provided. For the proposed uses the Councils maximum parking standards permit
2 spaces plus 1 space per 100 sgm for all floor space in excess of 235 sqm. A robust justification
for the level of parking proposed is required following which a Condition would be required limiting
the parking provision to the desired number.

Clarification is required on staffing numbers and their mode of travel and whether any of the
proposed uses would attract customers to the site. Depending on this a travel plan may be
required.

The application as it currently stands cannot be supported on highway grounds.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
On the application it states that the opening hours for the site are 00:00 to 23:59 - so this site is to be
a 24 hour site, moving and delivering large machines along narrow residential roads.

Whilst | understand a need to have such a development, to have 24 hour usage near to sensitive
premises, and although they have provided mitigation on site, there is nothing to enable the
mitigation of noise from lorries/vehicles entering or leaving the site at any time.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 156



Currently the site is accessed from Iver Lane and does not have a lawful access to Wallingford
Road. To allow this development would therefore generate vehicle movements, including at night,
above the levels local residents have become accustomed to.

The noise report states that the residential locations are already higher than the WHO guideline
criteria for night time noise - approximating this to be 12-16dB higher. If this is the case, then to add
further to the noise environment through amending the access arrangements for the site would
cause adverse impacts on the health and quality of life of those residents along Waterloo Road and
Cowley Mill Road. I find it hard to believe that altering the access arrangements and increasing the
number of lorry movements during the night time will not result in an increase in noise levels.

Cowley mill road is exceptionally narrow and has traffic lights where it goes over a single lane bridge,
with a 17 Ton weight limit.

Therefore | would object to 24 hour usage on the grounds that the delivery noise would be
unacceptable to residents.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of using this site for industrial purposes has been established through

previous uses on the site. Given that this application seeks to retain the land in a B8

(storage or distribution) use, no objection is raised to the proposed retained use of the site.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues associated with this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The B8 operation of this site is established through previous consents. A large operational
building and portacabins are proposed on the site, which are of a similar design and scale
to others within the wider industrial area. Given the location of these buildings on the site
and their design, they are not considered to have a detrimental impact on the openness
and character of the green belt.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies seek to ensure that new
development will complement and improve the character and amenity of the area. Policy
BE25 further states that the Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure modernisation and
improvement of industrial and business areas through careful attention to the design and
landscaping of buildings and external spaces.

The majority of the yard will be used for the external storage of hire equipment used by the
construction industry. Due to the operational requirements of the applicant, small offices
and maintenance buildings are required on site. A workshop building measuring 300sgm in
floor area with a height of 6 metres is included within the proposals. This building is
proposed to the south of the site and will be used to service and maintain the equipment
available to hire. A modular unit is proposed for the offices which is approximately 257sqgm
in area and 3.1 metres in height.

Given the scale and siting of these buildings, their largely industrial appearance, and the
character and nature of the surrounding area, the Council does not consider that the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 157



proposed buildings would appear out of character with the surrounding area.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out in paragraph 123 the test for
noise that needs to be applied to planning applications. The NPPF states that planning
policies and decisions should aim to:

1. Avoid noise from giving rise to adverse impacts on health and quality of life;

2. Mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse impacts on health and quality of life
arising, through the use of conditions;

3. Recognise development will create some noise and existing businesses wanting to
develop should not have unreasonable restrictions put on them because of changes in
nearby land uses since they were established.

The Council's Saved Policies are consistent with the policies of the NPPF. Policy OE1
states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to the
character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states buildings or uses
which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted if the impact can
be mitigated.

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan seek to ensure that proposals
do not have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers
through loss of light, dominance or loss of privacy.

Policy OE1 seeks to reduce as much as possible the adverse impact of noise from
industrial and trade processes which could include the day to day operation of the site,
vehicle movements and any other matters that have the potential to cause noise and
disturbance to residents.

The site is adjoined to the north, east and south by industrial land with residential to the far
west. The site is located a significant distance from the nearest residential dwellings on
Iver Lane (approx. 280m away), Cowley Mill Road (approx. 605m away) and the
houseboats on the canal (approx. 150 metres away). The siting of the proposed buildings,
as detailed on the site plan, is such that at this separation distance, the proposal would
meet the HDAS Residential Layouts guidance of being more than 15 metres from any
residential property and would ensure no significantly harmful loss of light, loss of outlook
or privacy or sense of dominance would occur to any residential occupier in the
surrounding area.

No change of use is sought to the land and the operator is continuing an established B8
use on the site. Given such, no objection can be sustained, or is indeed raised to the
continued use of the site in terms of noise and disturbance to the surrounding occupants.
The main difference between the proposed use of this site and its historic use is in respect
of the access point.

Historically, this site has been accessed via lver Lane to the south, given that at present no
permanent through passage exists via Wallingford Road, between the former Cape Boards
site in the south and Uxbridge Industrial Estate to the north. The Speedy Hire vehciles
would be entering and exiting the site via Wallingford Road and Cowley Mill Road, where
given the weight restriction on the adjacent bridge, they would be prohibited from turning
right onto Cowley Mill Road to head east. Therefore, much of the site traffic would head
west along Cowley Mill Road. In essence, the relevant test that needs to be applied to the
application, is whether there would be a significant adverse impact on health and quality of
life, as a result of the vehicular movements associated with the use of the site over a 24

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



hour period.

The former Cape Boards site is allocated as a Strategic Industrial Location (SIL) and
Locally Significant Industrial Site (LSIS) in the Local Plan Part One. It is also a designated
Industrial and Business Area in saved Policy LE2. The application and wider site area also
falls within a Preferred Industrial Location (PIL) in the London Plan and Local Plan Part
One.

The London Plan gives strategic protection to SILs because their scale means that they
can accommodate activities which may otherwise cause tensions with other land uses.
Notwithstanding such, London Plan Policy 7.15, and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies seeks to ensure noise sensitive and generating
developments are only permitted if the noise impacts can be adequately controlled and
mitigated.

It is acknowledged within the London Plan that from an economic perspective, the success
of many industrial locations, relies on the ability to operate efficiently 24 hours a day and
places reliance on the physical separation from housing. In this case, the site has a
physical separation from the housing. Currently the site is vacant and when it was
previously in use, it is understood that all vehicle movements from this site occurred to the
south via Iver Lane. The local residents have become accustomed to there being few lorry
movements along the north and west of the site. The letters received from residents, serve
to emphasise the noise conditions experienced by them already during the day, and
particularly night, from other companies operating within the wider site. Furthermore, the
supporting noise report states that the residential locations tested are already higher than
the WHO guideline criteria for night time noise, approximating this to be 12-16dB higher. If
consent was granted for this operator to use the roads to the north over a 24 hour period,
this would add further to the noise environment, and cause adverse impacts on the health
and quality of life of these residents. As has been acknowledged within similar applications
and appeal decisions relating to other sites within the Former Cape Boards site, no
mitigation measures are available to reduce the noise from these passing vehicles.

Given that no information has been received to indicate the number of vehicle movements
likely to occur between the night time hours, when there is most concern with regards to
the potential noise disturbance, it is considered that the noise associated with these vehicle
movements and subsequent harm to the health and quality of life of residents is sufficient
to outweigh the commercial needs of Speedy Hire.

Overall, the application is considered unacceptable as set out in the preceding paragraphs
and to fail to comply with paragraph 123 of the NPPF, saved policies OE1 and OE3 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved policies and EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One Strategic Policies.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 159



The main difference between the proposed use of this site and its historic use is in respect
of the access point. Historically, this site has been accessed via Iver Lane to the south,
given that at present no through passage exists via Wallingford Road, between the former
Cape Boards site in the south and Uxbridge Industrial Estate to the north. What therefore
needs to be assessed with this proposal, is whether the proposed 24 hour site operations
utilising the highway network to the north, would have a detrimental impact on the wider
highway network to the north.

The vehicles would be entering and exiting the site via Wallingford Road and Cowley Mill
Road, where given the weight restriction on the adjacent bridge, they would be prohibited
from turning right onto Cowley Mill Road to head east. Therefore, much of the site traffic
would head west along Cowley Mill Road.

The transport statement provides trip generation from TRICS as well as figures supplied by
the applicant based on the anticipated requirements of the applicant.

Based on TRICS, the site has a potential to generate 53 two way trips (34 arrivals and 19
departures) during the morning peak and 46 two way trips (14 arrivals and 32 departures)
during the afternoon peak with predicted daily two way movements of 536 vehicles.

The data provided by the applicant for the operation of the site by Speedy Hire, is for 16 two
way movements during the morning peak and 16 two way during the afternoon peak, with
daily flows of 132 vehicles to and from the site. When considered in relation to other uses
within the area, there are already a significant number of other operators within Uxbridge
Industrial Estate to the north, who use the access points from Wallingford and Ashley
Roads, some with similar daily flows of vehicles. Of particular concern is the access road
immediately to the north which is shared with Severnside Ltd. This operator has consent
for a 24 hour use, with a similar number of daily vehicle trips (136) along this road.
Furthermore, this access road is often parked with HGVs/other vehicles along one/both
sides which further restricts the width of the access. Given that this road is bounded on
both sides by other industrial users and no parking restrictions (the roads within Uxbridge
Industrial Estate are privately owned, which limits the Councils Parking Enforcement
powers), there is significant concern with regards to the increase in the vehicle traffic using
this and other roads within the wider industrial area.

Given that traffic associated with this site previously used the road network to the south, all
traffic from this site would be considered new traffic on the local Borough highway network.
Of consideration, is whether the traffic generated by the proposal is acceptable in terms of
the capacity and functions of existing roads. The application has failed to demonstrate that
Wallingford Road, and Cowley Mill Road/Wallingford Road and Cowley Mill Road/St John
Road junctions and road network can satisfactorily accommodate the development traffic.
Officers are of the view that the proposals will unacceptably increase demand along the
roads/junctions which are already used to capacity by other industrial and residential users
within this part. Overall, the scheme is considered to prejudice the free flow of traffic and
conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety. The application would thereby be
contrary to policies AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved policies.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

See section 7.07 of the report.
7.12 Disabled access

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



7.14

7.15

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

There are no trees or landscape features affected by this proposal.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposed plans have taken into account their increase in discharge with the addition of
wash bay facilities and additional office workspace. The application includes appropriate
steps with attenuation and separators to minimise any chemical discharge into the two
watercourse, and the plans also show they have taken into consideration any future
capacity increase.

Had the scheme been found acceptable, a condition would have been added to any
consent to secure a management and maintenance scheme for the drainage system.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

See section 7.08 for the assessment of noise associated with the application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments raised during the public consultation have been addressed within the main
body of the report.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration with this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Whilst the use of this vacant site for B8 purposes is welcomed in accordance with the
Councils employment policies and no objection raised to the addition of new buildings to
assist the operations, there are concerns with regards to the proposed new access and
egress from the site.

Historically the site access/egress has been from lver Lane to the south, however this
scheme proposes to create a new access point so that all traffic associated with the
operator can access the site via Cowley Mill Road/Wallingford Road. The application has
failed to demonstrate that Wallingford Road, and Cowley Mill Road/Wallingford Road and
Cowley Mill Road/St Johns Road junctions and the surrounding road network can
satisfactorily accommodate the development traffic. Officers are of the view that the
proposals will unacceptably increase demand along the roads/junctions which are already
used to capacity by other industrial and residential users within this part. Overall, the
scheme is considered to prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of general highway

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



or pedestrian safety.

Furthermore, the proposed increased use of this access over a 24 hour period, raises
additional concerns with regards to the potential noise disturbance, particularly at night time
as a result of the additional HGV traffic. Given that the existing night time noise levels are
already above the WHO guidelines, it is considered that the additional noise associated
with these vehicle movements would harm the health and quality of life of residents,
sufficient to outweigh the commercial needs of the occupier (Speedy Hire). The application
would thereby be contrary to policies paragraph 123 of the NPPF, EM8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies, saved policies OE1, OE3 and AM7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved policies and SPD 'Noise'.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan 2015

NPPF

Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 'Noise'

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 163



\
\
\
\

\ Gardens

\ Allotment \

\-
|
|

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

West London Industrial Park

Iver Lane
Cowley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
751/APP/2015/335

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:
Major Page 164

Date:
November 2015

ILLING

LONDON

DON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PARK VIEW DAY CENTRE FARRIER CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Erection of a 3 storey building (including a lower ground level) comprising 60
Extra-Case Units (C2 Use Class), associated communical facilities, parking
and landscaping (involving demolition of existing building at the site.

LBH Ref Nos: 60469/APP/2015/3368

Drawing Nos: 15090.101 LANDSCAPE STRATEGY REV E
Planning Cover Lettel
15090.101 REV C LANDSCAPE STRATEGY PARK VIEW
APLOO1 A Site Location Plar
APLO002 A Existing Site Plar
APLO003 A Existing Building Plan & Site Photc
APLO04 A Proposed Site Layou
APL006 A Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plar
APLOO07 A Proposed Ground Floor Plar
APLOO08 A Proposed First Floor Plar
APLO09 A Proposed Second Floor Plar
APLO10 A Proposed Roof Plar
APLO11 A Stockley Road Elevatior
APLO12 A Farrier Close Elevation and Sectior
APLO13 A North Elevation and Sectior
APLO014 A East Elevation and Sectior
APLO15 A Proposed Perspectives
Design Access Statement part 1 of 2
Design Access Statement part 2 of 2
Park View - TS and PP

Date Plans Received:  07/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 07/09/2015
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks consent for the demolition of the existing single storey building and
redevelopment of the site to provide an extra care facility (Use CLass C2) consisting of 57
x 1 bed and 3 x 2 bed units.

The site comprises an existing day care facility which, although vacant at the time of
writing this report, has until recently provided day care facilities for adults with learning
difficulties, and mentally and physically handicapped persons. All of the services
previously available at this day centre are now provided for in a new resource centre at
Queens Walk in South Ruislip. The submitted planning statement confirms that this would
be a purpose built facility designed specifically to provide accommodation linked to the
provision of care.

Accordingly, as the facilities have been adequately provided elsewhere within the borough
and in a more effective and efficient manner, there would be no detrimental impacts on the
level of service provision or accessibility to these. The development is considered to
comply with the aims of Local Plan: Part 2 Policy R11 which seeks to resist the loss of

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 165



existing social, community and health provision.

With regard to use of the site for residential purposes in the form of Extra-Care housing,
such a use is considered compliant with the Councils policies and guidance. In terms of
the detailed design, scale and siting of the proposed development, the proposed scheme
would not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding
area, nor to the amenities of the surrounding residential occupants or highway network.

The scheme is therefore considered to comply with the Councils adopted policies and
guidance and approval is recommended.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land).

2 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

3 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers APL004 Rev A;
APLO006 Rev A; APLO07 Rev A; APL008 Rev A; APL009 Rev A; APL0O10 Rev A; APLO11
Rev A; APL012 Rev A; APL013 Rev A; APL014 Rev A; M9088 APL015 Rev A;and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

4 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
supporting plans and/or documents:

Air Quality Assessment dated 27th August 2015 prepared by REC

Transport Assessment dated September 2015 [Issue 2] prepared by CEC

Bat Emergence and Re-Entry Survey dated September 2015 prepared by SES

Reptile Presence/Likely Absence Survey dated October 2015 prepared by SES

Energy Statement Rev.A dated 01/09/15 prepared by Energist UK

Flood Risk Assessment dated August 2015 prepared by CEC

Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey dated August 2015 prepared by SES

Acoustic Consultancy to Support planning application reference 20628R01PKmdw dated
28th August 2015 prepared by Environoise

Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 12th August 2015 prepared by SES

Internal Daylight Assessment dated August 2015 prepared by XCO2 Energy

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing Assessment dated August 2015 prepared by XCO2

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 166



Energy

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of the Hillingdon Local Plan,
the London Plan 2015 and the NPPF.

5 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies/winter gardens, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The windows facing 27-39 Horseshoe Drive (in the northern elevation of the building) shall
be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 RESS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 167



development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

9 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Covered and secure cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 6 of the spaces are served by
active electrical charging points and a further 3 by passive electric charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168



6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(2015).

10 RES25 No floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which does not change its
details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012); and

To protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3. (delete as
appropriate)

1 NONSC PV details

Prior to the commencement of development full details of the Photovoltaic panels shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall
include final amount of PV panels (m2), roof plans and specification of the panels. The
development must proceed in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development reduces its energy demand and carbon emissions in
accordance with Policy 5.2 of the London Plan.

12 NONSC Car parking management strategy

Prior to occupation of the development a Car Park Management Strategy shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted
strategy shall contain details of how parking will be allocated to residents, staff and
visitors; details of drop off areas and how the parking areas within the site will be managed
to ensure its efficient operation.

REASON

To encourage sustainable modes of travel whilst ensuring sufficient parking is provided for
users of the development in accordance with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

13 NONSC Visibility splays

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 169



The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

14 NONSC Travel Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved a full travel plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the Travel
Plan is required to be reviewed at regular intervals to monitor its impact and, if required, it
shall be updated and/or amended in order that its aims and objectives are achieved.

The Travel Plan shall demonstrate a commitment to the ongoing promotion of sustainable
travel to users of the development and include targets for sustainable travel
arrangements, effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan, a
commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives and details of effective mechanism to
achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan.

REASON
To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

15 NONSC Construction training

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority detailing how Construction
training will be provided for construction workers on the site. The approved means and
timescale of providing the proposed improvements shall then be implemented in
accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the privision of
construction training within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development,
in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations.

16 NONSC Ventilation

Prior to the commencement of development, a report shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which describes a building ventilation strategy to
incorporate mechanical and natural ventilation of the building.

The approved strategy shall then be implemented as soon as the facility hereby permitted
are brought into use and shall remain in place thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The strategy shall incorporate as minimum the following components:

a) Mechanical ventilation including NOx/NQO2 filtration is included for all habitable rooms in
the residential units fronting Stockley Road across the ground floor. The filtration system
shall secure compliance with the EU Directive 2008/50/EC (the CAFE Directive)

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 170



European Union Air Quality and Clean Air for Europe 2008 and the inlet positioned away
from major traffic sources. This will provide a supply of clean air to rooms affected by high
pollution levels.

b) Natural ventilation is only permitted for rooms located first floor level or above with
inlets positioned at this level or above and away from major traffic sources to ensure a
supply of clean air.

REASON
In order to protect residents from poor air quality and safeguard human health in
compliance with policy 6.3 of the London Plan (2015).

17 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2015) Policy 5.12.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 171



2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 172



responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

6 12 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

7 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 19 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

9 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings’

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 173



people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

10 123B Heavy Duty Vehicle Crossover

Prior to work commencing, you are advised to submit an application for a Heavy Duty
Vehicle Crossover to Highways Maintenance, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW to
prevent damage to the highway from construction vehicles entering and leaving the site.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located to the north of Stockley Road and comprises a single storey building
with pitched roof, which was formerly used as a day centre providing services for adults
with learning difficulties, and mentally and physically handicapped persons. This use
ceased in 2013 and the site has been vacant since this time.

The site is accessed via Farrier Close, and this area to the north and west consists of a
largely residential development of small terraces of houses and low-rise blocks of flats. A
similar type development is evident to the west in Chapel Lane. The southern boundary of
the site adjoins the A408, Stockley Road and beyond Stockley Road is an extensive area of
Green Belt land at Stockley Park.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 174



3.2

3.3

Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the demolition of the existing single storey building and
the redevelopment of the site to provide an extra care facility (Use Class C2).

The proposed development would consist of a four storey building (including a lower
ground floor) approximately 10 metres in height from ground level. The extra care
accommodation would comprise of 57 x 1 bed apartments and 3 x 2 bed apartments and
would represent a substantial increase in the buildings footprint from 572sgm to 1770 sgm.
21 car parking spaces are provided at lower ground floor level and a further three spaces
provided at ground level. These would include 4 residents parking spaces, 12 visitor
spaces and 8 staff car parking spaces.

The upper floors would be almost exclusively residential, whilst the ground floor would
provide a total of 14 apartments and a number of day spaces including a lounge for
residents, treatment rooms and a flexible space to be used for dining, entertainment,
meetings, presentations etc.

Vehicular access to the site will remain from Farrier Close, utilising the existing access
arrangements which served the former day centre. The entrance to the undercroft car park
would be towards the north eastern corner of the site, whilst the surface car parking
spaces would be positioned in close proximity to the site entrance.

The roof of the building would take the form of a green roof with a sedum planting/matting
system. A further area to be planted with a sedum matt would be on the roof of the first
floor of the building in the south west corner. A paved terrace is additionally proposed at
second floor level to serve as an amenity space for residents.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history associated with this site.

Planning Policies and Standards

HDP4 bRF.Resignation and London Plan
ARgfollowing B fqlifies asporRisidered L lyaBhi frarPliediaiion, impact on congestion

Part 1 Policies:
AM7

and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE13RE1 (e desglpErenbAehharmonise with the existing street scene.

BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24
BE38

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary

Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 175



LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 13th October 2015

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

74 residents were notified of the application and 2 letters received in response which raised the
following concerns:

1. Overlooking to rear garden of residents in Chapel Lane;

2. Loss of light to Chapel Lane properties as a result of the building;

3. Concern with increase in traffic to the site;

4. The positioning of the windows and balconies is inconsiderate and likely to cause a loss of
privacy.

MET POLICE
The principles of Secured by Design have been discussed with the architect and providing the
development adheres to these principles, | have no objections.

GLAAS

Recommend No Archaeological Requirement.

A draft Historic Environment Desk-Based Assessment was submitted to this office by The
Environment Partnership on behalf of the applicant, of which | attach with The Greater London
Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) provides archaeological advice to boroughs in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework and GLAAS Charter.

Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest. The
assessment identified that the site has a low potential for significant archaeological remains.

No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary.

Please note that this response relates solely to archaeological considerations. If necessary my
Historic Buildings and Areas colleagues should be consulted separately regarding statutory matters.

Internal Consultees

AIR QUALITY OFFICER
We don't need any additional information as the report is quite comprehensive and addressed all

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 176



aspects required.

Given the levels of pollution within the area however and to safeguard the residents from health
damaging levels we will need a planning condition to require mechanical ventilation with NOx/NO2
removal efficiencies of 90% and above on the ground floor with natural ventilation only allowed with
inlets on 1st floor and above away from main traffic sources (A408).

Suggested draft

None of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a one page report describing
the building ventilation strategy to be implemented has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

The approved strategy shall then be implemented as soon as the facility
hereby permitted are brought into use and the strategy shall remain in place thereafter,unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The strategy shall incorporate as minimum the following components:

a)Mechanical ventilation including NOx/NO2 filtration is included for all habitable rooms in the
residential units fronting Stockley Road across the ground floor. The filtration system shall
secure compliance with the EU Directive 2008/50/EC (the CAFE Directive) European Union Air
Quality and Clean Air for Europe 2008 and the inlet positioned away from major traffic sources. This
will provide a supply of clean air to rooms affected by high pollution levels.

b)Natural ventilation is only permitted for rooms located first floor level or above with inlets
positioned at his level or above and away from major traffic sources to ensure a supply of clean
air.

REASON
In order to protect residents from poor air quality and safeguard human health in compliance with
policy 6.3 of the London Plan (2015).

TREES

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER / CONTEXT:

Site description:

The 0.4 hectare site is occupied by a truncated triangular site which accommodates the former,
single-storey, Parkview Day Centre. Situated to the north of Stockley Road, the site is accessed
from the residential streets of Horseshoe Drive and Farrier Close to the west. The east boundary is
defined by the rear gardens of Chapel Lane. There are a number of trees/tall hedges around the site
boundaries which are visible from vantage points outside the site.

Landscape Planning designations:
There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations affecting trees within
the site, or affecting it.

Landscape constraints / opportunities:
-Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

PROPOSAL:

The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings on the site and erect a 3-storey building (including
a lower ground level) comprising 60 Extra-Case Units (C2 Class), associated communal facilities,
parking and landscaping.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 177



-According to the planning questionnaire (Q15) no trees or other landscape features of merit will be
affected by the proposal.

-An Arboricultural Impact Assessment to BS5837:2012, by SES, dated August 2015, has been
submitted.

-The report assesses the condition and value of 4No. individual trees, 2No. groups, 2No. areas of
scrub and 4No. hedges on, or close to, the site (refer to summary at 2.3).

-There are no 'A' grade (good condition and value which should normally be safeguarded from
development).

-1No. tree is a category 'B' (fair), whose condition and value merits retention, if possible. This tree is
T1, a eucalyptus, on the schedule and will be removed to facilitate the development.

-The remaining trees, hedges and scrub are category 'C' (poor). While, this category may have
landscape / ecological qualities which merit retention, this grade is not generally considered to be a
constraint on development.

-The report confirms that all of the trees and other vegetation on site will be removed to facilitate the
development.

-The only trees to be retained include the off-site cypress hedge on the east boundary and off-site
trees T3 and G2 in the south-east corner of the site.

-It is noted that the off-site hedge G8 and T3 will need to be trimmed back where it oversails the site

-If cypress is trimmed back hard (to the wood) it will not re-shoot and the resulting any exposed bare
wood will look unsightly. (refer to 3.8)

- While the only trees to be retained are off-site, a preliminary arboricultural method statement has
been provided in chapter 4.0.

‘There is no objection to the tree report, or its conclusions, subject to adherence to the
recommendations in chapter 6.0 (items 6.1 - 6.5).

-The removal of the eucalyptus is regrettable, but acceptable if appropriate replacement tree planting
is secured as part of the masterplan.

-An Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey, by SES, recommends (5.5) that the site is surveyed prior to
demolition and ground works to confirm the absence of invasive species due to the recent illegal
dumping of assorted waste (and specify appropriate remedial action).

-At 6.3 the report makes no specific recommendations but notes that the opportunity exists for the
proposed development to make a positive contribution to biodiversity.

-The Design & Access Statement, by Hunters, refers to protected habitats (2.14) and the external
space and landscaping at 2.15., setting out clear design objectives. The landscape proposals are
supported by the Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment (L&VIA), by MHP.

-The L&VIA, by MHP, has been prepared in accordance with current best practice (Guidelines for
Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment (3rd edition), - Landscape Institute / [IEMA (2013).

-At 4.4.6 the report confirms that baseline landscape character and visual findings have been used

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



to inform the landscape analysis...and recommendations.

-In the summary and conclusion (section 8.0) it is noted that landscape enhancements of the site
will include substantial green roofs and amenity gardens using native species that will bring
significant landscape and biodiversity enhancements. The new planting will result in a predicted
beneficial effect to the local landscape once established.

-There is no objection to the conclusions of the L&VIA.

-A Landscape Strategy Plan, ref. 15090.101 Rev C, by MHP, indicates the proposed site layout and
hard and soft landscape treatment of the external spaces.

-If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No objection, subject to the above observations and RES6, RES7, RES8, RES9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5,
and 6).

HOUSING
The scheme has been designed to meet an identified need for extra care sheltered housing within
the borough and is supported by both Housing and Adult Social Care.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT

In the F.R.A document in section 4.13 it states "An intrusive site investigation is therefore necessary
to confirm the infiltration potential at the site" and later in the document it has a borehole log from
Yiewsley bypass from 1979. There should be provided information relevant to the site. The 1979
borehole log would be acceptable if the consultants had evidenced the fact it is still a monitored site
and those results of groundwater etc were still accurate and relevant to this site.

No-where in the FRA or drainage statements are provided the third party agreements for discharge
from Thames Water. The consultants have confirmed there are Thames Water assets within close
proximity to the site but have not provided the agreements.

Can the agents please provide this information?

UPDATE: The applicants have confirmed that the boreholes referred in the FRA are not monitored,
however ground water levels are not critical because we propose an attenuation tank, which will be
sealed against ground water ingress. Confirmation was additionally received from Thames Water
that the proposed discharge rates were acceptable.

This information has been reviewed by the Councils Flood Officer who is satisfied with the
responses received and raises no objections to the proposals.

S106 OFFICER
Please note that with regard to this scheme there are no suggested obligations. However, a
construction training scheme and a travel plan should be secured by condition.

HIGHWAYS

Assessing the proposal:

This proposal includes the demolition of the existing single storey building and redevelopment of this
site to provide new extra care facility. The extra care facility is considered to be part of the planning
Land Use Class C2. The proposed building represents a significant increase with the existing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 179



building footprint increasing from 562.6 sgm to the reported 1,770 sqm.

The proposed extra care accommodation comprises of 60 units, consisting of 57 x 1 bedroom
apartments and 3 x 2 bedroom units across four storeys, including a lower ground floor level with
units having access to external courtyards.

It is highlighted that 8 staff will be present, at any one time.

The site includes a number of communal facilities, used mainly by residents of this development. It
has been disclosed that an agreement is made to host specialist disability groups on this site. In
terms of additional users, it is anticipated that access to the venue will be by mini-bus in organised
groups.

The existing access is from Farrier Close with separate pedestrian and vehicular gates. On the
application form, it is indicated that the proposed pedestrian access will be altered in relation to the
public highways. It is believed that the existing public footway will be continued and join the private
land. A clear marking to distinguish where the public Highways ends is recommended to be
included.

No parking restrictions exist along the Farrier Close, however there are speed restrictions limiting
vehicular speeds to 5mph.

The nearby Horseshoe Drive, is narrow one way street with footways on both sides and leading to
Farrier Close. There are off street parking areas along Horseshoe Drive and Farrier Close.

The PTAL output for this site 2011 (Base year) is 1b, which is described as very poor. Three bus
routes were included in the PTAL calculations. These are route U3 and U1, with bus stop located on
Colham Green Road/Violet Avenue. In addition, facilitating route U5 there are bus stops along the
Park View Road.

Trip generation

To predict the number of trips of the proposed development, no similar sites were found on TRICS
database. Therefore, a similar site to the proposed was analysed to determine the trip rates. The
site selected is located within the LB Hillingdon in Roberts Close, West Drayton consisting a 63 bed
care home. The sample site has a PTAL 3, whereas this development has a PTAL of 1b which is
much lower.

The vehicular trip rate per unit for the morning peak arrival was 0.14 whereas the departure trip rate
was 0.21. The total trip rate movements were added which resulted in 0.35. For the afternoon peak
arrival was 0.21, whereas the departure trip rates was 0.21. The total trip rate movements are 0.42.
The trip rates are considered acceptable.

Based on the trip rates above, a proposal with 60 residential units would have:
-during the (8-9)AM morning peak the arrivals trips will be 8, whereas the departure trips will be 13. In
total the predicted level of trips will be 21.

- during the (17- 18)PM evening peak the arrivals trip will be 13, and departure trips will be 13 as well.
In total the predicted level of trips will be 26.

Therefore, the total trips for the proposed site is predicted to generate 21 two-way movements
during the AM peak, whereas for PM peak this number is 26.

If 12 hour counts were looked at for the period, from 7:00 to 19:00, it was concluded that the total
number of arrivals would be 94, including the departures 94. The total two-way movements was

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 180



reduced by 5 because of the trips recorded on the existing site. Therefore for the 12 hour period the
total would be 178.

It is concluded that the overall vehicular trips for the peak periods are low thus the development is
not likely to cause adverse significant traffic impact.

Accident data:

Personal Injury Accident data has been assessed and included on the Transport Assessment (TA)
covering a period of 5 years from Feb 2010 until March 2015.The area of focus was along the Park
View Road including the Park View Road with Stockley Road roundabout. The applicant included
accident data obtained from TfL for the last 5 years.

In total 9 accidents were recorded, out of which 8 were recorded at the Park view Road/Stockley
Road roundabout, whereas 1 accident was recorded on Colham Green Road junction. (Note: The
selected zone map was said to be included on the TA-Appendix 4,but was missing.) When
considering the same zone during the last 3 years, 5 personal injury accidents were recorded.

It was reported that, no apparent link could be found between the recorded accidents. The majority
of the recorded accidents were shunts or minor collisions due to driver error.lt was concluded that
for the selected analysed area, no highway safety issues could be found to prohibit the proposed
development and no apparent links were found that accidents were occurring due to highways
layout.

Nevertheless, there have been some minor modifications on Stockley Road, where directional road
markings were installed on both roundabouts during February 2012.

Access and Highways:

The only vehicular access to the site is from Farrier Close, utilising the existing arrangements that
served the former day centre.

From observations, it was noted that there is another existing vehicular access directly from
Stockley Road, including a separate pedestrian access. This proposal includes a controlled access
gate in approximately the same spot to the existing, which is planned to be used for emergency
situations. This access point is considered acceptable. Minor modifications on this area will be done
when the crossover application is made to convert the domestic crossover to heavy duty one.

The entrance to the undercroft car park is proposed to be towards the north-eastern corner of this
site, whilst the two surface car parking spaces are proposed in close proximity to the main entrance.
The submitted drawing ref:APL004 rev.A indicates the lower ground car park one way system
controlled by the traffic lights. Please attach as part of the Condition 1.

Car Parking provision:
The existing development included 20 standard car parking spaces and 6 spaces for the disabled
users.

There are no LBH car parking standards for the Land Use Class C2.

The parking area is proposed at the lower ground floor and shown on the submitted drawing ref:APL
006revA.

It includes a total of 21 standard car parking spaces within the northern part of the lower ground floor
with a further 3 spaces provided at the ground floor level. As a result, there are 24 standard car
parking spaces as well as, 3 car parking spaces for disabled users. The proposed 24 car parking
spaces will be divided, such as: 4 for residents, 12 for visitors and 8 for staff use.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 181



The proposed car parking spaces for disabled users are located on the lower ground floor area,
close to the lifts. There is a scope for one of the surface car parking to be relocated and converted to
a space for the disabled users. These spaces have additional 1.2 meters strip on two sides. Even
though some of the 1.2 m strips are shared, this is considered acceptable. These large parking
spaces will help users with mobility issues coming in/out of vehicles with ease.

It is not clear how car parking spaces will be managed within the site.Please include as a item on
the Condition 1.

On the submitted drawings it is included that the in out movements of the car parking area will be
controlled by traffic signals. Further details to be submitted and covered by Condition 1.

In order to comply with the London Plan Policy 6.13, a 20% active and 10% passive Electric
Charging Points (EVCPs) out of the total proposed car parking spaces are required for this type of
development. To comply with the policy, a provision of 6 active points on occupation, with 3
additional passive points, which could be converted to active if there is a demand. Please include all
EVCP matters on the Condition 1.

Please attach a Condition. 1 associated with car parking matters:
- Car Parking Management Plan (CPMP)-to manage safely the operation of traffic signals, manage
car parking demand on site, including the drop off area.

- install the EVCP; monitor the EVCP usage and convert passive points to active, in accordance with
demand.

- Further details to be submitted, for example: IN/OUT waiting areas, positioning of the signal poles,
operation of the signals etc.

- The car park ramp- it is considered that one levels highlighted in the submitted drawing is steep. -
Please refer to the IStructE Design recommendations for multi-storey and underground car parks
(Fourth edition) and acknowledge that levels comply with this document.

Please attach Condition. 2:
- The visibility splays to be submitted and kept clear at all times.

Cycle parking provision:

The existing site did not have cycle parking facilities.

The LBH cycle parking standards for planning Land Use Class C2 are: minimum provision of 1
space per 2 staff.

With regards to staff in the new development, the information on the planning application indicates
that 8 staff members are to be present at any one time.

To comply with LBH standards this proposal should include at least 4 cycle parking spaces. The
latest London Plan- draft further alterations to Jan 2014, indicates that for C2 Land use, the
minimum cycle parking standards are: for long stay cycle parking the requirements are 1 space per
5 staff, whereas for the short stay: 1 space per 20 bedrooms. This means that 2 cycle parking
spaces(long stay) would be a minimum requirement, whereas for the 60 proposed units, a minimum
of 3 cycle parking spaces (short stay) would be acceptable.

This proposal includes 12 cycle car parking spaces. Therefore, the proposed cycle parking provision
is considered acceptable.

Demolition/ Construction Management Plan:

The existing crossover located on Stokley Road will be used to facilitate the demolition and
construction of this development site. However, the existing domestic crossover must be modified
first to a heavy duty crossover. Following the completion of the demolition and construction works,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 182



the dropped kerbs, footway and grass verge to be reinstated.
The applicant to submit the application for a heavy duty crossover and reinstatement after the works
are completed direct to the Highways Authority.

Please include the Informative.

Refuse and Recycling Strategy

It is indicated that current arrangements will remain the same with refuse/ recycling services to be
done from Farrier Close. The collection lorry will turn using the existing turning head.

The swept path analysis were included on the submitted drawing with ref: 4848/203 showing the
manoeuvre. It shows 9.55m refuse vehicle used on the swept path analysis. If LBH lorries are
proposed to carry out refuse/ recycling collections, in practice those are longer is size at 10.5m.

| accept that LBH refuse/ recycling vehicles are longer then the assessed however, the refuse/
recycling collection arrangements were made from this site and road layout is proposed to remain
the same. Therefore, this part of the proposal is considered acceptable.

On the other hand, refuse/ recycling storage areas are shown on plan with ref: APL004, located
adjacent to Farrier Close main entrance, providing a space for 8 bins in total.

Delivery and servicing:
The delivery and servicing activities will be managed within the site.

Travel Plan:

A draft Travel Plan was submitted with this application. The travel plan will be secured through a
Condition/or S106 and then monitored for 5 years at least or until the aims and objectives of the
travel plan are achieved.

| recommend requesting detailed comments from the Travel Plan officer.
Please attach Condition/ or secure via S106-Travel Plan.
Highways recommendations:

Subject to attaching the conditions and informative, there are no objection raised on highways
matters.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site comprises an existing day care facility which, although vacant at the time of writing
this report, has until recently provided day care facilities for adults with learning difficulties,
and mentally and physically handicapped persons. All of the services previously available
at this day centre are now provided for in a new resource centre at Queens Walk in South
Ruislip. The submitted planning statement confirms that this would be a purpose built
facility designed specifically to provide accommodation linked to the provision of care.

Accordingly, as the facilities have been adequately provided elsewhere within the borough
and in a more effective and efficient manner, there would be no detrimental impacts on the
level of service provision or accessibility to these. The development is considered to
comply with the aims of Local Plan: Part 2 Policy R11 which seeks to resist the loss of
existing social, community and health provision.

With regard to use of the site for residential purposes in the form of Extra-Care housing,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



Policies H1 and H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 seek to encourage new housing with
the emphasis of policy H2 being specific to affordable housing. Paragraph 6.31 of the
supporting text to Policy H2 confirms that:

"Affordable housing achieved across the borough should reflect the distinct needs of
different sections of the community. It should include provision for older people and for

other

groups in need of supported housing, specifically people with mental health needs and
people

with physical and sensory disabilities or learning difficulties. The council's aim is to
maximise

independence and provide self-contained accommodation with appropriate support.”

London Plan 2015 Policy 3.8 reiterates support for such accommodation confirming that a
wide range of housing types must be made available across London and that local
authorities must ensure "account is taken of the changing age structure of London's
population and, in particular, the varied needs of older Londoners, including for supported
and affordable provision."

NPPF paragraph 50 reaffirms support for a mix of housing to take account of different
groups in the community including (but not limited to) accommodation for older people."

In the case of Hillingdon, research undertaken by the Greater London Authority (GLA)
identifies the potential annual demand for older persons housing by borough and tenure.
The estimates of annual demand indicate that a significant increase in the supply of
housing suitable for older persons is required in order to meet the demand. The Councils
Housing Strategy reflects this stating that the Council need to ensure housing is fit for
purpose to cope with the growth of older people in the Borough. It continues to express the
likely need for housing suitably tailored for older people. As a result, the Council have
identified that a solution to this is to develop more extra care sheltered accommodation
with 24 hour care and support provided on site.

The development is considered to fully comply with this research and policies which
support the provision of affordable new accommodation for older persons.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b. The London Plan range
for residential sites with a PTAL of 0-1, which fall within an urban area, as defined in the
London Plan, is 150-250 habitable rooms per hectare (hrph) and 50-95 units per hectare.
Given the size of the proposed living rooms (including the kitchenette) in each unit, at over
20m?2, each would count as the equivalent of two habitable rooms in compliance with the
Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts. As such, based on
a total site area of approximately 3838m?2 the site would have a density of 156 units per
hectare and 476 hrph. Whilst the density is above the requirements, this is only on
indicator for the acceptance of the scheme and other considerations such as impact to the
character of the area, internal floor areas and external amenity space would carry far more
weight.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not located in an Archaeological Priority Zone, nor is it located within or near to a
Conservation Area, Listed Building or Area of Special Local Character.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 184



on this development.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The green belt boundary is located to the south of the application site. Whilst this site is not
located within the green belt, given its proximity to the boundary of this site, consideration
has been given as to whether the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the
openness and character of this designated area. Given the acceptable design and scale of
the buildings proposed, it is not considered that the scheme would have a detrimental
impact on the openness and setting of the adjacent green belt.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves
the amenity and character of the area.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in
orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character and consists largely of the a
mix of 2, 3 and 4 storey dwellings and flats situated within residential crescents and closes.
The building vernacular is of a modern 20th Century design and layout, comprising brick
and render facades with cement tiled roofs.

It is acknowledged that the proposed building would indeed be significantly larger than the
existing Day Centre and buildings within the vicinity of the site both in terms of its footprint
and height. Notwithstanding such, it is considered that the proposed building would be
appropriate in terms of its scale, massing and external appearance, and of a high quality
design with well articulated elevations. Overall, it is considered that the innovative design
approach, scale and form of the building, which incorporates a stepped approach in terms
of its roof height, responds positively to the scale and massing of its surroundings.

The redevelopment of the site and proposed building design, will also improve and enhance
its appearance within the surrounding area and introduces the opportunity for potential
landscape enhancements including substantial green roofs and amenity gardens. Overall,
the scheme is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 185



Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. Generally,
15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum
of 21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied to
new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant loss
of residential amenity.

The proposed building is substantially larger than the existing Day Centre and therefore
careful consideration is required of its impact on the amenities of the surrounding
occupiers.

In terms of the impact of the development on the Chapel Lane properties to the east of the
site, it is noted that the development would be located between 28 metres at its closest
point and 55 metres at its furthest point from the rear elevations of these properties. Given
the distance between these properties and the proposed design and form of the
development, the scheme is not considered to result in an undue loss of sunlight or
daylight, result in an unacceptable level of overlooking to these properties, or to appear
unduly dominant or overbearing when viewed from their gardens or rear windows.

To the south/south west of the site are the properties in Farrier Close. Nos 10 and 20
directly adjoin the application site and are sited at 90 degrees to the proposed
development. The siting and scale of the development is such that the rear building line of
the proposed building largely follows that of Nos. 10 and 20. Given the orientation, layout,
siting and scale of the proposed development, it is not considered to appear unduly
dominant or overbearing when viewed from these properties. Similarly, the scheme is not
considered to give rise to an unacceptable loss of light or overshadowing to these
properties. No. 10 has a window at first floor level in the side elevation, however it is
understood that this serves a hallway, and therefore the relationship between this window
and the development is considered acceptable.

To the north of the site are the rear of the dwellings and flats within Horseshoe Drive. The
proposed development would be approximately 18 metres from the rear windows in the
flats, which meets with the Councils requirements in terms of negating the overbearing and
overshadowing impact of the development. It is acknowledged that the development would
not meet the 21 metre requirement in terms of preserving the privacy and avoiding undue
overlooking. This distance between the buildings is considered acceptable in this instance
given that there are no habitable room windows proposed in the northern elevation of the
building. The sole windows serve the hallway between the flats, which could be conditioned
to be obscurely glazed and non opening on any planning consent, so as to preserve the
amenities of these occupants. Similarly, details could be sought of an appropriate privacy
screen along the sides of each balcony closest to these flats, so as to avoid any undue
overlooking to these properties.

Overall, although the building is a substantial enlargement in height and footprint over the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 186



existing building on the site, it is not considered on balance that the scheme would have an
unacceptable impact on the amenities of these occupants.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

There is no specific design guidance for Extra Care Homes. However, Policy H10 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan states that proposals for redevelopment to provide hostels or other
accommodation for people in need of care, such as residential care homes or sheltered
housing schemes, should have regard to the amenity guidelines set out in Supplementary
Planning Guidance. Accordingly, due regard must be given to the Council's Supplementary
Planning Documents (SPDs) on Residential Layouts and Accessibility in addition to other
policy updates.

The Council's SPD on Residential Layouts states that a minimum of 50m2 internal
floorspace should be provided for one-bedroom flats and 61sgm for two-bedroom flats.
This is reinforced by policy 3.5 of the London Plan and also by the recently published
Housing Standards Policy Transition Statement (October 2015). All one bed units would
have internal floor areas of 52.5sgm and two bed units, 66sgm. Accordingly, all of the units
would exceed current minimum standards.

In terms of the layouts and relationship between the units within the building, it is
considered that this is acceptable and would present a suitable standard of
accommodation. At ground floor level enclosed "winter gardens" would provide a degree of
defensible space between residential units and external garden areas and footpaths.

Overshadowing diagrams have been provided for the all of the units which concludes that
but two of the rooms achieve the recommended Average Daylight Factor (ADF). These two
rooms are the catering kitchen and staff room on the first floor which are not part of the
habitable residential space. Accordingly, it is considered that the units would provide an
acceptable living standard to future occupants in this regard.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts states that a
minimum of 20sgm usable external amenity space should be provided for one-bedroom
flats and 25sgm for two-bedroom flats. It confirms that balconies should be provided
wherever possible for upper floor flats, along with private patio or garden areas and that
where usable balconies or private garden space is provided for individual units the
floorspace can be deducted from the overall calculation of outdoor amenity space. No
standards are provided within the London Plan. Accordingly, in total, at least 1215m2 of
external amenity space should ideally be provided.

The communal gardens and terraces would provide approximately 1030m2 of amenity
space. Whilst the balconies/winter gardens to the individual residential units are enclosed,
these would provide bright and airy spaces with attractive outlooks and, given the nature of
the scheme, it is considered that these areas add valuable amenity to the development and
should be included for the purposes of such calculations. These would provided spaces of
between 9m2 and 25m2 to the units, providing a total of approximately 230m2 of space. In
total, this amounts to approximately 1,260m2. Informal garden areas, seating and
pathways would be provided around the periphery of the site which would also contribute
amenity space available on site, such that the total space available, including internal
courtyards, terraces, balconies/winter gardens and peripheral areas would be well in
excess of the minimum standards.

The scheme exceeds current standards relating to internal floor space and Council
guidelines relating to external amenity space. It is considered that the proposal would

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 187



adequately serve the needs of future occupiers and that it fully complies with current local,
London Plan and national policies relating to residential amenity.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

London Plan policy 6.1 seeks to ensure that the need for car use is reduced and Table 6.2
sets out the parking requirements for developments.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The site includes 24 car parking spaces, 21 located within the proposed basement car
park and 3 located at ground level. Given the nature of the proposals, it is not anticipated
that the residents will have access to cars, notwithstanding such, 4 of the spaces will be
retained for residents. The majority of the spaces (12) will be available for visitors to the
site and the remaining 8 spaces, will be for use by staff.

The entrance to the undercroft car park is proposed to be towards the north-eastern corner
of this site.

No parking restrictions exist along the Farrier Close, however there are speed restrictions
limiting vehicular speeds to 5mph. The nearby Horseshoe Drive, is narrow one way street
with footways on both sides and leading to Farrier Close. There are off street parking areas
along Horseshoe Drive and Farrier Close.

To predict the number of trips of the proposed development, a similar site to the proposed
was analysed to determine the trip rates. The site selected is located within the LB
Hillingdon in Roberts Close, West Drayton consisting of a 63 bed care home.

It was concluded from looking at the data that the overall vehicular trips for the peak periods
would be low. The development is not likely to cause adverse significant traffic impact.

Space has been provided within the site for 12 cycle parking spaces, which is considered
acceptable and in compliance with the adopted policies.

Concern has been raised by residents in respect of the construction traffic. A construction
management plan condition is recommended to ensure that the route of construction
traffic is carefully considered within the site. It is possible for the vehicular access that
exists from Stockley Road to be used during the construction of the site.

Overall, the scheme is considered to have an acceptable highways impact.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

URBAN DESIGN
Issues relating to urban design have been addressed in part 7.07 of the report.

Whilst the proposed development, due to its increased height and footprint over the existing
building, would inevitably have a greater visual impact, given the siting of the proposed
development and varied design and scale of the surrounding development, the scheme is
not considered to appear out of scale or character with the surrounding built form.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 188



SECURITY
No objections have been raised on grounds of security by the Metropolitan Police
Designing out Crime Officer and increased natural surveillance of the neighbouring open
space could benefit the use of this area.

7.12 Disabled access

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed development has
been designed with level access within and between floors for persons with limited or
impaired mobility. Lift access is additionally provided and all doorway openings, corridors
and external spaces designed to facilitate wheelchair access. No objection is therefore
raised to the application on these grounds.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings on the site and erect a 3-storey building
(including a lower ground level) comprising 60 Extra-Case Units (C2 Class), associated
communal facilities, parking and landscaping.

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment to BS5837:2012, by SES, dated August 2015, has
been submitted, which assesses the condition and value of 4No. individual trees, 2No.
groups, 2No. areas of scrub and 4No. hedges on, or close to, the site.

There are no 'A' grade (good condition and value which should normally be safeguarded
from development). 1No. tree is a category 'B' (fair), whose condition and value merits
retention, if possible. This tree is T1, a eucalyptus, on the schedule and will be removed to
facilitate the development. The remaining trees, hedges and scrub are category 'C' (poor).
While, this category may have landscape/ecological qualities which merit retention, this
grade is not generally considered to be a constraint on development. The report confirms
that all of the trees and other vegetation on site will be removed to facilitate the
development.The only trees to be retained include the off-site cypress hedge on the east
boundary and off-site trees T3 and G2 in the south-east corner of the site.

The information submitted has been reviewed by the Councils Arboricultural Officer and
there is no objection to the tree report, or its conclusions, subject to adherence to its
recommendations

ECOLOGY

An Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey, by SES, recommends (5.5) that the site is surveyed
prior to demolition and ground works to confirm the absence of invasive species due to the
recent illegal dumping of assorted waste. a Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment has
been submitted as part of this application, which concludes that landscape enhancements
of the site will include substantial green roofs and amenity gardens using native species
that will bring significant landscape and biodiversity enhancements. The new planting will
result in a predicted beneficial effect to the local landscape once established. The Council
raises no objection to the conclusion of this report and the scheme is therefore not
considered to have a detrimental ecological impact.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

The plans indicate that a refuse store for general and recyclable waste would be provided

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 189



to the south of the entrance to the site, in a location easily accessible to refuse vehicles.
Whilst no objection is raised to the proposed location of this store, revisions have been
sought from the applicant to alter the location of the bin store and surface car parking
space currently shown on the drawings. An update on the revised drawings will be reported
in the addendum.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (2015) requires development proposals to make the fullest
contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions. Major development schemes must be
accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 40% target reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement to
demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met. In order to achieve compliance
with the requirements, it is intended to adopt fabric first enhancements to the specification
of the building; use high-efficiency lighting and ventilation systems; incorporate 610 sgm of
photovoltaic panels to the south facing roof of the building; ensure the building is heated
through the use of a community gas boiler network with integrated Combined Heat and
Power. This should generate a total reduction in carbon emissions of 35.4% over the 2013
Target Emissions Rate.

The scheme is therefore considered to meet with the policy requirements and no objection
is raised on sustainability grounds to the proposals. Further details will be sought by
condition of the siting and design of the photovoltaic panels proposed.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 and a Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted as part
of the application. The scheme has been reviewed by the Councils specialists and the
questions they raised addressed within the report. No objection is therefore raised on flood
risk grounds to the proposed development.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

NOISE

A noise report has been submitted with the application that assess the likely noise impact
to the facade adjacent to Stockley Road. Mitigation is proposed in the form of acoustic
ventilation vents and double glazed window units to meet the target noise levels. Provided
these are provided, the scheme would meet the noise level targets and no objection is
raised to the proposed development.

AIR QUALITY

An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted which confirms that the development
would not have any significant impact on local air quality. Given the levels of pollution within
the area however and to safeguard the residents from health damaging levels a condition is
recommended to require mechanical ventilation with NOx/NO2 removal efficiencies of 90%
and above on the ground floor with natural ventilation only allowed with inlets on 1st floor
and above away from main traffic sources (A408).

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

These have been addressed within the relevant sections of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Local Plan states that: 'The Local Planning Authority will, where
appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open spaces, facilities to
support arts, culture and entertainment facilities through planning obligations in conjunction
with other development proposals.'

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 190



In this case, due to the ownership of land all necessary off-site mitigation is capable of
being secured by way of Grampian condition.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration with this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 191



Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The development is considered to comply with current planning policies which seek to
meet the population's growing housing needs.

The proposed building by reason of its acceptable design, size, scale and siting is not
considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, nor to have a unacceptable impact on the amenities of the surrounding
occupants or highway network.

Overall, the scheme is considered to comply with the Councils adopted policies and
guidance.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2015

The Mayor's London Housing Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

SPD 'Planning Obligations' July 2014

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 192



_____FARREE

8201z

—_—

By

Reclose |

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Park View Day Center
Farrier Close
Hillingdon

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Pla

nning Application Ref:
60469/APP/2015/3368

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Major Page 193

Date:
November 2015

FILLING

LONDON

DON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 194



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

18th November 2015

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER ROYAL BRITISH LEGION CLUB SIPSON ROAD WEST DRAYTORM

Development: The redevelopment of the site to accommodate a 7 storey 91 room hotel,
including a basement level and associated parking and landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 829/APP/2014/4252

Date Plans Received: 02/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 02/12/2014
Date Application Valid: 26/01/2015 11/02/2015
27/10/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 196



0SZL/L 00871 21898 | 9SS

Aa pavoaug |

| e Ag umieag
000L-€V-801 | nozwo a0
80y Jaquinu paloig

_.__mwn_ uonedn| pue ¥o0|g

yn-ooufiisepeef@despuns £1$690565/0 118 ¥5L £5.L0
I +71S ‘eIySHIeg JOSPUIM PY UHOMPaQ ‘SeIoee '9SNOH UBHEGIUNOJ

aleq

uonduosaq

“ON

ali
NSIS3IQ Vv¥Vva

0GZl/) Ueld uoleaoT

&
—

////M

AN

e

X

A\

22
§% A

AN ¢
/et
7 1 |

0 WOMTY ¥

005/} ueld %o0i|g

Page 197




wsl @] wozewi] B

| oa socsncs | shaorer | vewetet 3o i

aLT NSIs3Ia

SIUON

HOOT ILFUINDD

FHISNIIHD
VIVOHOD WL FHLSIINVIHIOY

S33ul

A SIVIMILYIN

00b:k
ue|d adeospue pasodoid *-

E====—rvrel

Page 198




e P — o

e | 1

S3UON

0oLt _‘
Juswasegq

Page 199




5 PIGZDILD LT ] LY 8ok

Smos et s s =i | ] - S o e —— —_—_—_—
i3 0014 PUNES) PISdolg TS SRAKT X
V0N NOSEE 090 e Lance)

RN DA S

alL™] NSIS3d veYvea

L ety e s ﬁn o S3ON

0oLib [y
1oo]4 punols

WOOH 0318vsia 3avidvay
STLNOYS SNIHIMOHS 13437 HLM WILSAS OISIOH-AIHOVHEL 03X14 HLIM WOOH a318vSIo

SNOQY HIMOHS ONY WILSAS O3SIOH-03X0VHL 03XId LNOHLIM WooY aZ1avsia [
-A3A

Page 200

o

© W =
@ =
Ea —
[ G0
: =
I s N

£5EhEl
M flll:
WA

@hﬁ@@%ﬂm . ’ ’ y ; £ ; ; o

%ﬂwm — . - . Q @

AHVAS dwvd




e
855 B FLOZOLLY Buauuid | gy

Smos et s s =i

] oLy gor
e - oS e T
el 30044 1504 tuwaﬂosm. M L AN

OO NOSHE 095 3K LIa0Kd

RN DA S

alL™] NSIS3d veYvea

st o Basm e oy ﬁﬂ o

S3UON

0oLiL
10014 isii4
WoOoY 0318vsIa I1avidvay [
SELLMIYE ONIMIMOHS 13437 HLIM WALEAS 03SI0H-03HIVEL O3X1d HLIWM WOOW O378vsia |
SWOOY YIMOHS ONY WALSAS Q3SIOH-0IHIYEL 0314 LNOHLIM WOOH a3Navsia I
ASM
@
5L o
wa)sAs Jsioy-payoed] paxi e Jnoyum woodyieg pajqesiq
g \
..... ®

1] ™~

o

I3V

10y

o

[0

o
@

051 N.
saniioe) BulIdMOUS [9A3] YIM Wa)sAs
1sloy-payoel] paxl e yjm yim wooldyleg pajqesiqg @
woolyeg
pojqesia 2 ®

010Z°1 ¥+600¢-00£8 S8 HLIM AdINOD OL SWOOYHLYE d31gvsid




Jawan | gy TGO Buaviesd [ ogy W €0LY  #0v
mibosc iiat] SR i o o e oo
rl—lgrgmiuu_,u-‘ﬂsmg L AN
OO NOSHE 095 30N LIa06d
OO AR e

alL™] NSIS3d veYvea

A

e B

S3UON

WODH 0318vSI0 1ev.Lavay [
STULNOYS ONIMIMOHS 13437 HLIM WILSAS 0ISIOH-AIHOVHL 0IXI4 HLIM WOOH OF18vEIa

SWOOY HIMOHS ONY WILSAS U35I0H-0IHOYEL 0¥ LNOHLIM Wood ganavsia [

o0LiL

ueld |eaidA| J0old yunod pue paiyL ‘puosss

ey

Page 202




g 0Ly gov

5 T2 Buaviesd [ ogy
misoss imwans|  ssacsn [

] o e

10 200 UM DO 8. 2L oA
IO NOSIG 09 ans L3306

alL™] NSIS3d veYvea

|

FIUON

WOoYH 0318vSIa 3avLdvay [
SIILMIOVS ONINFMOHS TIATT HLIM WILSAS GISIOH-OHOVHL O3X14 HLIM WOOH 0F18vSI0

SNOOY HIMOHS ONY WIALSAS 0ISIOH-QIHOVHL 03XI4 LNOHLIM Wood a31avsia [

TASA

00bib p
Joojd uynid

Page 203




855 B FLOZOLLY Buuind [ gt - ¢

T ] =i ]

S3UON

kil )
100j4 yxis

Page 204

. d pdp i s} J o]

dp ap dpd

g .ﬁu o oo T dp dp <

pdpap dpdp




e ..m.;..!..ﬁemm.w T

ayLT] NSIsS3I0O veEva

sion

0Ly
ueid jooy *

e >
. = —
= o
e
- o
- |
> T
. o \.\\\\“\.
- P
o
e
L =

L]

N

\
Page 205




3D View 1

Page 206

3D View 2

3D View 3

3.

GASA DEsSIGN LToD
Pranning




TLOZOLLE

e it 8 OLLY  0¢
) iz ! | s i Y
OEAS IO B Tl A

WO NOSHES 095 3w L3antess
SHRHCRSIA DR e

alL NSIsS3IaA veva T T

.:::s...:
]
e ] s s

|

FIUON

1

josed

00Lik ()
uoneAsi3 YyuoN




-5 o TLOZDIAD B | o1 4 a LY gor —— -
Miaotc lwmass;| saians L | L e | s o e — —_p—_ p— o
VOSBRI Nog PIsdoL Tl TN e =
CRSARSINE DR e LS e i
P nie == =
r T
nklﬁ zu-mun <um<m wom v TR T — l.l““nllll 5 -2 BION

[olo] S _.
uopeA’|g yinos -

o

oosE
ey w.-.uull




Smos et s s =i ] ™, S iz

-5 o PRI T a ZHIY  g0v

mmitmarinl ] £l
00k - b L
uonjeAs|s Jsep
[
PRHARSEE] %

00GLE -
i &mﬁﬁ..fd

00082
Joo pag "

O5HT
_oo_i_,_m.sm ll

00042
:Wﬁ.__s.z "




Smos et s s i ]

5 TGO v ooy a

dlLTl NSIS3O veEva

s v Wi ] AL .7

LRI
e A LON

00LiL )
} uonoss

"

(]
= w0l punciy W

0058
0014 a4 "

Page 210

p al ] 0oL
m 10014 PUOTOS l'

00s0L
#0014 I l’

ooort "
10014 uPned

005LE "
10014 U4

E
g I

E
I

aoove "
10043 4pOg

aasre
00| YUIBABG "

0008 "
Bl Joo




§

i

ST 1 ]
[T S —

[l =l )

VST o]

i

o
by,

it

i
3
el
PP PRI T R ST

o Buswiing
ANMNS LS
T N
are-Len
NOLAWHO 153M
avos NOSdIS 095
Fun gor
S53H00Y
HdE TML
MOTISNIMOH
Owld 1138 Z¥
SLO3UHDYY dO
WA | aivs | oW |
NOISIATY
SO0 0L AT
1 mOuvis R NI
AHUBEY - G380 _ia._a
WhEYd 1337
e smass =
% ]
miE £ i 2
WL ONY Shaul 083N

2.
pLELE

i

Q

Page 211




... Cooling Tower
Y v B e
.l

LONDON BOROUGH

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Former Royal British Legion Club
Sipson Road
West Drayton

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Major

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
829/APP/2014/4252 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: .
Page 212 |November 2015 THILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 211-213 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Demolition of the existing 2no. detached dwellings and erection of a two store)
residential development with a lower ground floor and accommodation within
the roof space. The development comprises of 6 x 1 bed flats and 6 x 2 bed
flats.

LBH Ref Nos: 70701/APP/2015/3026

Date Plans Received: 11/08/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/08/2015
Date Application Valid: 27/08/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1{8th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 213



Notes

Ravigion notes

Akaal Associates Ltd

architects and construction management

Moor House Farm Lower Road Higher Denham Uxbridlge UB2 S5EN

t 01895 834961 e info@akaslassociates.co.uk w akaalassociates.co.uk

g () Ak Assmciates Lmitod 2013 I
Mmmmmwmmwmammwmaamwmwm.mm

st NOL De Scaled; ony Sgured GRMensions showd De used, if thee are o
and other infosmation, it shoukd De Srought 10 i Archlect's stienson.

cliant

project
Mr S Burgess 211-213 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham UB10
| drawirg
| SITE LOCATION PLAN
- date scale iprnjamno work stape I drawing no.
10 20 30 40 50M s “-1M°°M‘i2015.o10 ‘ . o )

| | | | | north

Page 214



‘sl lscenping i derrark.

bt armersy boutary.

Wt 58 o oo Rootgrin
ot adasent cewting Fa. 20

PROPOSED LOWER GROUND
1900

LGaz
bioyeie store {12no.)

Page 215

‘“houm ycie one 1 00mmRgh.
Bty BTN AT e GO

wiant of buking e atovs

Na21s |

s o o S kgt
o agcent dwiding 6 318

A ITI02015 KSP L
. Study aneds recuced 1o 8m? max

Ravisace:

Akaal Associates Ltd

» e =
Moor House Farm  Lower Road  Higher Denham  Uxbridge  UBS S5EN

t01895 834551 e infodak com w iates.co Lk
drinwing notes. o b s L S0
& Patents har Thes Coirwr)
ehant protnet
Mr S Burgess. 211-213 Swakelays Foad, Ickenham UB10

draweg Hie.
PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR

ety wcale. project . WO SIBGE drimninig no.
A 2015 TANNEmAT NS00 3 c12



o e B0 e iy
s renids sermaning

enmtng teen refarac
] | o OO 10 B SOy
! 0 prpey prng
s ey
st trewn salanad
: ]
e st pesna i
exmtng trem setained
gt e 120 1 sy Do 4 .
i S0 YT RO o $EG DGR,
08 lancaging m bounday i 1200 bigh partialy webmerged
matart £ it Pt aevarsty ! e
rmr——
] e ey M H
e L i ol grraand ot ompert
| o wastng sening 313
|
No 204 ]
e o fwl Ste Foopen
oo ewrstng thveding na 13
it 08 sy o Sostgt
08 ckacens dnbe o 200
P ]
o At Gaalng a0 211 -
em sl ISy WO 4 —I
e I = = U_FJ =
- |
v el planbeng) wirip 10 pravels. e J
pracacy actnaning 1o basmoms
I L Change o
1 3 4 B
iFat3)
Grwel it
o lanaicang i il pattig
e By
Mo 215
5 extant ol otprint of ackscerd weling s 71
1 .
G " P
s ‘Shaning & serven v el g et st
i
et e etsned
T
Pecdierion sCou and
Ens
120 01
packng
B
1 n ¥ b ]
e |
proe |
L 0 1
ik boandany Wi
S IO R . 1 ;
s eabred 0 sk paiing 7 Se }
4
L9 y
E
& 152 5 pectian gt s Sélary
# esterend st it st
LI g memeemn
PROPOSED GROUND
1100
A (3162015 KSPF3 s
A ITAD2015 HSP ing
@ F3 & P4 layouts smended
b, Parking & amanded
©. Fiat 3 parking abocated.
o, Uit 209 olpek acusiod 15 fefict axsling
& N 211 footprint depih
£ F6 window omined
& Study scea’s redoced to 8m’ max

Akaal Assoqia_tes Ltd

and
Moor House Farm  Lower Road  Higher Denham  Usbridge UBS SEN

t 01895 834561 e info@ak i 0.k
aeawing oones e —
& Paterts by i Dy
chant -prejact:
Mr 5 Burgess. 211-213 Swaketeys Road, lckenham UB10

Page 216 PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR
(o N [ sl Tproectng: | work amage drawing ro
_|Mws20ts viogAl 2015010 3 o1 8

nan



mrlant 1 ground feor tetonn
of ijacrt datiee.

3

22550mm

Tl e Bei

Pkt peice.

A5 e of st W
arsrati b

No 208
bt of et e fodrort
of ackaant eating ot 70
xtar o ocapiet of
xitiog eheelieg 12 211

FPROFOSED FIRST
AL

Chwitings 1o rear of im

1.8 High privacy scmeses.

Page 217

13

=

U

st ! grivad R booipret.
of xiing deretieg no. 313

et o4 ot o Ancrens
o punfing dhesling na 214

o g s bt ek

A 2T 102015 KSP | Amendments as per plaseing (C.G) commants
T | & F& & Fil lyouls amandod.

Akaal Associates Ltd

and .
Moor House Farm Lower Road Higher Denham  Uxbridge UBS SEN
t 01855 834561 e i com  w akaal -1 co.uk

() ane Ao L2018 |

drawing rotes
A P Thi Crawing
chent project:
Mr 5 Burgess. 211-213 Swakaleys Road, Ickenham UB10
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR.

date. scale. project oo work stage. dawangno; |
| Aug 2015 tiocomat 2018010 3 cia A



b 4 oot o L
g g 211 &

PROPOSED SECOMND
106

il
ko o Arak fiooe fodtorvd. m .
- of adhatert Swwiing o0 200 " ﬂ

Page 218

=ngle py memtrana fist
foal covering commnan pars Tk’

tierach bakow

ot o grund fooe tootarin
o woateg sl s 713

e o e o bt
of st theping o213

A 2T IO K5 peng (TG
. Una 209 iootprint sdjushed o reflect axtsong
b M. 211 foctpeint chepth reduced.

Resvision,

Akaal Associates Ltd

i and i i
Moor House Farm  Lower Road  Higher Denham  Usxbridge  UBS SEN
t01895 834861 e info@ iates.com w iates.co.uk
awing noles P —————
Trat Drmmsng

WA 0 OO ATl g EOE T T ATCIMT S B0,
chont: propct
Mr S 211-213 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham UB10
g bl
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR

date: aoan propcl o, e Sage sk L
Aug 2015 1:100@AT 2015010 3 c1s




i
]
%

At st 4
g Gudling sa it

PROPOSED ROOF
1400

Page 219

single ply membrans fal
roal covering commen parts nk

BT DA

norn

xtar of grinnd B Bostoe
‘of it dualing 20 313

et o feut o St
P

A 21102018 KeP planring.
& Dormeer added to No 217 block
b Mo 211 foatpert depm meduced
Riision
Akaal Associates Ltd
chitects and . "
Moor House Farm  Lower Road  Higher Denham  Uxbridge  UBS SEN
01895 834961 e info@ i cOm W i co.uk
drawing notes T A s L4 150
- g i T Creming
ebest project
Mr B Burgess 211:213 Swakeleys Road, ickenham UBT0
drawing e
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
date: soale poogect no ek siage drmamng o
Aug 2015 1100@A1 2015010 3 cie A



ot vl
.
Boundany
PO Swakolys Road 211213 Swakekys Aoad 215 Swaiocioys Rosd
HORTH-WEST
Extant af Lower Ground lavel
R chooks
i oo Bghts.
TP . s
Pairtag =T r———— i = E
Ao i J_ | 1 | .
| - i Powoor coatid urminium
winIos with Stono Enteis
=TT Straat kvl bahing
Boundary |
Boundary
SOUTH-EAST
#15 Swaioniinys Foad 2114213 Swakoioys Fond 208 Swikoys Aoud
Paow oot Tights
SECTION A-
A ITAONE GG Amenaments i o plnvng 06 comments.
it

2015 and CoNSiruchion manages
Farm Lower Road Higher Denham Lixbridge LBS SEN
4051 einfo@akasiassocaios ool W aksakssonEtos.

€ Nl Aemocimen Lamies 2011

Tha Deaweg

ProRct
211213 Swakeboys Road, lekenham UB10

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS & SECTIONA-A
scals Project reo’ evrk GAOGH argwang g
1A 2015010 3 c21 A

Page 220 TR



Mo ool s

Pt 30emoe with lead
clixieiond ofioos

Frofio of bin Pairtod rendor
‘saora Deyond b
. = — = ==
BOUTH-WEST
i
Po .
‘windos with #tonn et .
Extont of Lot Exiond of cycia
Caruna vl shonmga v
Harar O with koad Clackineg chadks
‘Haw roof fighs Now Dol bghts.
ey dormon with lead cladded Haw dommaon with kesd claddod
| choaks cheoks. )
Faiitod rondor Feainitod roncke

HORTH-EAST

Exterit of Lower

Gt st

M root ights.
Prodia of bin
wora Beyond
SECTION B-8

Fawvinin rotes
Akaal Associates Ltd
architecls and cONSirucion manage

Meor Housa Farme Lower Boad  Highier Denham Lixbidg

01805 834067 einfo@akasiassociates ook W aksalassonates,

1 Ml Aamociaey Limwes 2010
Qramang noRes. o
it
et peog
Mr S Burgoss 211213 Swatkebys Road, lekenham UR10
dranvdng
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS & SECTION B-B

e e Profect ro’ ek GOQN
Juy2015  mAT 2015010 | 3

Page 221 TR



ponn WSS | D TND A8

s iy iy L

579 SHOLLYATT3 1O GLONHISNOD) SSTIIN ON 2 NOWYAT TS

s

T
- .
i
L
szio0rzz A I | eama0
A A e [EE 1 =
%] 80L-L20L .
AN Y LI
ool 1w 37e0i-L204 d
RIS (1 LAY T3 DAY
&) suonenei3 e T
o Fp— e
weyuEyd|
peoy sAalaRens ELE-1IZ
aiis ]
TUBEL
SIEROSSY [EERY
NI
90g BL0d SER6G VEZI0 )
g e shansnsun e (o)
BN BIpUN] £F i hens ()
] shanng 1y
mEpepeds Aaming peansesy ANOILYATTE SNOUYATT . ROUNATTS
SAIAUNS | N
|
R |
[ BT
W be
LT Al
e,
¥ T N
()
g (@)]
[ DQIM
R |
T
i,
BRI
§ NOKLYATT
P g
[




= LS L | 0Lo'sioT SIN  sipz Anp
=

o e ‘bl o ou sl oo

L SHdYHDO0LO0Hd DNILISIXT
Lo

0190 Weyueya| ‘proy sAe|sEmMS giz-| 12 ssebing g N
oo BAYED
sga;!29538§'.§ .wr.\:?n.

e o
o B =gy

| LZ PUE BOZ "OU SPIBEMO] ISEa-1IN0s Bunjoo| pY shajayems wol maip p L L2 PUE G0Z "OU Spiemol yinos Bujoo| pY sAajayems wol Malp g

602 ‘Ou Splemo} 1sea-Uinos Bunjoo] py sAs|eyems Woi maip, 2 1sam-yinos Buijoo| pY shsjeyems pue py IAEH usamiag uoiounl Woly maip “|

SEloN

Page 223



‘ou Busvap ‘oo oM

= eis L | 0Lo'sioT SIN  sipz Anp
=

ou oo L
Z SHJVHOOLOHd DNILISIXE
Buavagy
018 WeYURND) ‘PEOY SAHISHEMS E12-112 ssebing g N
1oskcd A
S ) =0 B
PP B

P11 mm_u,m_uomm_( _mmx<

€12 "ou spiemo] 1sea-yinos Bunjoo| pY sAs|aqems Wol malp ‘g

1see-yuou Bupjoo| peoy sAajeyems puUE Ussls) 8JopoT| Usamiag LooUN| woy Malp 1

€12 PUE | |2 "OU SpIEMO] 1sBa-Uinos Bunoo| pY sho|eems Wwoly malp g

SEloN

Page 224



= €S L | 0Lo'sioT SIN  sipz Anp
B

‘o Busvaup oy o o posdoxd o
£ SHdVHDOLOH DNILISIXI
Buavagy
0180 WEYURN| ‘RO SARISHEMS T2~ 112 ssebing g N
oo o

OB $ 0 I 0 O] ] A O ) T
e 1o o 95 T S
S = A o Shmerey Ba =

PI] SS1BI00SSY |eRMY

L LZ "OU Spiemo} yuou Bunjoo] py sAsjayems €1 JO Jeal Wolj Malp g

SEloN

1sam-yuiou Bunjoo| py sAsjeyems £ Jo Jeal Wwolj malp, "ZL

© TSNS T e SIS AN

1sam-yuou Bupjoo| pyY shejeyems | |z Jo Jeal Woll Malp 6

Gl "ou spiemo} 1sam Bunjoo| pyY sAsje)emMs £z J0 Jeal Wwoy MalA "L

R S e e

Page 225

£12 "ou spiemol 1sam Bupjoo| pY shaje)ems | | Z 10 Jeal Wolj Malp g




BEOZ 00T UV A L
ol il el L i

(%] 801-L204 -

. At

oozt (v ez B0LLE0L
Bt vz Lnouw i Seemoneg

Aawns fesudesfiodo) az

W e
weyud|
peoy SASNEMS £12-112
)
AN
204 9408 BERERS WIZID )
Aanteng @
BAID BIPUN] €7 WO RABAIISYT A ()
P shanns LW

SAIAUNS TN W™

g
e ] -
om0 e Ee ]
L S e ]
o T ) Bty
oy Doy
e —— wgnosa @
e mesgnew [
moimn Ao oy
L el et sy 1y oy
A T ) maocems [}
A g iy s
wseg - sy
iy @ i s, -
e e gy, -
e e
-y o e
ity s
W @l o
g aem bk b -
o 43t
e ity Apfiaty
e i s
e e
o wng P - A
g sy oo @ m
TROTD T PN LTS AT TR Y TG
AZH ABABNG TENHAVHOCHOL

8 TGRS 0 ) BN VSN TN u
o vommsamsostan o+ 20,
YT AT
LG J%J
TR 354 s r
2 B e D OGRS CONLED
Euslobde b WS £or 50 M By e
M TN ES  comiag
Qo

St

Ereen s

i
8

R

sodben

Page 226




Bupusy uopominig Bal)  me—

o renowsy o pesadosgseil {3

(Raning puiluo uo umous jou)
olpwxosdty UoHsod 8911

nfokaes @
o fucBaen @
alotoes @
w hioBaiey @
ey

v @ ooz WU PRON SA00NENS ELT-LLT NS

SOLINS R

HONOTS
W
Kepy smidad &

ooy pamodh Jamo)jo
Buno Bl aRidy

Page 227




Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

211-213 Swakeleys Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
70701/APP/2015/3026

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Major

Page 228

Date:
November 2015

™ILLINGDON

LONODN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address IMPERIAL HOUSE VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Construction of an A1 discount food store with associated car parking and
landscaping on the site of the former Imperial House. External refurbishment

of Units 1 and 2.
LBH Ref Nos: 5039/APP/2014/3715

Date Plans Received: 17/10/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 08/05/2015
Date Application Valid: 17/10/2014 10/11/2014

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18 Novermber 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 229



d | | = | LS Y AN0NYT TS
wBWz | noeas _AQEE_SE;E.E._

R oo s SIS

wpg 0z oL 0

EER

AYM 013143NOLS

QL SMOONIM 3NTYA

Page 230




—.0 e _ Loy — Eg.w-_wowg{:
| ieﬁ_ﬂ—!_ FADEII | aEMTHWLA0% V0 0L a0 e
; e 1 1 B A P | .ﬂwﬁ/m_
Bl sopio pasioy>” F100d

v = E i o e |
— _\4 _ =8
m — -
aLT SMOTNIM INTYA = m
v0 w10l W e |
16 PUEpUEIS m _ |

¥ PHlD + Juaued = | _
afipeq jenp iy = A ) - m
] Um0t  anig | :

ONIMEYd
2 Ad3vE D

6 SN

LI4HIMA

18 301440

N
=
2L ELVEREN _H_
]

06t 3EN0OHIHYM

98z} SIWS _U

048' vig

oy Ew

‘sozasnosNaa | L378NS 38 OLLINN 13W0D H3NH04

i w L] | pm | L L L

L
T

WS 970 3o I

(LNIW3FHOY 30NFDIN
HIANN LNO QFHYD 38
OL SHHOM JdWISaNYT)

ONYT O3NMO TIONNCD

£10Z TidY 81 Q3LYO

6E62/Z402/ddVI99Z 1Y 434

NOISSIN3d ONINNY 1d
INVIX3OLONUYIRY AN~

AUSNOILYOddY  —
NOILYQOWNODOY 40 3INA3HIS

Page 231

| e ﬁw !
\ | SRssainsy:
N

\0\4\“’!%\:\?

A : N SSe— . —

SR s—c L - =

.

(]

_Ilrr.il ———

et —— T i o e === - < \\.w\.\...\ T T
D vt /) NI IR, S S AL L LA = A MLLL AL T




APV IS 3RO
FAOLTI0 e O VO YIRRGLNA I

oo paoio FHGOH

&
g
=
w

| (A
* Mo :

QLT SAMOONIM 3ATYA

¥l 101

|
|

16 piepuels
¥ piug + Juaieg

afpeq enp
L] umoug f amg

AV OTREENOLE

] AdNE

Lid-HIA

8

G

it

&y

9L

S3LN
301340
FHYSTIM
3SNOHIHYM

§3WS

NONNED ¢

L

WY STTE W bs 9gz'y

: LIN 1011 03500 \

064 w9

Page 232

. Ji
1378NS 38 OL LINA L3WOD HIR0S . I - T el

PES— -
(LN3W3ZHOY IINTDIN == : =

] N |
YIANN LNO QF1yuvd 38 r P
i
.lm W 7

OL SYH0M 3dvISaNYT)
e

LT T Y -

wbs 9p0'2 ¥39

€102 TiidY 84 03LVD
BEGZITI0CIddWB0Z LY 43
NOISSINEId ONINNY I
LNVIX3 OL1 ONILYI3H ONY

3LIS NOLLYOITddY

NOILYQOWWOJOY 40 3INa3HOS

e I

\ | . : ¥ A R == == — . = ool A
= Sl g e r Tl O T eIV 7= S S
e o V= iEm E —— X2 e sy /) ) ) A AL S B e A AL




118 o o i 5 e - g e v

o o pybenieka ) | g Topsse dgrancd many sumy ga | Y

oL TP Ay e | 01TV I
SOH paysas O wmmp
F1- 1868177017 20U Tupwesp
1Viosz!1 apeos
£1, AON 18P
stesodoug adeaspur] Fuimelp
AN 1A e
AUTSINE HLNOS
AVOY VIFOLITA -[ws

aampan iy adeaspue
Ty
Ao _ Adopoay

00 420D ) S0 WK 10

i
i
ST

g [hmepiianial
sapa e vt e
s s e et e
a0 0 s Pt
=
poatrens e s
i e
i .
i i e e
ke a1 s —— pnee
oo S | N | | ey m
s i et oo
Pt
ooy
o 1 b e
g e ursnen o
D e e - 4
sty ooy
o i o
PR ol s
. prnass

B0 Litde WACOT Mi pRsSns snop e (s
b s Norsaadbem kg (EE

ML 0 000K KOOI 0 LBLES!

Tuouso 000 NG MENRADUROS)
TIEL 0 FGL Rany 8300 HED L gD o
RS WA i 190y pnaiieuny

A A n&_.@
e

woganatsuc Buing patarsd

Due pecimns by oy sors o RN

PAMEI EDRE J0 S5OU0RE

|
.\% 0L SMOONIM NTVA

AXM 013143N0LS

p

==—r—
ae 9‘%:’-1
i S

- 4
L4
. 4
VAN SIS W bs oa'L 3
LINN 10171 0350d08d f

Meac) FSOPL UjEDRd w1OMT DM

PSR )
MO 0] 190 D 10 BAUSD OO TOAMD) POPUNCUI
Esnssgk.iesan.xas
REORS MR

BOT UM DU W Aduroo of rieusd g0 By
AE0LGEKY 5 P 006, CHOF S8 00 PR 660
| 10 GEET 59 Upm ARUOD O} SIS PUT B0 Y
syt BULSHINSE Pun Buspusts s 9000

ST MR FTUBPIOIOE 1 BT PGS SOUTUURL
Buguert Bupuey wonemdad Soued oy
s

WY EUOMEN LOEOUITY ORIl (BIERGLOH
ooy ABwos  pmoys pos Bunund gy

WO IV




FOE

o |

[ ———— | T T o A T R O

ook

EMEDID | dITSiNH HLM

105 "OYOu WIHOLIA 100

P
o)

) ¢ [ ————

T

MMMM 0 o wy

# teeg [ ]
u g smamon ||
6 swen [0
5 a0 s bREN _H_
o8 woogm ||
whs 9z e ﬂ‘_

win  ahe w30
whs Q0 w9
ATH - NOILYQONNODOV 40 3INJ3HIS

Y3V S3TVS W bs 982’1

asnoyeiem |




10
|IIII-IIIII|tII_1IIIII‘=

Page




3|

408 BE0E

0350d0Ed SY SNOILYAZT3
oy

W @00k £102 D30 dINSINY HLNOS ‘aYOH YIHOLIIA an

L (g

—T
wal

SO0 T R 1 et Bumeland um
406 TR Si1M PEOLIE 500 Bl LT
T

i |

0

it TH N0
yaio papoyd” 100

NOILYA3 T3 LSIM HLIHON

NOILYAZT3 1SY3 HLNOS

Page 236

NOILYA3T3 LSV3 HLYON

NOILYAZT3 LSIM HLNOS

:




a HOE BOE SNOILYAITE .—me..h.m

v B 00z EL0E 230 TISING HINOS 'Ov0 VIHOLIA 9011

e g T ]
M oo proop " Tio0d

Q3IS0J0U SY NOILYAS TS L13THLS AVM 013143N0LS

W ALYD

wol o

03S0H0Yd SY NOLLYAZ TS L3FHLS Ov0H VidOLIIA

nnuﬂ_._ﬂﬂu__uu _ : oh I_ I_

Lid AimA FHOLE 10N MIN ANYOWA ATUNIHEND 5038 ¥0d SNOSN3E
LINM 130D HINH0S

ONILSIXT SV NOILYAITS L33HLS AVM Q13143N0LS

00 0 AL

DNILSIXG SV NOLLYAZ TS LIFHLS VOl YIMOLIIA

G e

Lid MM dN-020EV0E ONY 123430 LINONYA ALLNTHNEND 5038 404 SNOSNIE
ASN0H TH3NI LINA 13N00 HIAWHO0

Page 237



Tangsd Point Eulkding

Supers

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:
Imperial House

Victoria Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Ruislip
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
5039/APP/2014/3715 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
Major Page 238 |November 2015

FHLLINGDON

LUK




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GRASSY MEADOW DAY CENTRE GRANGE ROAD HAYES

Development: 1. Demolition of existing Day Centre.
2. Erection of a single part 3 and part 4 storey building comprising:
2a. 88 number of 1 bed Extra-Care units (C2 Use Class)
2b. 700 sgm dementia resource centre with communal lounge and associate
service facilities (D1 Use Class)
3. Associated soft and hard landscaping (including ancillary structures such as
bin stores & storage shed).
4. Provision of car parking.

LBH Ref Nos: 48110/APP/2015/3436

Date Plans Received: 14/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 14/09/2015 05/11/2015
28/10/2015
14/09/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1{8th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 239



Designated 20 overflow
spaces and associated

ess road within Beck
Reatre Car Park are

SITE LOCATION PLAN

Site Area (Red Line Boundary): 0.727 Hectares |
Area within Blue Line Boundary: 0.108 Hectares

project name;

drawing reference:

job number:
M9069

status:

cad ref:

0 10m 20m

50m

100m

GRASSY MEADOW EXTRA CARE, UXBRIDGE ROAD

SITE LOCATION PLAN date: SEPT 15
sheet: drawn: JW
scale: 1;1250@;\4 checked: Jw
drawing number; revision:
APLOO1 A Use figured dimensions only. All levels and dimensions to be

checked on site.  This drawing is to be read in conjunction
with all other relevant drawings and specifications.

Hunters is a trading name of Hunter & Partners Limited.
PLAN N IN G ® p?@a ﬂ_pimited. All rights reserved.
MO069_APLO01_-_Site Location Plan_Grassy Meadow Og “dwg

SCALE: 1:1250@A4

huNters

Space One Beadon Road
London W6 OEA

T 020 8237 8200
F 020 8741 2814
mail@hunters.co.uk

www.hunters.co.uk



sizuny - v Lilergisenreiiczcrn N R

—— o

; = __o ; %3%313%4&.

Koy awayog aueD BpE
{31N3HOS NOLLVAOWNOODY.

uﬁﬁuﬁmﬁa — couL 195




P

N (wbsg'zs ® peqg-1 |1e) 0Z 03 L0 SJequinN sjuswiedy pue
; * L ‘aNjI[1o.) 801AISS PUB SEAJE [BUNWIWOD PAJBIDOSSE U)M 91)ud)) 90In0say enuswag wbs 0o/

sl s OV@O001:| ueld Jooj4 punoi9 pssodoid

il el

e gz v oL
EE] " o sy
o ® eagpee
wmiz L o
own = Ty punaagy

e ) -y

MO 3 8 1R AN S8

Page 242

NI0HYD AHOSNIS IN3QISTY

0V@0SZL:| Ueld Uoyedo sig

o

I



foravai T pleoiibiy =
weE  amctomen i
e L = B /
- ey \ [os—
S e i 25 . T
- - -

(wbsg'zg @ pag-1 I1e) 6¢ O} L SioquinN sjuswpedy
R — 0V@004:} ueid J00|d 1sii4 pesodoid
o [J] |
e ] el

43N HABIDD

P wmvans

s nEe sy TeinL
) i Lo ey
o ® on plereg
eriz. ® g
oz s

e oay o =

VOO 0 3 TA A TH S §

Page 243

0v@0GZH:L Ueld Uoyeoo ais




| ey =
e
ER PR ——
T = = o= \
SIPWINY I e — N
VO AN THI VHLO MO NS oo
o s
- - S

om0 W g el
e W s
Lt - g sy
e fr g
sy ey ey

ROV 03 TN O IHAE

0V@0SZL:| Ueld Uoyedo sig

e

(wbsg'zG @ Pag-L I[e) 2L O} 0G SIOUINN Sjuswpedy
OV@00L:] ueld Joo|4 puodag pasodold

Page 244




T s o s =
oo L Orimanr =
SN TR =
| i il = == R /
M.‘g\_ T e = T D] TN b S
£ ASEWUD e
v e
I T
Lt m ) WA
|

v e iy v
v e e O R Y
T ot p Bepnul 0N ST DAY
L g WY A
T e oL
e # gL
e L]
e ' ey
e 0 e
uts vy ‘wa ot
NOULYOONROGIY 0 3TN G AN D E

0vV@0SZL:} Ueld UoyedoT sig

e S

(wbsg'zg © peg-| (&) g8 0} g/ SI8quin sjuswpedy
0V®@O00L:1 ueld 1ool4 pliyL pasodoid

Page 245




oo T ramanrig -
P . s
A e = e /
ssEUNY T i = R p— h =
RO I D VHLO MOV ASSRHD e
owBnL-C e
.
w—— 0V@001:} ueld jooy pasodold
N n
m——— ROy 3Og-
wnony P | 0 sy sy -
ARN HOOYOD
o
o WY QS
e e Sy WL
L " B LT
ez " ) P
AT L A4 A
(-3 o e L]
i ey L =y

Page 246

ov@0SsZ1:1 ue|ld UoyeooT Sl




ST
SAVDEaNY
AIMILNTHD

0SEL SEB0r0E v WO
iy Bemos ] A A iy
ENINNY T 304
s
g 10199061
e

BEOGZR EGGL0

Lt ¥E3 HOPON Uk SEI SRS Iy AoupL
UL S “Speds aefisionr A pesddng aq
o) FUME 0] SIMGHRIAL 008 4113 sjebsiows ()

DU [EZLE A
U poddip 99 51 SHNHHS ONY SNV TdSNYHL
“SEIFHL 1Ty Bunueid of soud fapmpeuni) (o

BUIPENG 0] U SUOYRS0] 5808

pasadosd pim Gunsea o) spiefion u slaaubus
£q pancidde 64 o) §1 UBISEP LOHERLNG (G
PURPOOM

P 5308 BLUS 0) WD) B

B0y OO RGN G 1881 GSR0) [

“spun Guiasd |amae jo

BT Qg UBEAIIAT 0L 0P DT AUD BAEP S8
Duinnp SA L0 PaIRST SLIBOd GREY Iy (5

GUIMEIP SPRENSI0N JURAB|A 18U [
Nl OGNS W) pEES B 0F $1 Bumep sal) (2

Fanwaip s won Agaaap seas o0 o0 (1

sajopN Bunue|d

pan uadgy depodonsy
spleid Buife|d

BN PEY PIA slapeid i)
BOS UBWILIOTD) BSOUIIE XAUTY
dNasagng MOpEy SLIME SRR
Ll susina FERunag
difsman SUGN BRI
ORI F00gspIG SMBIRHURD ST}
RS{R(] SRR BHHA WL BN
WP LB sy HOPOIUDS']
MIEpeE 5 ApeT UELOA g
FlURY W] WWEU upe
SIS BIS 10 STOID
g Busxa L SUMET J0) 4113
50338 SEVHD HIMOTI0IM
paRabos 58 pay) winjoyinbe s W
Py 0 sybnon  euABouca snBaeiRID WD
- SO0 BUBEAT SPiins W
payddns sy Gaog way BRHINGES SO0 2
W Y oy sajaady apoy
Wifiseg

LIL - 5L "S9S o o SWGUS) url U NS 6 oF BBpaY RS
(uapaaIa ¥l SAREN.] SNIDOIH LNYLISNI SALLYN

BEse MIq0) Snasn0 HO
TRl Boudey an

Jakwag, saneais snfie 4
PN | SUEL], SIRBG Studiesy 82
embyse; popesd oo dfl
S0, SApOUEEK sy dy
TR ALY ™

FSURBINE, ANSAdWED 380y av
eojseds Ray

$3THL

UDIEHIRES UR] [BRHIEN AU W BHIBR00IR
Ll Pl ARSINU PeAnsdde Y | H U woy parikdns ag o) siueid jy

anpayog bBunuelq

adeospue

KB ajeusyls
S%) uopbul|jiH ‘mopes|y Assels)

uarEna Bupng

O SMEn dn e O] ABpUNOG
a4 Buoge Buissarss apimad

@ Bunusd ainjEus was poaaEs

soam Bunied

PR pEOI UonENARY o] Bumed K0k
OEELIGD NGD N posodold
{Sume ssel Fugsinn o Busswes 1) posn
a4 61 Pt 4113 apfisow) saads
MOPRDLE BusEriciodin jan Jamoianmg

0% SE0UE BUNUBR [FUSWELLG [BISUA0,
82
it BBpey WS paSodtid

s ey 1o Aepunog Buoie
Dunuuing L po ybu 2eang

e 55 posodold PenowLa B o) Seag Hulsig

Burfipa i yird spqueunad UEmsaped
DEPLOG WS ANOD NG posodalg

5991 pasodoig

o ay) o Aepunag Buoje
Bulng Ses jo W S50y

WBDENS JUEISUI Ras
o4 BpS o Aepunog o) pejued

Bandipai pmisuy te wg ) —
atpewasy L2 I

we

TOID PURIPOON POULISY poume: 8 of 5864 Bulsy

PR wKIQ uRpodona
8118 JJO PUEB[POOM

m__.!_i_s.ais.maﬂwaw .. . .....f
Bunamoy Bumapai Aepnodg £ 4 . =
wrsEe Buoje Bunuetd sy

wiedieay Mand usy

BYIE O] LHAIS UESU R
O D5 §0 AIBPUNGG 0) paEd
Guutipay jemsu) 1YBoH Wi |

2

ot itk o o
s
5

A S
3,

SR

N
L

T

S

£, o
o g
:'\{:’\,\,\\\\\\\\

U Ao URRdeRi
8115 44O pue|pOOM

“agpm
1EIE o sorads Bunemog
Guipniaun Buped Aliusuny

Agumye o) dofsrel
0] SO0 PAEIES MOYE OF 100 PG 64 o) B e pue
anas K] BEURaRs Pagoam i K0 WaUsiandn Haeus of
pawRuEL pue palTuBLL B3 O QIS PUB PUBIPOOM BUSHT




YOO SN M “ponssal SU [y POl SItG g SN &
‘PRI XU § HIUNH j0 sleu Buipes & 5 siung i

YOS S SUCHEIRO0S P SELIMER) JUBADRI JBUI0 B LM ONINNYd s
FLBE LrLE 020 4 wnfounfucd Ul pes) B 0y 5 BUIMEID SI1L NS UD paNOSD

0029 [£28 020 L B4 0 suy sonalfly Ao by asn BL07dY BA06N

WO B UopUDT] “orsiAag equny Bupmeip saquinu gof
pecy uopeag sup eaedg MP pepog SIN opeos
Ha UMED Jeeys

m-H@-u_ _D_ _ SL0ZYIHOLOO Emp wedw| [ensip 8deospuET  eauase buwen )
aAvoy I9Ar€axn '3¥v0 YH1X3 MOAVIW ASSYHO cousmu st : by

£V®0002/| :ueld uoieoo sjis

pjely mopes|) Assels) wodj 3sep Bujoo] maiA pesodold |

play mopealy Assels) wolj jsapn Bunjoo] mala Bupsixg -L



HYOD R M panasar subu [y pew Slouled 9 JBIUNH &

‘PRI SUBIY § JBIUNH 0 e Bu g n| o

o ssauLEHEw SuNEyneds pue w?&smi:._m,m_s”.:..w.wnm_“ﬂuu OZ—Z Zdﬂ-_& S
FLEZ LeE 020 4 up pead 9q 0 5 Bupweap syl Caus uo pexoED

0029 ££28 020 L 0 0] SUSULP puB Sene Iy Ao sucsuswip paunbiy Bsn 6L07dY BA06N

V30 94 UopusT ‘aopAal sequnu Buelp Jagquiny gof
proy uspeag aug eleds MP pepey SIN opeos
Hal ‘UMED Jays

mLG-H_ _D_ _ 5102 ¥IFOLOO aiep 1wedu| [ensip adesspuer “eaussRye Blsesp

aAvoy I9Ar€axn '3¥v0 YH1X3 MOAVIW ASSYHO —p— uossinay

EV®0002/} ‘uejd uoneso 8y

yied Jen aneay] yoag wolj 3se] Bunjoo] maia aaijoadsiad pasodold 'z

T
T ket

all

e




ORI M “ponssal SIU [y POl SIEY g SBUNH &
‘PIUUT S B JBIUNH 50 Bl Buipen & 5 seunyg ;

00 SIHUEINEW “SUOEIYSOds PUE SHLIMERD JUEAB(BE JBEE |8 YiM OZHZZdﬂl_n& B
FLBE LyL§ 020 4 wofunfuca U pesd B0 o 5 DD S aus U e

DO0ZF L5282 020 L B 0 Suy spona) Iy Ao pasnbiyy a5y 0Z07dY BOOEN

W0 B uopuD o ~saqunu Bumeip sequinu gof
proy uspeag aug eleds MP pepey SIN Bess
Ha i Jaeys

mMG-H_ _D_ _ S0ZYIHOLOO  mep 1oeduw] [ensip sdeaspuer] “maues Buawen -
aAvoy I9Ar€axn '3¥v0 YH1X3 MOAVIW ASSYHO —p— sy

JZH Aem Jo 1yBu o1jgnd wioly yuoN Bupjoo] mala sAndadsiad ¢

£V®0002/} :ue|d uoneso ajis

peos aBpugxn 0Z0bY Wolj 1seq Yyinog Bunjoo| maia sAoadsiad ‘¢

= fp——g

VRS FRAIAL | I E b i g..d_Iﬂ.ﬂlll

P, W o




DONINNYd

¥ L3074Y
e i Bt

NOLLYELSNTH 3AILD345H3d

m&&#c_ —c g - or SN uin iy uo pigepd) urt Apunty C SLOSE0L W

AYOY 390IHEXN UV YHLXI MOAYIN ASSYHD g
YSiuly (2935 SSa|UIR}S Paysnq ul |12|0s-asug "ST
(yooy umoig) Jooy 1e14 Aussanp-o1g "vT
sjaued pd “ET

SLoL
W / 319 IEQ 1NOJOD "SIROID WNUILINGY Ddd

ISPUNCLING MOPUIM /swil) 232y f8udo) ZT ;m—> m>—-—-omnmm wn moz<m-—-z w z —<E ) —‘

S10L T
| Raugy aeq Lnojog ‘spespuey pue sisod (9818 Odd
sBuley 2o L1
BTOT WY MOJ[3A JUIZ ynew
03 4nojo) "sse|¥ Azeaud pajun paiajuey) ssajawely
uaauos Azenud 0T
‘Buippej jeweiu) uepieb Jejupm Bujpuodsauos
yayew o} nojog ‘ssejd Aveanud pajuiy Jo sea))
‘sjaued paxi4 ‘96
‘panosdde pue
|enba Jo §Z1S xnpe(og wasAs-win;-pue-apys
ssajawely [ediuan sseb-je jo yoesn ajbuig
sjoued Buipys “eg
‘sjaued Juize|d wHiay |0y suapien JAUIM ‘6
Buyooep sequyp pue sjpued sseyb Buiues|D-jles
:apessnjeq sse|g ssajawelq ‘g
Bupoap Jequiy pue sseiB Buiues|-jlag Jeapd yum
S1H02 TvY | Aeug yaeq nojoD ainjonus |98)s Ddd ¥ = o - 1 g =
spensnjeg ssein L o = - : e .ﬂ
SLOL VY ( - = - |

i
A9 WIeQ JN0I0D "SSWE WN|UIWNIE PAJECD JOPMOd - = = ¥ - ro.!_ m oo
iS100(] PUB SMOPUIM '8 | r == y g =

SUONEAS|S U0 UMOYS
se p00Z vy @Bueio aind ‘azol v Mok uolial
‘8101 v mojjel auiz unojon "pascidde pue jenba
10 puoqoonjy ‘Buippe|d ausodwos wniuunly Jdd
:BUIPPED [[EM [BUIDIU USPIES) JOIUIM 'S
G104 TvH / A8 wieq tnojon pascsdde pue jenbe
10 puoagoan)y ‘Buippe}d aysodwes wnuwnly Sdd
:BuippeD [leM [BUISIXT
UMOUS SE [IB)ap 4L SSIW PUE Jy
IIOMYOLIE aimjead 'f
‘umoys se |[eyap youq Bugosfoid wuipe
IIOMYILIE BUNjeaY 7
puoq 18ydjeils uj pie| ‘pascidde
pue [enba Jo yor|gihieun snbed :ebues JeBiaqauiapy
Moug Buised '}
STVIMILYIN 40 3TNAIHDS
DSZLE NYTId NOLLYDOT
/ 4

N 1%

e e i




HYOS SIHUNY A “pansasal SIYBU iy “PEIILI SIBUES ¥ IBIUNH G

e iy ity 3 i 0 olrou DA & et ONINNY1d —
PLBZ LeiB 020 4 woaunfuca U pesd 80 o 5p DD S aus U pERBiR .
0029 ££28 020 L B4 0] SU0 puE sjoss Iy A suosuswIp paunby asn W 9L07dY BA0BEN
WG B uopIo hopghel Soipmn Mo Hep o)
pecy wopeag aug eiedg MM pag eyidooL:l ‘a8
03 umenp Ja0ys SIHOLS SNYIWAGNYH :
mu&.uCDr\_ o ANVINIE O3S0d08d - waummm fionse : Ueid B3 UC pejepdn UM Aiepunog  MF S10Z60SE W
avod 390ai-kaxn '39v0 YY1X3 MOAVY3IW ASSYHD oo yoefosd ) voss
ev@00l-| Jeg sjeag
1 I _
wpt wg w0
auesquiaw Aid sjbuig 1jooy ¢
810)S suewApueH pue aI0}S uig - suejd
S10L VY / As19unojog "|983s pasiueajeb 0dd slooq 2
puoq Jaydjaiis ul pie| ‘ajeiziely :abuel ‘Jablagiaulapy ouq Buoeg 'L
SAVIHALVIN 40 3TNA3HOS
Al
0
(V]
N £v®0SZ1-) :ue|d uonesoT aig ()
i (@)]
)
o

$2I0}S SuewApueH pue 210}S ulg - SUOIEAS|T JUOi




e T

_____
5 UHC _c VG M TV YL IOV AV

OvEIOOLL Ve ITDE

e LN

s oy i o oo oA
Seurd parey G

e pon
P 56 G2 FS Wi pus-op
VT (T TS 10 N O

e boapes v

Ay Bl syl ) St s 6

Beppaen ssaui e Sjaued e Bupmelg-oR
MPEASTE VD SRR Y

Beayusan dequ from 59 Bopuiar i o

UL TV AT IV SISO BTIINAS 19558 D
i o Y

IR TP S UITRITE DAY 10

U [ S

O EIO0LE LALRVID B0 OINOWSH LXIANCAL P - P NOILDES INCILYATTS QUVALENOD

B P AMLDFSEHIS QEVALEADD

2 3 FANLIBISHId HVALENGD

gz il
[T LR T T
JTTEL R

B R A

Q-0 MLTISTHIS GHVALMNOD

£+ 0 INLDFSEHTS QUVALENOD o001




g 1 Lok ONINNYId -
oo icsa 204 s v 20014V 58061
Ntk semial 5 Bames) e
T OB S Y T paes wiions -
R s TUINED AYO MOV ASSYHD
m.\®.gCD£ 54 4d38 - SHOLLYATTS ONILSIXE g G O —
OvOY 3D01E8XN 'TUYD VELX3 MOOYIN ASSYHD s e . . v
2YBO0Z:L WIS
L& wgl wg wi
NOILYATT3 LNOYHd ONILSIX3 v NOILYAT13 (HLNOS) 3QIS ONILSIX3 '€
wonse WiySE wonse woose
_sﬁ...n:neé)

L lonilnlodmn odn ] ] m Ml M

/b/ \\V\

NOILYATT3 (HLYON) 3aIS ONILSIXT

(o]

L o o [ ] dHd B m

Pagel 254

LY@D0SZL:L (UB|d UONEI0T BHS /\

NOILYAITE "v3d ONILSIX3 'L

W e s [ LLEEL THTT b o i




mmmu mﬁ_ m_a aa

e ER00L L NOLLYAZ TS HANGN

OB EYE TS

A S0 TS PRI Ul (ROT IR T
[y umaisg) jocy sr1d Aipisanip-cr v

wwnd A4 E1

(Y

T | A A6 LGP O RTLISY Sdd
HPUSTLINTS MOPULN Ui FESI NS T

LT
(Mg ooy Lanagech SERIpU U Wrsod et Sdd
el I

ATOT Y g S e

TAPDR3 s uspal S BUBOOdsHI
e og anao) el Aotaad papal s e
Spbued pasd 58

o pon
oS 0 G IR AL pUEofs
FEHLTY (I R 10 Y U
e boypes v
e Sured syl H SUSIES S 6

B0 ssauss e Sjaued e Bunmelg-oR
‘apensnirE v s 3

Beapysn dequ from S9m Dopurss i o
UL VY AT M1 ST BTIINAS (9558 Dl
topunineg sse L

L ]
IR TP B UITRITE DOUBED 0
[ ———

weoqEAe UD umoE .
Ve POGE TV SDURSY 0ang ETEL T IS BN OB00L 1 LALRYID HOS 0INONTY EXIINGD} NOIYAZ 1S HLHON

SHIQL T Moped 3uT 0150 PoARIdE uw prba

AP M IS SIRT ST S

UL TV | AT WP a0 PasTidde pem TS

BB [ S

IS P gD A3 BN R B
A swag T

ey v e g Bugsetad unigs
YR HGES T

B HYTIAIE ) e Pasiide
0 R B B el ib

e Biined b
STVIHALYW 40 TN0THIS
B = Tt rignoaved




1
|
i
!
i
i
!

% 1
i
|
i
(]

,,,,,,,,,,,,, T

- o
R SECRIIT T VHLOH MOYI ASSYHD o

T L R - Bt

aeE00LE NOILYATSTS 15V

OvEIOOLL YE ITEDE

W S TS PO U1 [P IRE 5T
Lisary usscsagl jooy etd MpLranip-on vi

e A 5L

sin

Tt 1 AR B0 NG S DTSN Sdd
PRGNS MOPUM fSUIL i Tupos TE

LT
(Mg ooy Lanagech SERIpU U Wrsod et Sdd
el I

g s usparh sy DUBGOsOI
e og anao) el Aotaad papal s e
“Spburd presd 48

st on
oS 0 G IR AL pUEofs
Ve i) (FII SR 10 N g

P ———

Ay Bupeid Julliay jny usges st ¢

Baryaep dsiny pus i San(l Buriray oo
iapensnieg v sesjesns

Beapysn dequ from S9m Dopurss i o
UL VY AT M1 ST BTIINAS (9558 Dl
topunineg sse L

5604 T (s
IR TP SR UITRITE DOBED 0
[ ———

e POGE T $DURS ang B8 acﬁx..c” N DEINOL L LALRID B0 DZNONEH EXIINOD) NOILVAZTE 15vE
SHIQL T Moped 3uT 0150 PoARIdE uw prba

AP M IS SIRT ST S

SHOL TYH | D g e PasGidde pom i

BB [ S

e S RN 344 ST P
g sgEsg T

a0 Buaess waigs
A I T




OvEIOOLL YE ITEDE

A S0 TS PRI Ul (ROT IR T
Lot umasg) jodn 513 Mplsaap-crd v1

wnd Ad 61

(Y

T | A A6 LGP O RTLISY Sdd
HPUSTLINTS MOPULN Ui FESI NS T

LT
[y 0] g SERIpURY U TS0 a1 S
el I

ATOT Y g S e

AR 3 st uanarh s Busoodiaim
s 23 smofe Ayl Asengod 50 e
Seurd parey G

o pon
T 30 G EROS W B ap
SR (PRI ST 10 A TS
P ———
A Butterd syl ) SRS MM 6

By Jsiay pum Spatir S Bunars g
iapensnieg v sesjesns

s oy prom 9 Deruag i s i
L0E TV 1 AT IO NGO BTN 19938 Dkl
e T

L ]
IR T SR UITITE PAUEDD I
oo puw BeopUM 3

weoqEAe UD umoE

E O0E T OSSN 'BESL T WOHISK VORI
9198 T moped 3u noio] PoAnidde o prbe

TR L B SIRD, ST S

SHOL TYH | D g e PasGidde pom i

BUBn [ TS

e S RN 344 ST P
s sgesg T

v e 0 Bunsens waies
A I T

§

I —m
'R

aYEROOL L NOLLYAZ T HANGDS

BT LGRS [0 YT

OwE00L 1 [ALINYTID HOS 0INONIH EXILNGD) NOUYAT I HLNOS




mb—gt— ) - - WORIYRTD Y TR, ———
VO FEAMTNT T VHOO MOV ASSVS e

00N L NOLLYASTE L53M

OwEIGOLL WYE ITV0E

]
(g yom) v “SRspussy U Stsod B Sdd
R LT

ATOT T Mgk T g

1 MmO VoS AeAlId BIIL BRI I
s kaessg 7

TG sl UG s BUaOdNI
s &g ot el Avbngad papL 25 e

Siburd Bl 4
DPesorio gun
Pk 24 G ESOS W pu-ape
VY (I FEIRE 10 A s
]
e Bt ST 1y AUIED St
Do e s spoured 4neyB Burswaiority

Biarsep iequ pum $9 Duuesi: s seed
‘GHOE T ARG I SO BTN 8 S
sopmupiey wser L
404 Tv gy B HHAKITBART 9 1R
WA TR BTG SIS PHEOT N

TR (O TS




P T e s o S §
m% el Eaxn.s . .:c:«..a.ﬁ.pé.. s - —
O 8D 005 ey
- - - 8- URIeE tug

i s i 4 s ¥ (1 L G iy

Ay uogaog o




.;..__; . s R R _
PN SN B IMUNK 0 BWEU BuUpes) € 51 SIaNNK i L

P82 LpL5 020 4 ) 109 Uf pea) a0 0 5 BuMRI SIUL 915 U paRIBI - )
DOZ8 £628 020 L B0 O] SUNSUBLAD PuE Sael Iy A S panBiy Bsry L20dY 60BN

e L

wan § ,

[ s SL0ZHIOLOO  mep oIy 1512 Siskleuy #opeys piefunod. ey Gumesn
m.h®.ucjc avoy 39ai-¥axn ‘J¥v0 YH1X3 MOAVIW ASSYHD sawsu posfoxd _ vy

EVD002Z/| : YoIe 1sL. ueld mopeys pieduno)

Buona au) 40 150w PuE LooWIaYE ‘Buiiow N0 YBROIY UNS eA1B231 Jey) MOleq SBBUNO] PUB BaRiia) J00) PIE [EUNWIS

fiep auy 1no UBROIY UNS UM @ B9BLB) L } pue uns B pue L ypw 8BUNC| pUB Y BIELE] [BUNWLIST

YInog Wod) MaiA |




o .“ii oty 3 i o o slfer 14 e ONINNY1d s.s

PLBZ Lpid 020 4 9 U pEE a0 0 5} GUWIin S NS U paNIBiR . o
0028 ££28020 L 5 0} SuSUSUID pue SianD| [y U0 SuSUBLIP Pasn B37) Zz0dY 6906

R [sl] Umen Jesys

m L@.HCDC SL0ZMIF0L00 mep | unp1s1Z SIshjeuy mopeyS pieunog s

avoy 39ai-¥axn 'YV YY1X3 MOAVIN ASSYHD oo sl

£Y®00z/1 :eunf1sLz ueld mopeys pJeduno)

Buiwane ay) Jo 150U puE UeoWBYE ‘GUILIoL N0 YBNOI UNS 8NBA) BU] Mojaq SBBUNG| PUE Bdelie) JOOY PIE [BUNWIWDY

fep auy 1o UBNOIY UNS Yl G B0BE] } pue uns B puE L Yim afiunc) pue 'y 8Ie.a) [Bunuile]

UINOS Wouy MBIA |

o oy .I/
. NGy N
.‘ A

O,
.




a0
AU S80I SN 10 BB BUE & % SiolnK ) \ -
oo Wy v i o s iian 3 ONINNVd —

.. ..t.s!
&ﬁ..:h.&f ...;11._4...._#!»8335 ... ..

0028 £628.020 L 501 04 SUISUSLAD PuB: Hoaay 1y Api0 stioghusuiy PN 931y £207dY 69061
MOl e Jvous

mLQ.UCDC SI0ZY3BOLO0  mep JOQWRIGSS ISLZ SISAIEUY MODEUS PIBAUNOD.  eusmes bumesn.

avod 39ai¥axXn 'FUvO YHIX3 MOAYIN ASSYHO ‘owou sfosd _ vy

o £V@00z/| Hequeides 1sLg ueld mopeys pJefunod

1SB3 YHON WOl MBIA °Z

-

GuBRS B4 1 150U P UOOUIBIE 'BulUIOLI 110 UBNOI] UNS 919391 1841 Wo[q SaBUNO] PUE BI861 001 PIE [EUNLCY

fep auy o YBnoi UNS U g soeLa) [BUN } pUE uns B puE L -afung| pue v BI8.L8] [BUNLWST

UINOS Wouy MBIA |




a§..;..__.. .....g?.....e...o ......
BT SIS § UK 0 SRS BUIBE) £ 5 SNk 3 :

——— e ONINNYd

PLBE LpiE 020 4 03 U peal 99 0 5 Buveaip s oS uo pasosi y S

DOZ8 £628 020 L 2001 S UAg P Sk T i s By 231y 20V o906

Hay e aoos

e

I : Ve SI0ZYIAOLO0  mep  JBQWBDSQ 1SLZ SISAIBUY MOPEYS PiEAunog. uBs0}0 DUAMESD.
mL@.uC_JC avoy I9ANEXN ‘FUVO VHLXI MOAVIIN ASSYHD sweuses _ o

v SVD00Z/| :48qWS08Q Ueld MOPEYS pIekunod

Buuana ay) Jo 1SoL puE uoowaye ‘Suiow 1o yBnoiy) UNs 8AEaal 1B Mojaq SBBUNO| PUE BOBLIE) JOO PIE [EUNWLIOD

Aep au 100 YBnoUY UNS Y g BIELE) UM } pUE uns B puE L Yim afiunc) pue 'y 8Ie.a) [Bunuile]

UINOS Wouy MBIA |




1y w ey TR A Y S i
gl el s i ONINK I
el e L e
e e oe | 1 iy (o ity A P o ST v 20
Pl Mo i = o
e — i
g.MSE B LaTE - Y TR0 L DL S0 gy Ko o el Gy Lbeies) e GIOROGL W
OYOY IDAILENN THYD YELNI MOTVIWN ASSYHD i
WiBooz | IWIS
[ ik ! BH £2.°0 W3V 3LIS
e - -y wa

MBI/, BOUBIUT B

N / PrRIBG) (1000 L) NS0 o PRSI S0

wENg UG YFRID SH0 HOUROE THE
/ XOQ 1904 'Gd  JOIOI JTEAN WML 1804 W i

1B4a] 0014 714 SMEA SEQ NG GOYUEH HIY

= POUSMUL HL du) doig tgs ANIND PRaY SAS
e b |ane efipny T JaA0 uogadsu) i) WRIRGH B4 THY

4 [Aa] S0nET 13 SN R 190 M ST BRI S

L ¥, HEM TIM  WOOHBL GSIUE IEE Bdid R d0

B sfiuyey ual| | 118 91504 “Hd POy YWWET 'H3

i T B petyd cgd  sea Busieni PRIOE (08




HIYa €307 = Ki

L A
3N'02°023-535 MMM 1935G3MN

TZOTTL 89210 ‘auoyd y IL
97T TTID %3557 Woyumog ¥ ]
sapqois ungpns ‘Tun et

. ‘5107 5353 “Buipasoosd

2U0J30 JUEYNSUOI EINYNILIOGIE 3y1 01 paniodal

B 15N saRURdaIIsp AUy "ALS UD SUDISUAUND ||B
#2342 15N SI0IDBAU0D wodn paljas ag 10u pnoys Adod
FWOIYICUOW € - INDJ0 uf paznpoud sem Fuimesp syl |

~ Q3NIVL3Y

podal 0} 13490
- uoiesapisuod [eoads e Sulinbal easy

uopeld punoig

SIBLIEG AMIDB10Nd 3B] e e —

EaJe uonaaiosd 100y

pauielas ag 0 53311 0

Aay S i e rpaUEialay 0




i A

3N'02°023-535 MMM 1935G3MN

TZ0TIL 89210 ‘2u0yd
= -
1T TTIND Xa553 “woyumogq 4
$3/qo3s Aingpns T Jun )

"ST0Z 5350 “Huipasosd

U043 JUBNASUOT [BINYNILIOGIE 33 03 paniadal

aq 1snw sappuedalssip Auy "a1js UD SUDISUALNP |8
#2342 15N SI0IDBAU0D wodn paljas ag 10u pnoys Adod
FWOIYICUOW E - INDJ0D Ul paonposd sem Fuimesp syl

PAADWE) 3G 01 533

eaue umjoalosd ooy

uoiualal
10} B|GENNSUN JO 53241 - N AJoBED

anjea pue Alijenb moj jo saan - 3 AoBage)

anjea
pue Ayjenb ajeiapow jo saai - g Aofaye

DO @

anjea pue Aenb yiy jo saan - v AoSaie)

Aoy

NG S83999 - Nva
3 LHSIM 011N *




Beck Theatre

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Grassy Meadow Day Centre

Grange Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Hayes
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
48110/APP/2015/3436 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Page 267 [November 2015

Major

LONODN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WEST LONDON INDUSTRIAL PARK IVER LANE COWLEY

Development: Continued use of the site for B8 purposes with new storage and ancillary
workshop and office buildings, car parking, external storage area and new
access to Wallingford Road

LBH Ref Nos: 751/APP/2015/335

Date Plans Received: 28/01/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/04/2015
Date Application Valid: 09/06/2015 28/01/2015
15/03/2015
15/06/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee -18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 268



7 Estates

7 Fairhurst

zE 2 g J
dd = EQF0s 5| B

Erfhd =

Scale 1:10000

Scale 1:2500

Page 269

lver Lane Uxbridge




08 09 (0)% 0¢ 0

e ™

L:} SeJiaw ui 8|eos

Q0 5

— | ST
S — 2bpLgXN U JIaA| 8l ApaadsS 9¢01 €

uld #is Bunspeg

H
aBpugxn eue :as - ea Apsadg — / __ )
Sy 4 i // |

1SINYIIRS & ~ismmmieiy:
T T T BB pUEY ey
OH SV SN BE Ul

Page 270




w g | P g
S — obpugxn aunT JeA| auH Apeads 9¢01 €
Ut S5 Pesodong
L
afpugun suen) Jan - eeH Apaads —
sa]e]s] P
jsinyJied g3
EEi ) ETEITeTETg B
aH s SR G W

08

09

(0)%

0¢

0

——

L:} SeJiaw ui 8|eos

w000 Ko a5,

oLy e 0
VR ma Sy Daped S, 00 o ]
areuiems  wmDeCHr s seen G| E e ]

i NN v
[TTTTTTT oo e —

(T Fy e E. s

D o
<} W L
S7 s ™,
v i3 ,.»m X
\.\. Y
thD_ \.\\ o2
¥
I T
@ 25 ..\..x . ..\...\\ mewores 3 vms
L v
] = W
(0]
(@)
Q)
HRodeba § Wed DI
s (B3
ks

—

|
[
-
(s

i




(

r

evo00siT )

e

_.OZ._. $102'€0Cl

9G0IMa

“op Biwmeag o t.a__o.(

\

§S302V 31IS d350d0dd

Buimeig

JO0I49XN INYT d3AI
ALVIS3 TVISLSNANI
NOGNOT LS3M LV ANV

1aaledg L

GO LT DLKTSUTULAMEY MMM, —— .J
TIESIE 926101

ane ¥4

upBawosD o aoa

Wy _

1

aleq

anss|/uoistaay .ch

$20N .L

juawdinby B ueld
afeioys uadp

peos ssadde pasodold

R\

£L91E0001L0 J2quinu asuso LLOZ
‘panasal siybu |1y yBufdo umoug




STVLUNI iy O ung | SLHAY g

S — obpuaxn aup JoA| aliH Apaads 9¢01€

sydeiboroud duies Sugisxeeaymssy bupnipu
U g pasodosg

o 002 001 0

- B Apaad
N e II
B2k BeY L3I0 4 BLE BLT 19401

mmﬁﬂmm_ AR L:l ‘Sanew ul 8|eos
thscl—_mu MV SEINISME NHODY L

FRIVIST LSHMRHIVA

ErE aEg “SReLIpUELRY TiEY

€ Yaeibojoyd

dwes aiojaq uaxe)
Z ydeiBojoud

| £ udesBojoud jo uojsod (o]
f N~
Al
/ o
| MO ¥ o]
o
JuswdopAasp
duwes asojaq uaye]

& udesBojoyd jo uonisod

Juswdojansp
L :mw._mmuozn_ diues au0jag uaye)

| ydeiBoroyd jo uomsog




STVELING poiny OH ey _ SL0Z Ler amg

HOE oy vviona

WEB S e o] SOUEOLED oy mmg

obpLgXN aun JaA| aliH Apaads 9€01€

suoesaie g suryd siges Bapper pesodong
B

e -amik
abipudper) BUET Jan| - amH ua&m_ i

DLZL G LIR0 S BIRE BLY 191051

sajels T
u.mkzgh_mh Wi SEANISIE MOV L

SALVIST LSUNHEN

“HEI| wea EUBUPLHY Vi

sue|d |eoidA |

sulgeo bapoer pasodoid

JUN 210} (9918 - UBld UIqeD B yoer

Jun Jamoysnejio] - uejd uige) BaT yoer

AE

| > f S ooy P
o | )

H DM doySHIOA

o N - A 74
_m_..ﬁ.._wu:nﬂoﬁox_m

N

HUN SlBjOM - UBld uigeD B3 xoer

suoneAs|

suiqeo Bapjoer pasodold

uoneaaja pus [eaidAy uigen Ba yoer

uolieasle pua |eaidA) uigen Ba yoer

uoneasje apis [eoidA) uige) Ba yoepr

uoieaala apis |eaidA} uigen Ba yoer

Page 274




STVLUINI pouasng

OH e | Ss0ZUEF

]

IOUE oy vvlona

W B 0STL s

|

F-9E0LEd

4 g

oBpugxN aup JoA| alIH ApaadsS 9¢€01¢

SUDNEASIT ' LB UM JBINPOW Pasidoig

alipuder) BUET s - any Apaads

B

pofig

saje1s3
“&:ﬂ_\mm

L]

“HEnu|

DLZE G LIR0 S BIPE BLY DL

GVLENG

AHOdHRI0LS

- ANV NOAYEH
MV SEINISOE NHOIY L
SALVIST LSUNHHIV

EUBLIPUEY

Vi

SUONBAd|T

Hun Jenpojy pesodoid

(UHON) uoneAsy3 epis

(yinog) uonens|3 spig

uoneAs|3 Jeay

uoieAs|3 Juoi4

[ I[]

L[]

ue|d - Jun Jeinpoy pesodold

(tpnog) uoneas|3 epis

WANATES OFFICE
MAMAGERS OFFICE

EETT | T OO
e e

™ M

\
Page 275

uoljeAa|3 Juol4 _ uoneas|3 Jesy

_ DA VAR

(yuoN) uoneas|3 apis




STYIIN O g | SIOZU e

B —— ebpugxn aup JoA| ailH Apaads 9¢01¢

suaeraa g ued doysyion, pesedaig
L

afpudqur] BUET 5| - B4 Apaeds
oforg |

saje1s3 et
um.sﬁwm |

Wil SEANISTIE MEOY L
T ey BT

SALVIST LSUNHHIV

- FHNLONYLS
Wig X WL X Wog

Ll Ll

(STIVM 0300¥710 13318 'STI8YD B 400M OWIHL)
NOILYAIT3 3aIS

(S779M 0300Y10 133LS 'ST1VD B SO0 OWEIHL)
LA I,

Page 276

(STIVM 0300V 133LS 'SI1EYD ¥ S00M ONNIHL)

] (877¥M 030010 13318 'S318VO % J008 OWNIHL)
NOILYAINE 3018

NOILYA313 318YD




STVILIN sontty

OH g _ 51 HYW weq

[ —

obpugxn aun JoA| allH ApaadS 9¢0 1€

D 005 aeos | | MIEIED o g
Apnpaunos
abewwp Bunsme pue fydesdiodoy
8L
afipugn sue Jan - auH Apesd:
i 2z
OLZL v 1010 '3 KB Sir 1810 L
BVL NS
mm H@ku LHODOOLE
3T NOLYIH
Hm.-h—-—:.__mm Wity SSINENA NAODY £
SAUVLST LSHOHHVG
T e g

002

II

00l

L] Salaw ul 8|eas

Page 277




SILING sy O g | SLUYN g

obpugxn aun JoA| aliH ApaadsS 9€0 1€

LY B 005 ) awog n_m_ R

A0S
A
sfewsip pasodosd pue AydesBodoy DDN

001 0
abpugxf sueT Jan) - auH Apaeds

b
w

sa1e1sy e Ll Senew ul 8]eosg

Hmh—l-ch_m..m o SEINISOE NUODW L

SAUVIST LSHNHYYS

o0 EETTT s

Page 278




ki Allotment
Gardens

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

West London Industrial Park

Iver Lane
Cowley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
751/APP/2015/335

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Major

Page 279

Date:
November 2015

FrLLLLIINSG

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address PARK VIEW DAY CENTRE FARRIER CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Erection of a 3 storey building (including a lower ground level) comprising 60
Extra-Case Units (C2 Use Class), associated communical facilities, parking ar
landscaping (involving demolition of existing building at the site.

LBH Ref Nos: 60469/APP/2015/3368

Date Plans Received: 07/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 07/09/2015

Major Applications Planning Committee - 18th November 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 280



Shetter

53

2

odd4

£8.0) 5z 5
6

SITE AREA:

0 10m 20m

o

%
&
2
8
L’ﬂ
&
& ﬁg
o
£
ot
e
i Tiog
FARRIER CLOSE
L & 8201 4z
g
2z
0.37 ha
50m

Scale Bar 1:1250 @ A4

project name:

drawing reference:

job number:
mMao0es

status:

cad ref;

(%

G

W

Parkview Day Centre

100m

PARK VIEW EXTRA-CARE, HILLINGDON

SITE LOCATION PLAN

drawing number: revision:
APLOO1 A
PLANNING

M9088_APLOOx_A_ GA Planning Set_Park View.dwg

date: AUG 2015
sheet: drawn: RB
scale: 1:1 250@M checked: JW

Use figured dimensions only. All levels and dimensions to be
checked on site. This drawing is to be read in conjunction
with all other relevant drawings and specifications.

Hunters is a trading name of Hunter & Partners Limited.

@ Hpggéﬂzsl:l'mited. All rights reserved.

42.1m

5B
WO
3“‘“136“

41.8m

T

huNters

Space One Beadon Road
London W& DEA

T 020 8237 8200
F 020 8741 2814
mail@hunters.co.uk

www. hunters.co.uk



B s, wr g S D YT BB -
vy — T ety v e SRRV

Vi ¥ S Bt 3 L
e STk e s it 8 4 -
WA I 4 L s 0 2 e . G
DANMERL i —— 0 e ey W e ecen
vt ey - B ——
o o o pee VB

[T - LALMNS TrASRDOOL

E@EE GEew - W LT (RIS e
NOGDNITIH I YH LT MALN MY o pne

LT T R PR

=z
L

1 B 0T | JeR BEag

- - -

Aampunog WeLBoasD
0500ty - smmma

—— .

ebipay pus anus ‘ea Bunsea -

puaban

Ty
ss?lll._ﬁ!‘llllltll
= ey

L™

~anuag Aeq mainyied e A L




B b, o B ) W ORI Y

o m—— Fusss e 7y Do sy i

TR | s e ey

g i L e L8 s 4

...... i e . By,

o e, B L
g

oy o ol 4, e vlonr -

o -

R
iy @ 0071 Jog B9
i i '

pewEay 99 Bugspcg -

a0 wapy pesodong -

Buined quipesas 10 44T Pels
0} YlE UBLISBPS,) PAJUOE WSEY -

WG Q

Buiooy ewen T — ]
B0 AMT 100080 O] BORNRL JUBMSaH - ”_

Giuryed pus GUSSOK UBLSSad
‘PE0S FEIMEUED O] 5IN0MKT. |
Bunspaued £ waled suoqliuiuey - _
Un IR SEME SgEDLLS

UMET SSRIL) -

Py 007 SOURTY e Ddd |
WIIDOEL YN HBM NG WIDDE -
Hauq Buie yoew | ]
1 [EM HHIE WRO0E) -
Bs usurdojEnap jo Eeuned |

Emcﬂw§oﬂ:ﬂz§c3v§$llllllll L
BB PERIROE PESOID WIIOHRL - | |

‘puaba

NOODNITIH FUYD-VEHLNE M3IA Hevd

CMINNY 1

oy
T -

I ERIE IO DN WO DR 3SR 0EHONG




b e =

o B
—T - Y S T N g “
SIUNY e e N

IPaeeo © fupncu tet pT GHDON
e vawvaus
s
T ™ il
o =3 TAOLRE
B 0 s e peg
b o .
i L) g By
_ T I 0 meram et _
T Y soons
MOLLYDORACDY 40

.........

!

Page 284



T v B e ey

i
!q'E
§

BT | Eeeuien e fathon
—T - R - i ﬁ
- - — R
e g g _ WO e O Tt et N L
B D]
P ¢ fupacl Katete e L

Page 285

|
N




ok T i SN
T | W e ey
I L e el
SNy R T —

!

s s

I e L aumard

T R

s “ e

[ = winsens

stecCin o e puesns.
[ ik C 05 o maayay |
i W e

] 1 W e sy
e paar oe oo

MOUYDORAGITY 41}
et

.........

Page 286



il
]I.
i
i

|

s s
I e L aumans
T R
s “ o
o & waniens
| st w [ —
Tk 00w i =
e g 0 g iy
o 1 W e sy
e paar oe oo
MOUYDORAGITY 41}
— |
wins | s |
Een e Ea
s || |
263
N

Page 287



"1 g g
i

. i
Py 1yl
Sh e ol
im0

H
™
| Ll
|

Page 288

T . man e



Bowp i, Wy G Buman) v Ty R Y B0
B SRS BT

PR KAWL 3 IO WSS CUBR B 1] KA S0L0OHd 3L anen
HIC AT D 4 ]

DOCT LECR D001 TN Y E00dY PROGN
W30 AL BpUTT rEs g BawED g

bt LDpRe i) ez M s 0oL L mexs

a2 - s
m&.@ucac SOTONY  wen SOLOHD ONY NV ONIGINE ONISI  semsen e
FHVO-VHELIXI MIIA HEYd st et

9 Zv@00L:l ¥vd 3IVOS

L o

NY1d ©NIOTINg ONILSIX3




0021 SLB0-LE Hd wa
L1 5] L] A ooy g i
ONINNYIG HOd
b
2 LOL0G0GE
i

‘820528 £9540

LM $EI HiopoN “LudT sBupy SIS |1 AsuL
kit d SaUr 'Spoos MBS0 Aq paddns oq
0 SUME] 0] ISWOURIN W 113 evefiows ()

X “EEnTou) ETApoUaAL
Uy poddip 8 0F SANUHS ONY SLNYIHSNYHL
‘53304 T Guauerd o soud Amepeww (g

*Buipiing £ PaU - SUCHEID| Sa)

posodod pue Bugsne oy spuebioy L) i0ouibus
4 pancudde 53 o1 %1 ubisap uoepunod (5
PuBRODM

pu saas Busps o} LoaEes LCgELLIDJU|

10} podi BN 6] S8 ssead (1
sy Butned E08 o

219 B4 LUDSHIN0I 0L 0D PUE AU BAIEIIPL) ai8
Bumesp S o paReas sused yeg iy (e

Bl SIWENNEUGD RN SRE0 [
Ly BogIUNUOD L) pEak Bq 0 8) Bumep syl (2

“Bupweip sng wodp Aesip B1E3s 1o og (L

seloN Bunueld

‘@r ABoaireals
uopbulj|!

L

r— N

>
g
puk Sanus upariang Sesseil Sy
S8 oI sy JBe) peunyxe) Hemo)
apEyS G pajued 94 of sEaRua) 1eNN

Jamoj 0y usep Buipes) SeoeLe) Bupueld

‘Bupawmoy Buipniauy Bupwed Amaury

umey Bunsis pes Xl SUMET S 4173
SOIIS SSVHD HAMOT4T M

PNt 5 g

piagy Jo-sybinasy
%5001 -suonoes Buopw Ul EsuESY STUnIY Id
W % ‘uuey sepadg opog
wig'y - g “serads mbuis o syBuel wy u pegddns aq o) abpay ey
DNIDOIH LNVISNI
woyppuesB enoubeyy an
Eaneaks sy S84
snmaq snusleg 22
suosuBnboRl sign Tmieg 1]
INELUE] JSHUIURIBLY L
BEPIGD SNUfY w
Sswisens, ansadwed J6dy sav
agsadues ey oY
sapadsg Aoy
CEENTE

OGRS JUBLS [PUOLEN G4 i S3UBpIEITE:
) pue ABsiny pasoucde w1 H Ue Wwol) pagddns g o) sued iy

anpayos Bunueld

UEISUL B18A5 0] BYS jo LEpUNDG of
eyl Buibpas juess Wi WL
—_—

adeos p uen”" ./ ﬁsﬁo&iu&%?ﬁ gﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁ 05 S5O0 BUIUEH] [EIUOWILLID [RIDU0S) l

_l— -§®_>V_a_ m& p————— | werssenpesosns [ | ———

“{sume) ssesb Blysoe oju) Buwmos so) pasn

Bunpeg 'BuIsss UBINEapaE 'peoy mﬁ 0 0 1 s 4,73 seBeswa) seoeds ! ﬁ
Guined yooig ajqeswad pesodoly [ anopeow Busesod o) Jn) sSwoyping panowal aq oy seau Bunsg i
“aeys Buwed jing sy painag {uoda g o) sapa)
e ol | aowia pirsodaid i Guiyuty Louatod G pasotog S04 pasodiig E

PaER G & S0 Bugsxs E
Kay

PEOY hoiy00,g

“saaeLE] o ) Jaddn

§3§§=§q§.&§.§f1|rfurrflrfurr

a5 Buope Bunuerd o 1ans ainew (wag

UBRODE

\
IR PRI O) Soiads

BOE

USRS JUEISU BIERIT O) BUS J0 ABpURGG
o e Buibpos uesul b we L
“uofensE Buspung jo swam dn

yeauq 01 Arepunog e Buoye Buwsass

aptacd o) BUnUueKd S WIS PRISKIS. \

Page 290




0021 SLB0-LE Hd wa
by

NOLYWEOHNE 404
b

k] LOL'0B0SE

L]

Absieag edeaspue -

SpapRRY SIBUNH

e —

‘820528 £9540

LM $EI HiopoN “LudT sBupy SIS |1 AsuL
kit d SaUr 'Spoos MBS0 Aq paddns oq
0 SUME] 0] ISWOURIN W 113 evefiows ()

X “EEnTou) ETApoUaAL
Uy poddip 8 0F SANUHS ONY SLNYIHSNYHL
‘53304 T Guauerd o soud Amepeww (g

*Buipiing £ PaU - SUCHEID| Sa)

posodod pue Bugsne oy spuebioy L) i0ouibus
4 pancudde 53 o1 %1 ubisap uoepunod (5
PuBRODM

pu saas Busps o} LoaEes LCgELLIDJU|

10} podi BN 6] S8 ssead (1
sy Butned E08 o

219 B4 LUDSHIN0I 0L 0D PUE AU BAIEIIPL) ai8
Bumesp S o paReas sused yeg iy (e

Bl SIWENNEUGD RN SRE0 [
Ly BogIUNUOD L) pEak Bq 0 8) Bumep syl (2

“Bupweip sng wodp Aesip B1E3s 1o og (L

seloN Bunueld

3%

L

r— N

>
g
puk Sanus upariang Sesseil Sy
S8 oI sy JBe) peunyxe) Hemo)
apEyS G pajued 94 of sEaRua) 1eNN

Jamoj 0y usep Buipes) SeoeLe) Bupueld

‘Bupawmoy Buipniauy Bupwed Amaury

ume| fugens pes HU SUMET] S0} FREL
S033S SSVHO HIMOTHTTIM

PNt 5 g

piagy Jo-sybinasy
%5001 -suonoes Buopw Ul EsuESY STUnIY Id
W % ‘uuey sepadg opog
wig'y - g “serads mbuis o syBuel wy u pegddns aq o) abpay ey
DNIDOIH LNVISNI
woyppuesB enoubeyy an
Eaneaks sy S84
snmaq snusleg 22
suosuBnboRl sign Tmieg 1]
INELUE] JSHUIURIBLY L
BEPIGD SNUfY w
Sswisens, ansadwed J6dy sav
agsadues ey oY
sapadsg Aoy
CEENTE

OGRS JUBLS [PUOLEN G4 i S3UBpIEITE:
) pue ABsiny pasoucde w1 H Ue Wwol) pagddns g o) sued iy

anpayos Bunueld

ABoaireals
uopbul||iH ‘malAayied

UEISUL B18A5 0] BYS jo LEpUNDG of
eyl Buibpas juess Wi WL
—_—

adeospue’ wped ueutsoped popuoq usey

s B pasodoig

ume| ssed pesodoug _H_

“{sume) ssexb Bugsne o Bumos soj pasn
9 04 0w peas 4113 aweBsstua) saoeds !
sopEaw Bugesodionu) uny sameyping

A6 SO BUUE USEELG RS l

/ R ——_o o
REO——
P——— ]
00} pagododg E
R, |
eyl

{uoda) g o) 1aped)
Bupiog usaaosd 99 poesodod

PEOY hoiy00,g

“saaeLE] o ) Jaddn

§3§§=§q§.&§.§f1|rfurrflrfurr

a5 Buope Bunuerd o 1ans ainew (wag

UBRODE

\
IR PRI O) Soiads

BOE

USRS JUEISU BIERIT O) BUS J0 ABpURGG
o e Buibpos uesul b we L
“uofensE Buspung jo swam dn

yeauq 01 Arepunog e Buoye Buwsass

aptacd o) BUnUueKd S WIS PRISKIS. \

Page 291




s e sy
=mE SESIETTEIIRT e o
———cETE - - R - T o
o (e

mhg\_ HODDRITEN THVOVHINT MEA NS e e

LA E

o ERO0L L H NCLLS3S

VIR0 L MY A0S =
Z il l
ooy umer] oy 3 st T T B
waurd Ad T
O
VD DRRDE S8 GARIT 4 Bedl ko WA
A U e Sy YU S| RMILE AR 04

iAn O A ISLRLITTY e
el iy (Rdey 6

S R T D s 0 2o
B i i S

ey uoasey

“pasaide pue (Erba Bupper (uedpoy
0D M, BrtY L

ity B

SEEID) ARG BUree s IS ESaIEY IR )

o

00933 SHUEY B [EIN PHERILIR Jdd 1)
ey BAPIS UIIRD UM 3

i
S RS SRR ST S T
S 100 SR PUT S8 B Jdd
TG % DVERDOL L &0 NOKLYATTIA EEYE

ot 1w ¢ Ay
B e i
s pUS SMIGUM Y

o

0PI B MO TAASIRIE U s

PUOGEY ‘HADDRL] HSoTh0) SUATTY Tdd
upon M

PO SRS 1 B1E PasaIOe
U TR 10 K331y KD 0UE] S0
s bees T

0] SHUANS U Py PIADIOSE
U TR 0 ALY (ORI 00
o ey )

STWRHALYIN 30 IINOIHIE




irvisi |..r-rll.-,0"..| G CHINNY I —
=mEy JSESnErTEsInT ¥ Lt fathon
———cETE - - -

£ M Of

oviB00L 1 &9 NOLLDSS

ERO0L L MR 3TWDE

oo wmesl pooy s Aissaapo TH
soudag T
]

110 DRI £ WRLIED 8 UHSR URIOT
i LT Ay G ) R Argvel 03

iAn O A ISLRLITTY e
el iy (Rdey 6

S R T D s 0 2o
B i i S

ey uoasey

“pasaide pue (Erba Bupper (uedpoy
0D M, BrtY L

e —

SEEID) ARG BUree s IS ESaIEY IR )

o

D) SRS FuAIS (EISYG DOVERIEIRG D 1B
ey BAPIS UIIRD UM 3

gy
S A SR SO I
S #1010 BRI U $1851 19958 ]
TG % OWERO0L L B MOLEVAT T 350710 M3

ot 1w ¢ Ay
ST S SR WPIT BT SR
Hhioag pus SMOBM ¥

o

0PI B MO TAASIRIE U s

PUOGEY ‘HADDRL] HSoTh0) SUATTY Tdd
upon M

PO SRS 1 B1E PasaIOe
U TR 10 K331y KD 0UE] S0
s bees T

0] SHUANS U Py PIADIOSE
U TR 0 ALY (ORI 00
o ey )

STWRHALYIN 30 IINOIHIE




ERO0L L MR 3TWDE

110 DRI £ WRLIED 8 UHSR URIOT

. Al l”ﬂlmﬂlmlmT =
AL OGS SR WSIURLNTY Jddd ﬂ 5 d
e e ? . : .%-ﬂ

S 804 I D 4185 e Dk —

|

100y FUEY DA (E1I PIERIER D 16D
Hpaueg BADAS udIED SN 9

gy
WS LIS SR BN R I

B w0011 249 NOLVAT T HLBON

sxgz!...u!
Sy Beey 7

0] SHUANS U Py PIADIOSE
R D 0 AR 1SR xa!!x!s

STYRALYIN 30 TINTIHIS




(- M) IS0 BUCHSE S501) pROl Ao




b oA OF

IR0 L NOLLYATIR 133MLE VoM ATIHDO0LS

CEROGL L WVE AWDE

(o wweugl joot 13 Alssanp-om T
Reued pd 1L
o
S g 5 243 20 S ORI MRS 04

i, o) eiyoig Y
i v By

yaurg upns

S pramnag Supeear-|1eg ey Seag 3

s

N TIUE] S Rt pItopg Sdd ey
B

g

ARl e T SUTUr iy S aEE e e
Fut macd

B R vomones 4 TVEOOEL NOILYATYE TNd OVOM ATTHIOLS

S TVH Y M

TG NGID SR WINUTRIGE FRR0S MRy
e pw wmopam

ot

O PRENOU) N0 PRAITE pUE jFnbs

sy Do e oy Jdd
Bapomo M

G0 HTANS U1 P DR0DdE It vl ol T v = - = e
gl T : = g8 = fla= P
SIVIHALVI 30 TINTINIE i - ke ] : : =
» | = - "
} _ - . i ; _ .. :
ol e ; s ! - 1 =5 | |
3 e o= * sy - I_. = 3 i = T
= i b : 3 . = e e - =
e | 1 g - o y
i : "




N

ﬁ ST8OTL gﬁﬁd@oguﬁuﬁ T w _
200 3035 “ou Bupmose B

UB[d UDIII3Y0Id 1§ ABAINS 33U

i Bujeaniq

uop8ul||iH 40 ySnosog uopuo

=4

uop8ul||iH ‘mainyied

HN'02°0I3-5I5 MMM 3)SGIN
TZ0TTL 892710 ‘auoyd

FIT TTWND ¥35537 ‘woyumog
s3ygois Aingpns ‘T Jun

‘§10Z 5353 “Suipaasosd

210430 JUBYNSUOD [BINYNILOGIE 3} 0} papoday

a0 150 saiauedaidsip Auy "a)is UD SUOISLAWIP |e

Y3 15N SI013e3U0) uodn patjal aq Jou pinoys Adoa
AWOIYIOUDL B - INDjod Ui paanpoad sem Buimelp syl

“BIEINIDE JOU BB 5334 BLUOS JO UOIIEIO] ‘SI0JBINY
‘{1107 220) veyd Aasuns ay) uo paypo|d jJou aue 3313 AWwog

wodas o1 Jagad
prsuo [epads e Buu 1 BRI

uonpatosd punosg

s1auieq anidarosd aaly

paAcLLal 3G 0] Saa41

eaue uopalosd ooy

uonualal
1o} ajqennsun jo saas) - 1 Alclaye)

anjea
pue Ayjenb mo| jo saaly - 3 Aolayed

anjen pue
Auyenb aqesapow jo saas - g AoBaje)

anjen
pue fyjenb ydiy jo saaly -y Aoages




82 0] 37

K}
| ﬂ r

fb f‘gﬁ;fs‘gg\c‘:‘s‘é""“_

Era] |

'

'

Il |
S

=

Parkview Day Centre

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Park View Day Center
Farrier Close

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Hillingdon
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
60469/APP/2015/3368 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major P29¢ 298 November 2015

THILLING

LONDON

DON




	Agenda
	5 Former Royal British Legion Club, Sipson Road, West Drayton - 829/APP/2014/4252
	6 211-213 Swakeleys Road - 70701/APP/2015/3026
	7 Imperial House, Victoria Road, Ruislip - 5039/APP/2014/3715
	8 Grassy Meadow Day Centre, Grange Road, Hayes - 48110/APP/2015/3436
	9 West London Industrial Park, Iver Lane, Cowley - 751/APP/2015/335
	10 Park View Day Centre, Farrier Close, Hillingdon - 60469/APP/2015/3368
	PART I - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

